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BEFORE THE ODISHA ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION
PLOT NO.4, CHUNUKOLI, SAILASHREE VIHAR,
CHANDRASEKHARPUR, BHUBANESWAR

IN THE MATTER OF :  Truing —up application of TPNODL for FY 2023-24 under Section
62 and 86(1) and all other applicable provisions of the Electricity
Act, 2003 read with relevant provisions of OERC (Terms and
Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply
Tariff) Regulations, 2022 and other related Rules and Regulations.

IN THE MATTER OF: TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited

e Corporate Office — Januganj, Balasore, Odisha-756019
semesmneeeeee-Applicant
And
GRIDCO Ltd & All Stake Holders
--—-—-—-Respondents

?;ﬂ;.‘ \ hereby solemnly affirm and state as follows:-

Q‘-i.
Ry,
Sh -
d . | am the Chief Executive Officer of TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited-the applicant in the
& above matier and duly authorised to swear this affidavit on its behalf.

The statements made in the application along with the annexures annexed to this application
are true to the best of my knowledge and the stalemenls made are based on information and

records and | believe them o be true.

ing
gaponen) N0 10entifisy ey
-.'-_._'_._'__

Sn.
Date: 29.11.2024 A“"ﬂ'ﬂﬂmi(.,-.nm ._-..-. "

and state ihat b “5es ”.I- T
R Svten b b ] i = -:'."l-ﬂ\'.'
mENae Ll:f.~.-l-z'..- = Pt
N0 Bl ¢+ s ghrin, inlld.“' elin
TR : R :_;
Sl LF ik

ALt

Motany Lubilic Ha B e



BEFORE THE ODISHA ELECTRICITY REGULATORY COMMISSION
PLOT NO.4, CHUNUKOLI, SAILASHREE VIHAR,
CHANDRASEKHARPUR, BHUBANESWAR

IN THE MATTER OF :Truing —up application of TPNODL for FY 2023-24 under Section 62
and 86(1) and all other applicable provisions of the Electricity Act,
2003 read with relevant provisions of OERC (Terms and Conditions
for Determination of Wheeling Tariff anti Retail Supply Tariff)
Regulations, 2022 and other related Rules and Regulations.

IN THE MATTER OF: TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
Corporate Office — Januganj, Balasore, Odisha-756019
Applicant

And

GRIDCO Ltd & All Stake Holders
e R @ spondents

TPNODL, the above named Licensee, most respectfully showeth:

The truing —up application is being filed by TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited (TPNODL)
for the FY 2023-24 before Hon'ble Commission under Section 62 and 86{1) and all other
applicable provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 read with relevant provisions of OERC (Terms

and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022
and OERC (Conduct of Business) Requlation, 2004,

The submissions of TPNODL are enclosed herewith for @{nﬂ-aﬁpr&vjai of Hon'ble Cammission.
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mﬁhj ' CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
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1, BACKGROUND

TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited (TPNODL) has been incorporated as a joint venture
of the Tala Power Company (51%) and Odisha Gavernment (48%) on the Public-Private
Partnership (PPP) model. TPNODL took over the license to distribute electricity in the five
districts Balasore, Mayurbhanj, Bhadrak, Keonjhar and Jajpur districts of Northern Odisha
with effect from 1.4.2021 in compliance to vesting order of Hon'ble Commission dated
25.3.2021 in Case no-9/2021.

The business of TPNCODL is governed by the license conditions issued by Hon'ble Odisha
Electricity Regulatory Commission (OERC) vide Order No-OERC/Engg/06/2021/718 dated
29.06.2021 for distribution and retail supply of electricity In Northem Odisha.

That, in line with the relevant provisions of OERC (Terms and Conditions for Determination
of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022 and other applicable rules and
regulations, TPNODL is hereby submitting the application for truing up for the FY 2023-24
before Hon'ble Commission for kind approval.

That, in compliance to the direction of Hon'ble Commission, TPNODL had filed the application
for determination of Aggregate Revenue Requirement and Tariff application for the FY 2023-
24 on 30.11.2022. Further, pursuant fo notification of OERC (Terms and Conditions for
Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022 on 20.12.2022
and in compliance to direction of Hon'ble Commission vide lstter No- DIR(T)/405/2023-
24/1379 dated 30.11.2022, ARR and Tariff application for the FY 2023-24 was filed on
10.01.2023 in line with the provisions of OERC (Terms and Conditions for Determination of
Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022, Hon'ble Commission after
hearing all stakeholders, passed the order on dated 24.3.2023. The revenue requirement
proposed by the licensee and the approval of the Hon'ble Commission vide above order are
reproduced in the fﬂhﬁqglﬂﬁl’e? ) 0




Table-1: Approval of Hon'ble Commission against the Proposal of TPNODL FY 2023-24

2515.18

Cost of Power Purchase

Transmission Cost 180.19
SLDC Cost 1.08 1.16
Total Power Purchase, Transmission & SLDC Cost(A) | 2604.24 2696.53
Employee costs 560.63 529.37
Repair & Maintenance Expn. 257.19 214,34
Administrative and General Expenses 140.08 120.13
Provision forBad & Doubtful Debts 35.03 35.59
Depreciation £66.89 49.83
Interest on loan and $.D 120.55 110.32
Total Operation & Maintenance and Other Cost 1,180.37 1,059.57
Less: Employee cost Capitalized 16.58 1658
Less: Interest Capltalized 9.86 9.86
Retumn on equity 79.42 47.19
Tax on ROE 26.72

Carrying Cost on Regulatory Asset/Liability 21.49

Total Distribution Cost 1281.56 1080.32
Less: Miscellaneous Receipt/Non-tariff Income 178.45 154.99
Net Distribution Cost(B) 1103.11 925.33
True up of Surplus/(Losses) for FY 2021-22 65.59
Total Special Appropriation (C) - -65.59
Total Revenue Requirement (A+B+C) 3707.35 3,556.28
Expected Revenue (Full year) 3503.14 3,550.02




2. POWER PURCHASE COST

2.1. Power Purchase Cost

That, Hon'ble Commission had approved total input of 7508 MU for the FY 2023-24 with
sales MU of 6288 MU. In the FY 2023-24, the actual input has been 7047.13 MU. The total
sales in FY 24 has been 6017.43MU. Lower sales than the projection is mainly due to the
slringent drive undertaken by the licensee to physically verify the non-paying consumers
who have not paid since years and removing the non-existing consumers from the active
directory of the billing data base. Further, power purchase through open access has been
increased by 25% in comparison to FY 23, resulting in less drawl from the incumbent
distribution licensee. Taking the actual sales for FY 23-24 of 6017.43MU and with normative
T&D loss of 16.25%, the normative Input for FY 23-24 is 7185.21MU. The power purchase
cost (normative) for 7185.21MU along-with the details have been fumished in Annexure-
TU-2, The approval of Hon'ble Commission vis-a —vis the actual and normative power
purchase costs are detailed in the following table.

Table-2: Power Purchase Cost

(in Rs. Crs)

INPUT{MU) 7508.00 7047.13 7185.21
Cost of power purchase 2515.18 2360.75 2407.01
Transmission Cost 180.19 168.76 168.76
SLDC Cost 1.16 1.16 1.16
Less : Rebate (26.90) (26.90)
Net Input -Inter-DISCOM exchange from

Snes) i g 2.89 2.89
Net Cost of power imported through Hits s
Inter-DISCOM exchange from TPCODL




There are some inter-discom transaction points between TPCODL and TPNODL. The net
import by TPNODL in the FY 2023-24 through Inter-discom transaction is 2.89MU and the
net amount given to TPCODL on account of this exchange is Rs.0.95Crs at the rate of
TPCODL BSP+ Transmission charges. Hon'ble Commission is requested to consider those
2,89 MUs suitably, The details are furnished in Format TU-1.

Therefore, for truing up, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider the normative
power purchase cost of Rs. 2550.97Crs for the FY 2023-24.

2,2, Achieving and surpassing the Targeted AT&C loss of Vesting Order

Hon'ble Commission has fixed AT&C Loss target of 17.09% for Tariff Determination for the
FY 2023-24 under section 41 of Vesting order. TPNODL with its meticulously planned drives,
focussed and structured efforts and under the guidance of Hon'ble Commission has been
able to reduce AT&C loss to 14.22% that is 2.87% less than the target assigned by Hon'ble
Commission. It will not be out of place to mention here that, TPNCDL is the first DISCOM in
Qdisha to bring the AT&C loss below the national targeted benchmark level of 15%.

As per regulation 3.14 of OERC ( Terms and Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff
and Retail Supply Tariff) Regulations, 2022, the distribution licensee would be entitied to
retain any additional gains resulting from meeting and surpassing the AT&C loss target.
Relevant section of the tariff regulation is reproduced hereunder:

3.14. Aggregate Technical & Commercial Loss as per Vesting Order

3.14.1 The Commisston shall consider the AT&C loss reduction trajectory for tariff
deterrnination as provided in Annexure Il of these Regulstions as per the
terms of the Viesting Orders. The Distribution Licensees would be entitled to
retain any additional gains resulting from its meeling and surpassing the
AT&C loss targets. Thiswould be over and above the return on equity allowed
by the Commission as part of these Regulations and shall not be adfusted as
other income or in any way appropriated through any truing up process or
future Aggregate Revenue Requirementprocess,

,-*'.r. :I
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In line with the illustration provided under regulation 3.14.4 of Tariff Requlation, the gain
arising from over-achlevement of AT&C loss vis-a-vis the regulated AT&C loss provided for
Tariff determination is furnished in the following table.

Table-3: Gain due to AT&C Loss Achlevement

Approved AT&C Loss %,

A 17.09%
Normative Collection Efficiency % B 09.00%
Calculated Distribution Loss % C=1-(1-AVB  16.25%
Actual ATAC Loss achieved % D 14.22%
Actual Collection Efficiency % E 100.48%
Actual Distribution Loss % F 14.61%
Actual Sales MU G 6017.43
Actual Power Purchase MU H 704713
MNormative Power Purchase MU 1=G/(1-C) 7185.21
Additional Power Purchase MU J=H-1 138.08
Aporoved BEP P/U K 335.00
Additional/Less Power Purchase cost

by surpassing the ATAC loss target | Rs.Crs | L=JxK/1000 | _46.26

The ATEC loss level of 14.22% achieved in FY 2023-24 is excluding the armrear collected for
the period prior to vesting. Auditors certificate to that effect is attached as Annexure-|

Therefore, it is most humbly submitted before Hon'ble Commission that, as per the
provisions of Vesting order and Tariff Regulations, the licensee is eligible to retain the
gain amounting to Rs.46.26Crs arising from over achievement of AT&C target, which

may kindly be approved. — '7 ’ﬂ,
5 67




3. EMPLOYEE COST

Hon'ble Commission has allowed Employee cost of Rs.512.79Crs for the financial year 23-
24. The actual expenses incurred towards employee cost in FY 23-24 is Rs.479.39Crs. The
details of the same are presented in the following table:

Table-4: Actual Employee Expenses FY 2023-24 (In Rs. Crs)

Employee cost as per audited P&L Account 467,22
Less: Provision for terminal benefits (53.30)
Add: Actual cash outgo of terminal benefits 6.14
Add: Qutsource manpower cost 59.33

The actual employee cost vis —a —vis approval of Hon'ble Commission for the FY 23-24 is
given in the following table.

Table-5: Employee Cost Approved Vs Actual (In Rs. Crs)

Employee Cost 560.63 529.37 496,10 33.27

Less -Employee cost
capitalized

16.58 16.58 16.70 (0.12)

The actual recruitment done in FY 23-24 was 141 nos. which is well within the approval of
Hon'ble Commission and in line with Hon'ble Commission's direction Wbﬂr of

: PPNO T~
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employees per thousand consumers within 1.4 vide its letter no OERC/RA/TPWODL-
38/2021/18 dated 17.01.2022.

The steps laken by the licensee for optimizing the employee cost are furnished hereunder.
3.1 Steps taken for optimization of Employee Cost:
1. To optimize the employee cost, the licensee has inducted mostly trainees. A
comparative analysis of the no. of recrultments done in the first two years of

operalion and the percentage of trainees inducted year wise depicted in the
following table

Table-6: Recruitment Detalls

(a) (b) (c) (d)
2021-22 524 162 31%
2022-23 518 215 42%
2023-24 141 97 69%

2.,  The average salary of new joinees in executive cadre is around seventy four
thousand in FY 23-24. The average salary of trainees is around twenty four
thousand. The licensee has tried to optimize the no. of employees vis-a-vis
employee cost by inducting more number of Traineas.

An estimation of cost optimization is depicted in the following table. The total cost
with all executives per month would have been Rs.10.43Crs, which has been
reduced by 46% by inducting 69% in trainee level.
—
P
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Table No-T: Employee Cost Optimization
(In Rs. Lacs)

‘New Joinee 1 0.74 [ 44 32.56

Trainees 0.24 a7 23.28
Total Cost per month 55.84
Total cost with all executive (per : '

month) 0.74 | 141 104.34
Cost optimization | 48.50
Cost optimization (%) | 46%

In addition to the above, the licensee has planned recrultment in a staggered manner
for every financial year to optimize the employee cost. The total employees per ‘000
consumer's ratio has been kept within 1.4 as per direction of Hon'ble Commission. The
details are furnished in the following Table.

Table No-8: Employee per Thousand Consumers

Initial manpower as on 1st April 2159 2576 2061
No. of Employees as on 31st March of FY 2576 2961 2001
Average no. of Employees for the year 2368 2769 2976
No. of consumer for the year (Live): 2089083 | 2041588 | 1954513
Total No. of consumer for the year (including PDC) | 2265422

Considering the steps taken by the licensee to optimize the employee cost, Hon'ble
Commission is requested to consider the actual employees cost of Rs. 479.40Crs
(net) as per ttte accounts for truing up for the FY 2023-24 . e




4. REPAIR & MMMCE EXPENSES

Hon'ble Commission had approved Rs. 214.34Crs for R&M expenses for the FY 2023-24
in the RST order for the FY 2023-24. In the ARR application for FY 23-24, outlining the
requirement of a comprehensive repair and malntenance plan, TPNODL proposed total
R&M cost of Rs, 257.19Crs under the broad categories of sub-transmission system,
distribution and others keeping in view the requirement to maintain the network in optimal
manner not only to address the issues of safety and maintenance but also to reduce
technical losses In order to improve its performance on AT&C loss trajectory.

Hon'ble Commission had approved total cost of Rs.214.34Crs for FY 23-24, out of which
Rs. 129.06Crs. was approved by Hon'ble Commission at the rate of 4.5% of the GFA as on
1.04.2023 in line with the OERC Tariff Determination Regulation 2022 and Rs. 50.28Crs
for maintenance of assets under RGGVY, DDUGVY & Biju Gram Jyoti Scheme, which
continue to be with the Govt. of Odisha. Hon'ble Commission had also allowed additional
R&M of Rs.35Crs,

After obtaining approval of Hon'ble Commission towards the R&M expenses for the FY 24
in the Tariff Order for FY 23-24, the licensee had represented before Hon'ble Commission
for reconsideration of the same vide letter no ~-TPNODL/Regulatory/1001 dated 6.4.23 and
letter no —~TPNODL/Regulatory/3523 dated 28.06.23. The approval was accorded slashing
the requirement by over 17%. Such significant reduction in R&M was totally untenable and
likely to severely impact amongst others, the various reliability, preventive maintenance,
safety related Initiatives which were planned to be carried out during the year. In view of the
above, Hon'ble Commission was requested to kindly allow additional R&M cost during true
up based on actual expenditure for FY 23 subject to prudence check in the above letier.

Considering the submission made by the licensee, Hon'ble Commission has been kind
enough to allow the licensee for placing the matter in the ARR application for FY 24-25 vide
letler no-Secy/11-Corr-TPSODL/2023/963 dated 12.7.2023. Relevant extracts of the letter

is reproduced hersunder: :
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s The Commission therefore opines that the TPSODL, TPCODL and TPNODL may
make their submissions with regard to any reconsideration of the approved
expenses, allowed in the ARR FY 2023-24, along with the submissions for the ARR
of FY 2024-25. The Commission may accordingly take a suitable view for any
reconsideration of the approved amounts, under these heads for FY 2023-24, while
pronouncing the order for FY 2024-25."

However, in the RST Order FY 24-25, the issues of disallowances for the FY 23-24 were
not addressed, for which the licensee is placing the issues again before Hon'ble
Commission for reconsideration against the actual expenses incurred and the measures
undertaken by the licensee in transforming the network into a reliable and robust system
network with lower network downtime.

Further, while allowing the R&M Expenses for FY 23-24, it was also recognised by Hon'ble
Commission that the approval based on the GFA is insufficient lo meet the R& M cost. Para
130 of RST Order is reproduced hereunder

“130. The DISCOMs shall make the expenses under R&M In a prudent manner and
achieve the objectives for which these expenses are being made. The additional
expenses have also been allowed under R&M in view of the fact that the approval based
on the GFA is insufficient to meet the cost of R&M. The Commission has also taken

into cognisance of the current year FY 2022-23 expenditure and found that
nal expenses are wired to _m mitted obligations. The

Commission has therefore allowed additional expenses which must be utilised for
the purpose envisaged in the Tariff Regulations, 2022. The Commission will
prudently check such expenses made by the DISCOMs while allowing them in the Truing

up. The expenses in R&M shall also reflect in the achieving a robust and reliable system
network, lower nelwork town time, desirable voltage profile and sutomation of

Subslations. The Commission will also take into account such parameters while
scrutinizing R&M expenseas through data verification, field visits and third party audit, The
Commission hereby directs that the DISCOMs must limit its expenditure within the
armount appraved in the ARR for the FY 2023-24. The Commission also directs that the
TPWODL & TPNODL shall keep a separale fund for mafn!a:’n.‘ﬂgﬁ_{g{enmry for
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materials which will be required for restoration of disaster affected network for all
DISCOMSs. This inventory will be used by other DISCOMSs on transfer basis.”

The actual expenses towards repair and maintenance have been Rs.241.13Crs. in the FY
2023-24. The details of actual GFA as on 1.4.23 and the normative R&M based on the
audited GFA furnished in the following table.

Table No-9: Proposed, Approved Repair & Maintenance (R&M) Expenses and
Normative R&M based on actual (audited) GFA

DISCOM's Gross fixed assets (GFA) as on

01.04.2023 (pre-vesting) 2,199.41 2,199 41
DISCOM's Gross fixed assets (GFA) as on

01.04.2023(post vesting) 668.61 830.09
Total GFA as on 01.04.2023 2,778.83 2,868.02 3,029.50

Gross Value of Meter & Cables 40,96
Total GFA Less Govt. (Fund/Grant) Assets and

Meter & Cable as on 01.04,2023 = 2,699.61
Rate of R & M on GFA 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
Gowt. (Funded/Grant) Assets as on 01.04.2023 2,033.26 1,675.95 288.23
Gowvt. Assets (OPTCL) as on 01.04.2023 2,866.31
Rate of R & M on Govt. (Funded/Grant) Assets 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
Total (C=A+B) 216.14
Additional R & M (D 71.14 35.00 35.00

The normative R&M based on actual opening GFA as on 1.4.23 is R5.216.14 Crs . Hon'ble
Commission has allowed additional R&M of Rs.35 Crs for FY 2023-24. The actual
normative R&M taken with the approved additional R&M of Rs. 35 Crs by Hon’ble
Commission, makes the total normative entitlement of the licensee to Rs 251.14Crs. for
FY 2023-24. The actual R&M expenses incurred in FY 2023-24 is Rs.241.13 Crs , which is
well within the above nqrmn%:ive entitiement and therefore may I:‘Indl?y haangmvad
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Consolidation of the assets created out of Gol /GoO funded schemes attached as Annexure-3,
alongwith the detailed breakup vide communication received from GRIDCO as Annexure-4 and
from OPTCL as Annexure-5.
The actual R&M expenses incurred by the licensee in the FY 23-24 are furnished in the
following table.
Table No-10: Repair & Maintenance (R&M) Expenses FY 2023-24
{In Rs. Crs)

| AMC - Primary Substations & Feeders 85.00
9 Material required for Maintenance of 33 KV
STS MNetwork . e B 4.04
a Testing/Overhauling/Reconditioning of
Transformers 4.77
4 Materials for Repairing/Service of Circuity
Breakers/CT&PT 0.21
S Distribution AMC Contract 121.51
(i1 : " ;
- Distribution Distribution Materials (O/H) 2.99
' Distribution Materials (U/G) . 3.97
8 Material & Services for Distribution Transformer
Repairing 9.48
19 Civil 1.33

The approval vis-a —vis actual expenses as per the audited balance sheet are detailed in
the following table.

Table-11: R&M Expenses Approved Vs Actual (In Rs. Crs)

Repair & Maintenance Cost 214.34

-y
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The relevant extract from the Audited Financial Statements for FY 2023-24 showing R&M
items wise cosl is as provided below:

Extract: R&M Cost- Linkage with Audited Financial Statement FY 2023-24

NOTE 3 Other expenges Year Ended
March 31, 2024
¥ In cromes
Ropaiss and mainvtenance:
{iy Building 1%
() =@t and eguipment Ham
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Various measures taken by the licensee to improve the system reliability are
furnished hereunder:

4.1 Steps taken by the licensee for improving System Reliability:

Proper repair and maintenance of system network is the key to supply reliable and quality
power supply to the consumers. It is pertinent to mention that, the entire network right from
33KV feeders to LT consumers were previcusly owned and maintained only by the Junior
Manager (O&M) along with his team comprising of limited number of Lineman A/B/C,
Helper, and Jr. Technician posted in respective sections. E&AMR section was extending
support to section staff for maintenance of 33/11KV primary substations., As sufficient
manpower was not available, only limited corrective maintenance and mstnraﬂon of power

supply was In place. — I-J {_; -,
~ a .--"' -qr
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To address the above |ssues and for proper maintenance of network, separate AMC has
been introduced post takeover of TPNODL for 33KV and 11KV maintenance to create a
cullure of preventive maintenance.

Annual maintenance contracts for 33 KV network, 11KV & LT network had been established
with expert market agencies for all 5 circles. The natwork is being Inspected regularly
through manual patrolling as well as drone inspection in forest and inaccessible areas.
Thermoscanning is done for the entire network using high power thermo scanning cameras
and to identify the defects, hotspots and attend breakdowns in quick time and perfarm
praventive maintenance aclivities to enhance system reliability by rectifying the probable
faults even before they occur.

The Periormance Based Maintenance Contract also includes 24X7 Breakdowns Crews for
restoration of 33KV & 11KV feeders and substation equipment. Besides, preventive
maintenance activilies are being performed as per the maintenance plan and schedule
prepared by TPNODL using the SAP PM system.

The Annual Maintenance Contracts for maintenance of LT, 11 KV and 33 KV infrastructure,
covers both the infrastructure in the GFA /Books of TPNODL as well as the Govl. Funded
Infrastructure; the Hon'ble Commission shall appreciate that both, the Company owned
Assets as well as those financed by the Government and transferred lo the DISCOM to use
and maintain, form part of the same Distribution Network and consequently require similar
maintenance.

Further, during the performance review for the FY 22-23 by Hon'ble Commission and
discussion in the 34th SAC meeting held on 24.7.23, the DISCOMs have been advised to
ensure manning of all the rural sections in two shift operation and urban section in three
shift. This is to bring out that, TPNODL has been manning rural fuse call centres for no
current complaints, deploying maintenance gang for preventive maintenance of DT and
11KV network, breakdown gang for attending 11KV and LT breakdown in two shifts in rural
areas right from the beginning.

TPNODL sub transmission system comprises of the 115 numbers of 33 KV feeders
emanating from the 33 KV Bus of the OPTCL grids as well as 564 N
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Transformers in 247 Nos. of primary substation (PSS). The 33 KV circuit extends up to
3226CKM in length. Forly-two numbers of consumers are connected al EHT.

The distribution system consists of 853 numbers of 11 KV feeders emanating from 11 KV
Bus of primary substation- as well as 415V/230V LT feeders connected to consumer mains.
The 11 KV circuit length extends up to 41108 CKM. There are around 77688 number of
distribution transformers. The distribution network is most vulnerable to the weather
vagaries as wall as faults.

The licensee has meticulously planned manpower deployment, so that restoration of power
supply could be done within the shortest possible time and proper service could be provided
to the customers.

The following table shows the man power positioning done by the licensee to ensure

seamless operation and zero inconvanience to the consumer.

Table-12(a) and 12(b): For 11KV, LT maintenance and FCC Manning:

Assessment for BA manpower for O&M activities for Total 44 Nos of Urban Sections & 115 nos of
Rural Section, 84 Urban FCC & 627 Rural FCC, 5 Circles, 16 Division

1 SKLM + 1 3 SkLM + 3 1 SkLM + 1
1/ Shift/ Section
Urban | 1/Section | Helper/ShifttFCC Helpers/ Helper/Shift'Section o B
in 3 Shift Section in 3 Shifts
1 SKLM + 1 35kLM + 3 1 SKLM + 1 i
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in 2 Shift Section in %m
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0B 2 N 2 SkLM + 1 Helpers/
kLM +
Circle Nil Circle/Shift
Helper/Shift PSS
4 SkLM + 3
: in 3 Shift Nil
Division 1/Division Helper/Division

The licensee is placing hereunder the comparative achievements in Reliability
parameters in the FY 23-24,

Table-13 —=Reliability Indices in three years of Operation

2021-22 455.51 680.00
2022-23 378.39 621.20
2023-24 348.95 576.45

SAIDI (Hours)

37839




SAIFI (Numbers)

680.00
660.00
640.00
62.00
E00.00
580.00
560,00
540.00
S20.04

6212

' "
202-23 2023-24

As detailed above, System Average Interruption Duration Index has been reduced by 23.4%
over the same in FY 21-22, Similarly, System Average Interruption Frequency Index has been
reduced by 15%.

£021-22

102 nos. of 11KV feeders have been identified as priority feeders which are supplying power
to eritical establishments like Health care centers, etc. and have been identified for targeted
improvement of reliability. Target SAIDI reduction on these feeders has been fixed at 25%
reduction through targeted maintenance activity like replacement of Jumpers and Insulators,
and capex projects for reliability improvements like installation of LT switchgears, Installation
of Auto-reclosures, Ring Main Units, Fault Passage Indicators.

Similar prioritization has been done in 33 KV feeders where thirty-five (35) number of feeders
has been identified as priority feeders for reduction of SAIDI by 25% through targeted
maintenance and Capex infusion for installation and replacement of Switchgears.

An analysis of the power supply reliability to those critical establishments in those priority 11KV
feeders are furnished hereunder: Q
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There has been 23% reduction in SAIDI, 26% reduction in SAIFI in the 11KV Priarity feeders.
Fauit tripping have been reduced by 27% in comparison to last financial year.

The improvement in the reliability parameters in 33KV Priority feeders are furnished in the
following sections
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SAIDI in 33KV priority feeders is 23% lower and SAIFI 28% lower than that in non-priority
feeders.

4.2 Circle-wise Reliability Improvement:
The Circle wise achieved SAID| & SAIF| for the FY 2022-23 & FY 2023-24 are depicted in

the below graphs.
Achieved SAIDI Circle Wise FY 2022-23 Vs FY 2023-24
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The SAIFI and SAIDI figures of Baripada and Keonjhar Circle have increased over the figures
of FY 22-23 mainly due to shuldown of feeders thal were taken for elephant movement.

4.3 Balasore City Reliability Performance

Balasore city is the Head Quarter of TPNODL. In order to create FELT IMPROVEMENT IN
RELIABILITY, the city headguarters are targeted for quantum improvement in SAIDI / SAIFI
through maintenance and capex interventions.

The improvement in Reliability indices in Balasore City is furnished hereunder.
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Table-14: Balasore City Reliability Improvement

Compared SAIDI o _ mpared SAIF of FY
FY 21.22 255.55 Hrs. " FY 21-22 451.24 Nos
FY 22-23 300.38Hrs. | FY22:23 399.70 Nos
| FY2324 185.92 Hrs. FY 23-24 320.94 Nos

4.4 Initiative Taken to Improve Reliability & Safety in Balasore City
The foliowing initiatives have been undertaken to improve Reliability and safety in Balasore City.

« 132/33 KV Chandpur Grid Operational. Overloading reduced on 33KV Balasore-1 & 33KV
Chandipur Feader.

e HT & LT Bare Conductor Replaced with HT Covered Conductor & LT AB Cable which is
reducing Tripping as well as increasing Public safety. 26 Km Underground cable laid (18
Km Balasore GRID to City PSS, 2.5Km drom Sovarampur to Balasore Chowk and 5.5Km
from Cily PSS to Kalimata Mandir PSS)

» In 67 Places Road Crossing Service wire shifting to provide safe path to festival procession
andheavy vahicles (i.e. to reduce Hand trip count)

= FPI Installation in different 11kV & 33kV Feeders/Circult lo identify the fault location quickly,
i.e. Improving SAIDI.

* 1 no. 33KV and 7 nos. 11KV RMUs Installed to back feed from different Source
(PSS/GSS) in case of Plan Outage/ Breakdown in both 33kV & 11kV

» Inorder to increase Power Availability in the consumerpremises, 8 nos. of Auto-Recloser
installed In 11kY feeder to minimize affected consumer in case of Branch Line Fault & to
restore in earliest (with in 300mS3) In the case of Transient Fault

» 466 Nos of LTDB with Protection (MCCB/MCB) Installation done in DTR >100 KVA to improve
LT Protection, which s reducing fault in 11 kV Vollage Level, as a result improving SAIDI &
SAIFI.

4.5 Impact of Auto-Recloser in Reliability Improvement:

Auto-Reclosers play a significant role in improving the refiability of electrical distri
by facilitating Fault Detection and Isolation, Automatic Restoration, Reduced
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in the case of Transient Fault, Improved System Reliability by limiting the Affected Area. In the
Case of Permanent Fault, it helps us to identify the faulty area among the total Feeder.
The following table depicts the saving in SAIDI achieved in Q4 month wise due to auto-
recloser.

Table-15: Impact Assessment Auto-recloser

_J'T otal Interruption at Auto-Recloser H‘

i:T{}tEI Sustained Interruptions 215 103 304
Affected SAIDI(Hrs) 0.91 0.51 1.88
'Saved SAIDI(Hrs) N 2.73 1.23 51
’[,__*_._;.rad SAIDIin% | ms% 1% 73%

Tolal 154812 of Consumer benefited after installation of Auto-Reclosers

4.6 Empowering Reliability through Preventive & Predictive Maintenance Strategies:

Preventive maintenance plays most significant role in reliability improvement. TPNODL
Focuses on proactively identifying and addressing potential issues before they escalate,
theraby minimizing disruptions, optimizing asset performance, and ensuring consistent
power supply to commurities.

4.6.1 Project PTR Care

The licensee is having 247 nos. of PSS, 564 nos. of PTR and 3226 CKm of 33KV line.
Under Project PTR Care, in last Financial Year, Silica ge! replaced in 214 nos., oil
filtration/top-up carried out in 87 PTRs, PTR overhauling done in 39 PTRs, capacity of 17
nos. PTRs augmented/addition done. Below is a brief of the activities carried out.

_—
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Table-18: Status of PTR Maintenance Status of PTR Maintenance in FY24

i

_IiTR Maintenance

Sllica Gel Replacement 214
Qil Top up/Filtration 87
Breather Replacement 61
PTR Overhauling N 38
PTR Upgraded_ Opex 17

Residual Life Analysis of 548
PTR

Major maintenance activity done in last financlal (FY 2023-24) year as below.

Table-17: Major Maintenance Activity done in FY24

ran rthng, '
1 | PTR BACHAD 249
Maintenance
2 PTR Health Index PTR BACHAD 360
3 Leakage Arrest of Oil from PTR PTR BACHADO 78
4 PTR Oil DGA test PARIKSHAN 360
] PTR Preventive Maintenance FM 515
5] CB LIMB/POLE REPLACEMENT 33KV CB 35
T CB LIMB/POLE REPLACEMENT 11KV CB 53
CcB MECHANISM LUBRICATION/
B ) CB an
Maintenance
9 CB Repair- (In House) CcB 61
AB SWITCH/NISOLATOR
10 ; SWITCHYARD 154
MAINTENANCE/Repair
1 LA INSTALLATION/Maintenance SWITCHYARD 1050
12 PSS Preventive Maintenance PM 247
i PSS/Line Thermal Scanning (No's of Haot Spot
Found/Rectified)
%, - >
Ly //




14 Repair/Maintenance of BATTERY CHARGER PM 24
15 Repair/Maintenance of BATTERY BANK PM 1
; MO PSS
16 Switchyard/Control Room Cleaning 247

NIRMALPSS
17 Residual Life Analysis of PTR PTR BACHAD 548

4.6.2 SAP Based Plant Maintenance:

We had Introduced SAP Based Preventive Maintenance & testing of PSS equipment's in SAP.

Table-18; Status of SAP Based Plant Maintenance

To ensure proper protection system of the PSS, New Relay Installation, new battery bank and
charger, New CR Panel installation and LA installation and upkeep carried out. A report on the

same is provided below.

Table-19(a): 33kv Network Protection Plan & Status

Row Labels CLOSED | OPEN CLOSED OPEN CLOSED|OPEN

Balasore 47 & |55 5 5 10 172 91 | 263 328
Baripada 128 g |138 12 6 18 525 B3 | 608 764
Bhadrak 348 8 |358 4] 1 6 155 3 | 158 520
Jajpur 364 12 | 376 34 Bl 38 156 20 |176 590
Keonjhar 71 31 | 102 4 11 15 116 42 | 158 275

C bt

1 |[Relay Installation Capex NA 201 182
2  |PTR Augmentation Capex NA 27 8

3 |NEW CB Instaliation-CB 11KV 1 107 Th
4 ]NEW CB Installation-CB 33KV 8 71
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5 |Battery Bank 44 75

6 [Battery Charger 33 55 15

7 PTR Earthing Capex 10 98 36
T}lﬁflns'téil&if'ﬁ'r{ NA 26 39

9  |CR Panel Installation NA 82 117

10 |ISOLATOR Installation NA 100 204

| Project "NAVIKARAN" PTR

Table-19(b): Maintenance Status of PSS

Life)

1 MNo's 24 a7 ag
Overhauling
2 Relay Setting Coordination % 16 40 65
Al
3 11KV Metering Work No's NA 776 NA
Completad
Al
4 33KV Metering Work No's NA 222 NA
Completed
5 PTR Maintenance in SAP No's MA 515 544
& | PTR Health Index No's | NA 285 360 |
7 PTR Augmentation _Opex MNo's M, 18 17
PTR Residual Analysis (% All
8 No's NA MNA 548
Completed

4.6.3 33KV Line Upkeep

Towards the 33KV line upkeep, 2720 nos. of Tilted poles & V Cross arm straightened, 4150

conductor rejumpering carried out, 26121 nos. of PIN insulators replaced.

Crossing of the huge 384Mir span of Subarnarekha River & 290 Mir span on Budabalanga
river with two interposing PC type towers at both sides of the river completed. This project
has helped in providing a reliable power supply to more than 30,000
Rajghat PSS, Gao Amarda PS5 & Manatri.PSS.

27
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Table-20: Maintenance Status of 33 kV Line

Tilted Poles & Cross arm
istraightened
Conductor Re-Jum paring

1Replacemant of Pin Insulators

Tree Trimming (spans)
Intermediate Pole Erection, (Critical)

4.6.4. Project Raksha

Further, our 11KV system network comprises of 77,688 DTRs and 41,108 Ckt Km of 11KV
line. Steps taken for the upkeep of 11KV system network outlined hereunder. Under project
Raksha, oil filtration/top up, HTILT Bushing replacement, Oil leakage checking,
Breather/Silica Gel replacement, repairing /new DTR Body earthing, replacement of burnt
socket, augmentation of DTs has been carried out. Brief of the activities are furnished In the
following table.

Table-21: Maintenance Status of DTR

DTR AB Switch Repaired | Nos. | 8239

New DTR AB Switches

Installed Nos. 870

LA Installed Nos. 8440

Neutral Earthing Repaired /

Installed Nos. 10985

DTR Vegetation removal Nos. 41092

HG / DD Fuse Replaced Nos. 15180
ocket Replaced Nos. 46652

Kil Kat Fuse Installed Nos. 8955

L.oad Balancing Nos. 4817

3y b _




4.6. 5. 11KV Network Upkeep
Steps taken for DSS maintenance, 11KV line maintenance and lo maintain the network
hygiene are briefed in the following table:

Table-22: 11KV Network Upkeep

Tree Trimming / |41092| Pin Insulator | 39507 | Tree Timming/ | 203724 |
Vegetation Replaced Vegetation Removal
Removal (Span) (Span)

DTR Oil BDV Test 1223 | Load Balancing | 4817 |insulated Jumpers Instl] 36122
Done Done /Replaced

LA Installation | 8440 | LA Earthing 993 Installation of
Repaired Interposing Poles

Line A/B Switch
repaired / Replaced

4.6.6 LV Side Protection of DTRs
Beside the above, 2897 nos, of distribution substations have been refurbished and power

cable replaced in 269 nos of DSS,
For the LT side protection of DTR, the steps taken are briefed in the following table:
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Bhadrak 140 171 163
Baripada 162 171 829
Jajpur 161 181 785
Keonjhar 143 140 751
Total BE6O 1243 3873
T Dee——— NEVTRIPPING
. FY4: 5803 | F:l 9175:
420
2465 8180 | 93408 |
1612 1525, 1566 | 18087 W52, 00 23976
N BT 1 In
Q1 Q2 Q3 @ || @ Qs Q3 Qo+ i
WFY2253  WFYZ3.24 ! ‘ il L |
4.6. 7 Technical Loss Reduction

The technical loss reduction achieved during FY 22, FY 23 & FY 24 are furnished in the
following tables.
Table-24(a): TPNODL 33 KV Technical Loss Assessment FY22




Jajpur 148.76 | 8.11 0.45 0.58 0.70 9.84 | 4.0
Keonjhar | 109.5 | 4.37 0.30 0.21 0.37 525 | 3.18
TPNODL | 743.23 37.53 2.18 297 3.28 4506 | 3.86

Table-24(b): TPNODL 33 KV Technical Loss Assessment FY23

Balasore | 287.16 | 12.01 0.52 0.94 1.03 145 | 3.26
Baripada | 133.76 | 4.87 0.65 0.86 0.49 6.87 | 3.85
Bhadrak | 111.05 | 5.83 0.32 0.31 0.50 6.96 3.7
Jajpur 164.79 | 7.67 0.31 0.39 0.64 9.01 3.8
Keonjhar | 110.3 | 3.09 0.34 0.19 0.28 390 | 2862
TPNODL | 807.06 | 33.47 2.14 2.69 2.94 41.24 | 3.47

Table-24(c): TPNODL 33 KV Technical Loss Assessment FY24

Balasore | 291.59 | 9.73 0.51 0.83 0.92 1198 | 263
|Baripada | 150.81 | 6.14 0.42 0.32 0.57 745 | 371
lBhadrak | 127.20 | 3.98 0.31 0.38 0.39 506 | 3.8
Jajpur 196.47 | 7.91 0.31 0.37 0.72 9.31 4.43
IKeonjhar | 137.02 | 3.84 0.35 0.25 0.37 4.82 234
TPNODL | 902.18 | 31.60 1.9 215 297 3862 | 3.25

Table-25({a): TPNODL 11 KV Technical Loss Assessment FY22




Baripada| 156.77 | 6.99 0.94 123 | 070 | 0986 516
Bhadrak | 13257 | 6.19 0.79 074 | 059 @ 831 4.66
Jajpur 160.01 | 6.22 1.05 1.35 066 | 9.28 3.95
Keonjhar| 109.65 | 4.13 0.61 0.63 0.41 579 4.1
TPNODL 739.07 | 37.26 4,68 . 6.00 3.68 5162 | 4.83

Table-25(b): TPNODL 11 KV Technical Loss Assessment FY23

Balasore 234.07 10.56 0.99 1.87 1.01 1414 |  4.41
[Baripada 136.52 6.54 0.88 1.15 0.66 923 | 4.29
[Bhadrak 132.54 6.16 0.54 0.82 0.59 821 | 4.32
ajpur 159.12 4,87 1.34 1.06 0.56 783 | 335
[Keonjhar 109.68 4,08 0.61 0.63 0.41 573 | 407
TPNODL 77193 | 32.21 4.36 5.34 3.22 4513 4.00

Table-25(c): TPNODL 11 KV Technical Loss Assessment FY24

lasore | 276,87 | 9.47 0.99 1.50 1.00 | 1296 4.34
Baripada | 16821 | 6.15 0.81 1.18 068 880 4.1
Bhadrak | 163.45 | 7.04 0.82 1.13 0.75 9.74 4.6
Jajpur | 167.68 | 4.09 1.34 0.98 053 = 6.94 4.02
Keonjhar | 114.86 | 3.51 0.62 1.36 0.46 5.95 3.88
TPNODL | 891.07 | 30.27 4.58 6.13 3.40 44,39 4.0

4.8. Disaster Mitigation Strategy-direction in RST Order FY 2024-25

Under para 130 of the RST order FY 23-24, Hon'ble Commission has recognized that
additional expenses are required to meet the committed obligations by the DISC!‘JMS As
the order states " The Commission has therefore allowed additional expe
be utilized for ’ma purpursa anvimged in the Tariff Regulations, 2!322
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Hon'ble Commission has directed for keeping a separate fund for maintaining an inventory
for materials which will be required for restoration of disaster affected network for all
DISCOMs. However, this was not specifically or separately quantified that the additional
35Crores issued to TPNODL and 60Crores issued to TPWODL will be utilized for
maintaining the inventory which will be required for restoration of disaster affected network
of the DISCOMs. Further, Hon'ble Commission has mentioned categorically that this
additional R&M allowed must be utifized for the purpose envisaged in the Tariff Regulation,
2022,

Tariff Regulation, 2022 under 3.9.23 says —

“3.9.23. The Commission may also allow special R&M , in order to enable the Distribution
Licensee to undertake critical activities which are not covered under Capital Investment
plan approved by the Commission.

Provided the Commission shall undertake a prudence check before allowing such
expenditure.”

This Is to submit before Hon'ble Commission that, since 1% April, 2021, the licensee has
always worked in a very focused manner to upgrade the system network and deliver best
possible supply and service to the consumers. Delalled improvement in reliability achieved
and the measures undertaken have been elaborated in the previous paras.

Further, the licensee has maintained a disaster mitigation rolling fund since FY 23-
24, TPNODL has a comprehensive Preparedness, Disaster Response / Restoration Plan
& Restoration Management SOPs & Stralegies before & after Cyclone or any such natural
disaster.

A Rolling Material Bank, funded from the annual O&M budget, to ensure the availability of
critical resources and equipment needed for immediate response during disasters |s being
maintained. We conduct regular reviews of the rolling material inventory to asgess its
adequacy and relevance. Any necessary replenishments or updates are madl_a baaed on
evolving disaster managEmEnt needs and technological advancaments
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And, if not used In any such natural disaster, the materials are diverted for use in other
warks and again replenished and stock is built up before the season.

We have identified 163 strategic locations under different divisions as detailed in the
following table and pole slock as on May 24 in those locations are also furnished in the

following table.

Table-26: Identified locations for material stock

C L

AED, Anandpur g 297
KED Keonjhar g 179
JED Joda 8 28
BED Balasore 8 300
CED Balasore 1 407
BTED Basta 6 120
SED Soro 15 692
JED Jaleswar 9 526
BED Baripada 17

RED Rairangpur 13

UED Udala 5

BNED Eﬂrﬁk 16

—




BSED Bhadrak 8 3r7

~ JRED Jajpur Road 8 279
JTED Jajpur Town 10 189
KUED, Kuakhia 11 323
mm ] — ’ﬁ | _ ................. -m ==

Out of the allowed Rs.10Crs for FY 24-25, besides other materials stored, the pole stock
amounting to Rs.4.17Crs have been maintained at the above strategic locations as delailed
in the above table. However, no fund has been transferred to TPWODL, as we have to
maintain the materials in readiness at the strategic locations at our end. Besides the
material bank, the manpower deployment and other ancillary expenditures will also be
required. Therefore, the licensee has maintained a rolling material bank at strategic
locations for immediate restoration of power supply on occurrence of any such natural
disaster.

In case of transferring the fund and materials at another DISCOM and transportation to the
strategic locations of other DISCOM at the time of need will involve substantial time.
Further, on non-utilization of the stock, they need to be used up and replenished in a very
structured cyclic manner which is smoothly done by malintaining the stock at our level.

In view of the above, the licensee had requested , Hon'ble Commigsion to kindly approve
the maintenanca of fund as well as the rolling material bank for disaster mitigation at our
end, In place of transferring the fund to another DISCOM vide letter no-
TPNODL/Regulatory/2024/5304 dated 7.8.24.

In RST order FY 23-24, the fund specifically to be utilized towards disaster mitigation was
not mentioned. However, the RST Order for the FY 2024-25 was notified on 13™ Feb, 2024,
detailed order came on 5% March, 2024. In the detailed order under para 150, Hon'ble
Commission has directed to maintain a designated 'Disaster Resilient Fund' by all the four
DISCOMs to meet any unforeseen contingencies/disaster in future. For this Commission
has allowed Rs.10Crs to each DISCOM. Further, Hon'ble Commission has directed to
transfer such allocated amount to ‘Disaster Resilient Fund' to be maintained by TPWODL.
Further, Hon'ble Commission has observed that the fund is having an opening balance of

Rs.95 Crs, out of the special R&M approved to TPWODL and TPNODL in the F\;gaﬁ?-&arﬂ
) b ¢ j'..
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along with Rs.10Crs approved for each DISCOM that will amount fo Rs.135 Crs for FY
2024-25,

This is to submit that, by the time the detailed order came, only 26 days were left for
completion of the financial year. It is perinent to mention here that, we have to plan our
R&M expenditure well in advance adhering to the approved amounts and the minimum
committed obligations. The amount approved by Hon'ble Commission for FY 23-24 was
only Rs.214.34Crs against the proposed Rs.257.19Crs. Tariff Regulation also envisages
utilization of additional R&M to undertake critical activities which are not covered under
Capital Investment plan approved by the Hon'ble Commission.

The jurisdiction of TPNODL encompasses almost one third of the coast line of Odisha and
almost 80% of its jurisdiction always witnesses severe damage on cyclones. In the
concerned season, the network |s also badly affected by Kalbaisakhi and also due to flood.
This will not be out of place to mention that, even though TPNODL started operation on 1%
April,2021 and the network was affected by YAAS cyclone on 268" May,2021, power
supply to the critical establishments like district HQ and Public Health Centres were
restored within 6Hrs on the same day . Eighty percent power supply restoration was
completed within 48Hrs. TPNODL's disaster mitigation drive was also appreciated by Gowt.
of Odisha.

For taking up the restoration work expediously, we keep the rolling material bank ready at
identified strategic locations and also fund in hand. Transferring fund to another DISCOM
and recelving material or fund on requisition al the time of need on transfer basis will
adversely affect the restoration time.

Therefore, we would request Hon'ble Commission to allow us to maintain the fund
alongwith the material bank in a cyclic manner at our end, so that we will be able to
take up the restoration work within the shortest possible time.

Itis also requested to kindly consider the additional R&M expenditure of Rs.35 Crs. allowed
in FY 23-24 against the activities undertaken by the licensee for improving the system

reliability under the R&M-head. 0 A "‘_v.-'-;_
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In view of the steps taken by the licensee to Improve the system reliability and quality
of power supply and the normative R&M entitlement of the licensee based on the
actual (audited) opening GFA for the FY 2023-24, Hon'ble Commission Is requested
to kindly allow Rs. 241.13Crs for FY 2023-24 towards R&M expenses.

5. ADMINISTRATIVE & GENERAL EXPENSES

Hon'ble Commission has approved A&G Expenses of Rs.120.13Crs agalnst the proposed
140.08Crs. The actual A&G expenses have been Rs. 143.96Crs. in FY 2023-24. The details
are furnished in the following table:

Table-27: A&G Expenses for FY 2023-24 {in Rs. Crs)

[ Rent, Rates & Taxes 2,46

1
2 Communication 218
3 Legal, Consultancy & Professional Charges 8.64
4 | Conveyance & Travelliing 16.25
5 Licence & Related Expenses 2.58
6 | Advertisement Expenses (Public Relation) 274
7 Metering, billing and collection expenses 82.71
8 Printing & Stationary 1.44
9 | Enforcement Activities 0.65
10 | Safety & Ethics 0.07
11 Insurance 3.85
12 | House Keeping 0.32
13 | Employee Welfare Expenses 3.08
14 | Cutsource manpower cost 59.34
15 | Other Expenses/ Customer Care Call Center 16.98
16 Adminnist;raﬁva-& General Expenses as per Audited 203.30
17 Less: -Outsourced manpower cost considered under Em- 59.34
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Legal consultancy and professional charges of Rs,1.09Crs and Rs.1.04 Crs compensation
expenses have been incurred in matters pertaining lo the pre-vesting period, as detailed in
the above table. Hon'ble Commission is requested to kindly approve the same.

The proposed A&G, approval of Hon'ble Commission for FY 23-24 vis-a —vis actual (audited)
expenses are detailed in the following table,

Table-28: A&G Expenses Approved Vs Actual (In Rs. Crs)

Admi nisrava

140.08 120.13 143.96 {23.83)
General Expenses

The relevant extract from the Audited Financial Statements for FY 2023-24 showing A&G
cosl items is as provided below:

Extract: A&G Cost- Linkage with Audited Financial Statement FY 2023-24

NOTE 31 Other expenses Year Ended
March 31, 2024
Ein crores
Fapsirs and mamienincs
{i} Buikding 132
(i) Phant and squipmant 23881
(W} Vmhicles and Office aquipmant 056
[ Rent a8 Y
Consuancy fess rafer note 31 1) 75
rgms 247
278
a2s
600
212
208
520/
60.78
19
210
13523
Frovisions for elaims and compenestion 1.04
Directors sitting faes 0.88
CSR expanditure (refer note: 31.2) g7
Miscellanaous expaises: 113
Loia on setimmant of proparty, plant and squipman 070

The major steps taken in FY 2023-24 involves establishing Customer care centres al each
division and PDC linked Anubhav Kendras, for facilitating a place at stomer
convenience for addressing their grievances and for carrying out Bss
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programs and conducting training programs that are being undertaken mainly for creating
public awareness to check the public fatalities thal are being noticed alongwith stringent
enforcement activities to check unauthorised abstraction of electricity. This also includes
Rs.2.13Crs A&G expenses incurred towards Legal consullancy and professional charges
and compensation expenses in matters pertaining to pre-vesting period, which is over and

above the projected expenses.

5.1. Customer Facility Improvement

TPNODL has established 16 nos. of Customer care centres, with one in each division. Each
Customer Care centre is equipped with one Customer Relationship Executive, two
Customer Care Executives and one Cashier for registration of Customer grievances and
follow —up for clesure. The Customer care centres are also providing a point for the
customers to pay their electric bills, Similarly, in each section, we have established one PDS
linked Anubhav Kendra in one model Gram Panchayat, so that the customer coming to the
PDS centres can be facilitated with a place lo register their grievance, if any and pay their
bills at one stop.

5.2. Public Awareness

A number of public fatalities are being noticed which are mainly occurring due to two broard
reasons

1. Coming in contact with live line/netwark while unauthorizedly interfering with the network
2. Coming in contact with live line/network unmindfully or due to lack of awareness

Hon'ble Commission has also advised DISCOM to take necessary steps to increase public
awareness so thal those public fatalities could be avoided.

The licensee has always given priority to safety, awareness and training, Extensive
awareness programs through print and electronic media, through awareness vans, nukkad
nataks, programs in schools, customer meels are being organised to increase public

awareness. For conducting those programs and facility management at the ﬁp@?ﬁ&q
points, extra cost is being Incurred. Some of the programs are as follows A




(i) E-Hakathon safety ideation workshop - Associated with Tata Sons -its a journey
to identify existing potential challenges in the operational safety and prioritising them

{ii) Tala Health and Safety Management system certified training program-

Team TPNODL adopted Tala Health and Safety Management system during FY
25.As a first step, a certified 2-day Train the Trainer program was carried out for 29
nos of employees by TBEX, Tata Group during February 24. After rigorous
assessment, results declared with certification of participation, Gold, Silver and
Bronze categories.

The trainers then carried out 16 nos of Cross division THSMS assessment PAN
TPNODL and created awareness amongst the l|eadership teams across
divisions/circles. A Third party assessment was also carried out through Mfs ACT
International nominated by Tata Power during the Q2 FY 25.

Keeping in view the critical need to drastically reduce the AT&C Losses, special emphasis
was required to improve the billing and collection efficiencies. The licensee has put
structurad effort to reduce ATA&C Loss like focused collection drives, sustaining excellent
OCR based Meter reading, Data Sanitization etc. It is pertinent to mantion here that, by
these |nitiatives unigque consumer coverage has increased from 68% in FY23 to 96% in
FY24 & percenlage of provisional bills have been brought down from 5.8% to 1.3%.
Impravement in various parameters are detailed in the following sections.

5.3. Billing Efficiency Improvement:
Billing Efficiency reached to 85.39% at the end of the FY'24 from 83.62% In FY'23.

After successfully MBC Contract separation in FY23, Dedicated Billing team working at the
field for Single Phase Billing for better billing coverage. Billing coverage reached up-to
98.59% at the end of FY24.

100% MRU wise Billing for Slab adherence & better Customer Service, Each of the Binder
area split in small blocks with pre-defined reading date range lo maintain efficiency &
regularity.

OCR Based Meter Reading being introduced for error free meter reading in F’l‘%ﬁ
OCR based meter reading has reached to 96%. This Integrated Mobile dppficatic
el Sy . _
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enable auto reading fetching through scanning of meter display leaving little scope of any
wrong reading. Analyse the consumption data of each low Consumption cases to identify
anomalies in consumption pattern. This helps in identification of Faulty meters & Theft
probability.

5.4 Collection Efficiency Improvement:

Collection Efficiency achieved in FY 24 is more than 97% in every quarter except in1®
quarter where the collection efficiency was 92.58% and it reached to 107.15 % in Q4 of FY-
24.

Disconnection drives using Disconnection Order( DO) app has been strengthened for timely
disconnection of defaulter consumers. Specific drives Like “Project Shikhar” for arrear
collection (ECL Consumer) and Bill revision Camps have been conducted to address the-
consumer needs. 123 MW unauthorized load has been booked & Rs. 40 Crs. theft
assessment recovered with special drives. Village Camps conducted under Project Nishtha
to resolve commercial issues/disputes |
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Trend of Billing Efficiency (BE) & Collection Efficiency (CE)

250,00%

108.18% 107.15%
200.00% 92.58% ikl

150.00%

.47 i
100.00% B5.47% B5.96% 83.83% 856.20%

50,00

0.00%
Frraql Fr2anz FY 2403 FY 24 04

Mass LT collection drive named project “LT Vijaypath 2.0" for rapid revenue collection from
LT consumers carried out. Record LT collection of Rs. 208 Cr. in March-24 has been
achleved.

5.5 Improvement in AT&C Loss Reduction:

TPNODL has adopted multi-pronged approach for reduction of AT&C loss. For recovery of
arrears and for surveillance of defaulter consumers, division wise revenue recovery team
has been deployed with proper system-based execution & monitoring application. On the
other hand, respective field teams at Circle, Division, Sub-Division and Sections are
empowered to resolve billing issues of consumers. To supplement the above two specific
revenue collection initiatives are conducted along with public communications with
consumers. TPNODL has also promoted various digital avenues along with attractive
Rebate offer for consumers for paying digitally. In the billing potion TPNODL deployed
more than 96% OCR based billing for Single Phase consumers which lead our actual
billing to reach 96%. This multi fold approaches has been fruitful in bringing down the
AT&C loss.

All the above initiatives have contributed towards reduction in AT&C loss (Excluding Past
Arrears) from 25.17% at the beginning of FY 22 to 14.22% at the end of FY 24,
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AT&C Loss (%) Commitment VS Achievement
45.00%
29.23%
30.00%
25 1?1"'9_ 24 37%,
mOK T B
20.00% e 17.80%
19.74% 14.22% AN
15.00% .
10.00%
FY-21 Fy-22 Fy-23 Fy-24 FY-25 Fy-26
—+—Target AT&C(%) —  Achieved AT&C(%)

Further, advanced Technology adoption and analytics have been the prime focus of the
licensee to provide quality customer services, manage revenue cycle processes for
reduction of AT&C losses and efficiently manage to deliver reliable and quality supply in
safe manner to its consumer by meeting various standards of operation.

Therefore, in view of the steps taken by the licensee for improving the service
standards to the customer as well as the for public awareness programs, Hon’ble
Commission is requested to consider the actual A&G expenses incurred in FY 23-24
amounting to Rs.143.96 Crs. for truing up. The additional amount over and above the
norms as per regulation may please be approved as additional A&G which is very
much required to create public awareness and the facility managements for proper
registration and Redressal of customer grievances.

6. PROVISION FOR BAD & DOUBTFUL DEBT

Hon'ble Commission had allowed Rs.35.59 Crs. towards provision for bad and doubtful
debts. Taking benchmark of collection efficiency 99%., 1% of total sales in the FY 2023-24,
Rs.36.76 Crs. has been considered towards provision of Bad and Doubtful debt. The details
are furnished in the foliowing lahie}
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Table-29: Bad & Doubtful Debt for FY 2023-24  (In Rs. Crs)

1 Gross revenue as per tariff 3,622.82
2 | Recovery of meter rent 44.61

3 Over drawal payment recovered L 8.42

4

Total Revenue 3,675.85

For true up, Hon'ble Commission Is requested to allow Rs.36.76Crs towards
provision of bad and doubtful debt for the FY 23-24,

7. DEPRECIATION

For FY 2023-24, Hon'ble Commission has approved Rs.49.83Crs towards depreciation in the
Tariff order notified on 23.3.2023. The method of calculation of depreciation after vesting of
the Utility In TPNODL has been specified under clause 39(g) and (h) of the Vesting Order
dated 25.3.2021 in case no -9/2021.

The relevant extracts are reproduced hereunder:

“39 (g) The capital investments made by TPNODL shall be allowed recovery of depreciation
in line with the rates prescribed in Annexure — 3 till the time applicable regulation is notified
by the Commission. The depreciation rates specified in reguilations shall prevail over the
rates specified in Annexure — 3 & and when applicable regulation is notified by the
Commission.

(h)Depreciation on all existing assels transferred lo TPNODL shall be determined based on
the existing methodology being followed by the Commission."”

Accordingly, for the FY 2023-24, Rs. 62.06Crs has been considered towards
depreciation (Net off Govt. grant- consumer contribution amurtizat[ﬂn} fnum] up,
which may kindly be appﬂ:vad by Hon'ble Commission,

a 2?5,,,}
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8. INTEREST COST

Hon'ble Commission has allowed Interest cost including the interest on SD to the tune of Rs,
110.32 Crs. for the FY 2023-24 in the Tariff Order dated 23.3.2023.
Relevant extract from Tariff order is reproduced hereunder;

Table-30: Total Annual interest Approved for FY 2023-24 (In Rs. Crs)

‘ Interest on capex loan/long term debt 31.47

' Interest on security deposit ' 51.83
Interast on WC loan 27.02
Total interest before capitalization 110.32

As per the OERC (Terms and conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tarifi and Retail
Supply tariff) Regulations, 2022, Interest on working capital shall be allowed as follows.

“3.10.1 The Distribution Licensee shall be allowed interest on the estimated level of working
capital for the Wheeling and Retail supply business for the Financial Year. The working
capital for the purpose of ARR calculation shall be computed as follows:

a. Operation and maintenance expenses for one month; plus

b. Maintenance spares @ twenty (20) % of average R&M expense for one month;
plus
¢, Power Purchase Cost for one (1) month

Working Capital requirement of the Distribution Licensees may be mel through
depreciation allowed by the Commission on the assets of erstwhile DISCOMSs ina
manner mentioned in the Vesting Orders and as approved by the Commission.
Shortfall in meeting the working capital requirement as mentioned above shall be
allowed., The inferest on the working capital shall be at a rate equal to the SBI Base
Rate or any replacement thereof by SBI from time to time (being in effect applicable
for 1 year period) as applicable as on 1%April of the Financial Year (for which Truing

Up shall be done) plus 300 basis points or actual weighted EWW interest
-I_lr""'-'-'-._
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towards loan for meeting working capital requirement availed by the Distribution
Licensee(s), whichever Is lower”

Accordingly, TPNODL has derived the working capital requirement and interest there on as
detailed in the following table

Table-31: Interest on Working Capital and Security Deposits (Normative} FY 2023-24

{In Rs, Crs)
Si. No. | Particulars
1 | Operation & maintenance expenses
Employee cost 479.40 479.40
R& M Expenses 241.13 241.13
A8G Expenses 143.96 143.06
Total O&M 864.50 864.50
Operation & maintenance expenses Per annum 864.50 864.50
2 Operation & maintenance expenses Per month 72.04 72.04
3 Power purchase cost for one month 214.82 214.82
Maintenance of spare@20% of R&M Expenses
4 for one manth by e
5 Depreciation on Legacy asset -10.18 -10.19
TOTAL 280.69 280.689

king Capita
security deposils
arest including interest o

Interest on security Deposit of Rs.50.46Crs has been considered as per actuals in the annual
audited accounts. Normative interest on working capital Rs. 22.72Crs, actual interest on
working capital as per Audited accounts is Rs.19.79Crs. As per section 2.14 of OERC Tariff
Regulations, 2022, the sharing of on account of improved performance —refinancing of high
cost loan with low cost loan is proposed in the following table-

-
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Table-32: Sharing of gain on improved performance {In Rs. Crs)
1 Operation & maintenance expenses Per month 72.04
2 FPower purchase cost for ong month 214.82
3 | Maintenance of spare@20% of R&M Expenses 4.02
4 | Gross total 290.88
5 | Less: Dep. On Legacy asset (10.19)
6 Total 280.69
7 | Actual Interest rate on WC 8.10%
8 | Interest on working capital 22,72
9 | Actual Interest on WC 19.79
10 | Gain on account of improved performance 2.04
11 | Retained (1/3) 0.98
12 | TBR (1/3) 0.98
13 | Passed on (1/3) 0.98

Hon’ble Commission is requested to allow Rs.73.18 Crs towards interest on working

capital and interest on SD.

9. INTEREST ON LONG TERM LOAN ON NORMATIVE BASIS

As per clause no. 3.5.1 of Tariff Regulation, 2022, in case of fixed asset capitalized on
account of capital expenditure incurred prior to April 1, 2023, debt equity ratio as allowed by
the Commission for determination of tariff for the period ending March 31, 2023 shall be

considerad,

MNormative loan for the FY 23-24 considered Rs.394.99Crs.

The detalls are furnished in the following table

Table-33: Interest on Long Term Loan FY 2023-24

Opening Balance

Loan Taken during the year

Repayments during the Year(Equal to Depreciation)

Closing Balance

i & ) M| =

Average Balance
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6 Rate of lntarest 7.05% 8.42%

Capital Faa!iun

9 Funded by :
10 | Debt (70%) 285.96 394.99
11 | Equity (30%) 112255 | 169.28

Therefore, Hon’ble Commission is requested to consider normative interest on Term
Loan of Rs 40.81Crs for true —up for the FY 2023-24.

10. RETURN ON EQUITY

Return on Equity has been claimed as per clause 54 of vesting order. Relevant extracts of
the Vesting order reproduced hereunder
54. Return on equity:
{a} As per the terms of the RFP, the Commission shall allow return on equity,
as per the Tariff Regulations, to TPNODL on the equity capital of Rs. 250

crores (Indian Rupee Two hundred and fifty crores) only which was the
reserve price of the utllity of NESCO.

(b} Return on equity shall be allowed on the reserve price of the utility as per

para 54(a) above and also on the capital investments made by the TPNODL,
as per the Tariff Regulations.

Table No- 34: Details of Gross Fixed Asset {In Rs. Crs)

GFA as per Stalutory Auditor Cerlificate | 302953 | 4067.11

- Tangible assats 297263
- Intangible assets 56.90 98.90
Less : Assets taken over as on effective date 547.11 543.03
2 | Less:-Asset under consumer contribution 1677.37 1958.37
3 | Less:-Asset under government grant ; ‘ﬂ M },. 286.44 392.68
‘%c- £
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4 | Less:-Meter capex 43.69 133.84
5§ | GFA as per OERC capex (own) cumulative 474.92 1039.19
6 | GFA as per OERC capex (own) annual 408.51 564.28
e 5,?;3'; j@ 30% of asset addition during the year (SI No 12 P ——
8 E :;:; % 70% of asset addition during the year (S| No | 285 .96 39499

Cenified copy of SRB & Associates (Statutory Auditor) for Gross Fixed Asset (GFA) as on
31.03.2024 is provided below:

Extract: Certified copy of SRB & Associates (Statutory Auditor) for Gross Fixed Asset

(GFA)
STHELOCR 10O TOWER, JANAMTH
= BHUBANESWAR - 731 022, ODt
SHH & Associates TEL - 674 - 2541043, 2545840
Emallinfoderband s ociates. in
IMDIA CHARTERED ACCOUMNIANTS urbbbar{lamslt com
CERTIFICATE

Herewith we cestify that the Gross Fixed Assets (GFA) of TP Northern Odigha Distribution Umited
(TPNODL) as on March 31, 2024 Is ¥ 4057, 11crores. This indudes Gross Assets taken over by
TPNOOL from Northern Electricity Supply Company (NESCO ) pursuant to vesting order issued by the
Odisha Eleciricity Aegulatory Commisslon ('OERC') dated March 25, 2021, the Company acuired
the business of distributing power in Narthem Odicha (business”) from NESCD with effect frem Apell
1, 2021 {date of vesting order)

Year-wise breskup is as provided in below table.

in ¥ eroem
Gress Pled Lu Groma Floed
[ T [em— Agget apen | Mat Aodtion |Net Addtkn Met Addtlen| Asset =s on
Aprli 01, FYIN-2F | FY LI-33 | FY 23-I4 Maich 31,
EL=5
(a) i8] i<} (o] {A+B4C4+D)
1 | TANGIELE 1
18] |auisngs 559 402 E0.84 B7.31% L3735
i s aquipmeert Inchading
(k] |mwnémEsion ines and cabie 2,184 68 14005 512.34 50180 3739 6E
] .55 [ET] 118 [ E 17
1) 1346 oA 508 162 1300 |
(e} eqUpmETs &.33 1517 3300 I1A3 75,33
'r_ullnl 2.199.41 18L18 E13.04 887 396830
3 |IwTARGInLE - 1841 3748 4301 5801
[ Totat Groes Feoed Aseat 2,590,481 18060
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The Tariff Regulations, 2022 permit recovery of income {ax paid in the ARR. The relevant
extract from the Tariff Regulations, 2022 is provided below.

3.11.1 The Income Tax for the Distribution licensee for the regulated business shall be
allowed through the Tariff charged to the Distribution System users, on submission of
documentary evidence of the aclual tax paid subject to the conditions stipulated in these
Regulafions:

Provided that no Income Tax shall be considered on the amount of efficiency gains
and incentive approved by the Commission, irrespective of whether or not the
amount of such efficiency gains and incentive are billed separately;

Provided further that no Income Tax shall be considered on the amount of incorme from
Delayed Payment Charges or Interest on Delayed Payment or Income from Other
Business, as well as on the Income from any source that has not been considered for
computing the Aggregate Revenue Requirement:

In line with the above provisions of Tariff Regulations,2022 and provisions of Vesting
order, ROE and Tax on RoE has been calculated . The details are furnished in the
following table

Table No-35: Return on Equity (ROE)

| Particutars | Frae
1 Opening Equity 204,94
2 Addition during the FY 12255
3 Closing Equity 417.49
4 Average Equity 356.22
5 Retumn on equity % 16%
6 Return on equity (ROE) 56.99
7 Tax on ROE 1917

Hon'ble Commission is requested to allow ROE of Rs. 80.34 Crs and income tax of
Rs. 27.02 Crs for FY 2023-24 on actual outgo basis. #s ‘;D T%
>~
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11. Non-Tariff Income

The netted off Non-tariff income for FY 2023-24 is Rs.112.49 Crs. The detailed breakup is
produced in the following table.

Table-36: Non-Tariff income FY 2023-24 {In Rs. Crs.)

1 Amortisation of consumer contribution T76.54
5 mrrgsaﬂun of Govt Grants in capital 14.98
3 Amortisation of Govt Grants in Reve- 0.93
nue nature
4 Recovery of Meter Rent 44 .61 11.79
5 Overdrawal penalty recovered 8.42 8.42
6 Incentives on arrear Collection 15.60 -
7 Open Access Cross Subsidy Income 22.55 22.55
B Supervision Charges 16.16 16.18
9 Miscellaneous operaling Income 1.33 1.33
10 | Interest Income 84.51 74.23
11 Delayed payament surcharge 13.15 13.15
12 | Other Income 14.11 14.11
43 | Sharing of gain on saving of interest 0.08
on working capital loan (1/3rd)
16 | Less: Rebate offered to consumers -50.23
16 Total 31219 112,49
Less
17 Amortisation of consumer contribution 76.54
18 m;ﬂglaatiun of Govt Grants in capital 14.98
19 mu:;ﬁtr:n of Govt Grants in Reve- 0.3
20 Total Amortisation 91.75




The Hon'ble Commission at para 203 of the Tariff Order FY 2024-25 while setting the principles
for True up has stipulated that Meter Rent to be excluded from Non-Tariff Income i.e, the
Discoms are allowed to retain the meter rent while claiming Non-Tariff income. The relevant
extract from the Tariff Order is as provided below,

203. The truing up exercise has been carried based on following principle along with
principle of OERC's Wheeling & RST Regulation, 2022,

g) Non-Tariff income (NTI) has been allowed excluding meter rent, incentive and arrear
collection and amortisation of consumer conlribution and grant.

It is to bring out that, as per direction of Hon'ble Commission vide letter no. OERC/Engg-
02/2018/647 dated 13.06.2024, levy of meter rent has been stopped for meters installed
under various Govermment schemes. The licensee has offered the meter rent collected from
such meters amounting to Rs.11.79Crs under Non-Tariff income which may kindly be
considered suitably.

Details have been furnished in Format- TU-7.

Hon'ble Commission is requested to consider Rs.112.48Crs towards Non-Tariff
Income for truing —up for the FY 2023-24.

12. ANNUAL INTEREST COST ON ASL FUNDING

Annual Interest Cost on Additional Serviceable Liabilities (ASL) has been claimed as per
clause 52 of vesting order, Relevant extracts of the Vesting order reproduced hereunder
Clause 52 (e) of Vesting Order

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

(iv) To fund the Additional Serviceable Liabilities, TPNODL shall be allowed, if necessary,
to avail of a separate appropriate financial instrument including but not limited to short-term
loan/ overdraft facility. _— —“:J }
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(v} The financing cost of appropriate financial instruments shall be dealt with in the
manner as specified in point (vi) and (vil) till the ime such financial instrument is discharged
i full.

(vi) Interest payable on appropriate financial instruments shall be allowed in Aggre-
gate Revenue Requirement by the Commission, subject to prudence check.

(vil) Principal repayments of such financial instruments shafl be allowed by Commission to
be made from the following amounts in the same order;

a) Excess recovery net of payments fo be made as per para 42 of this Order

b) Recovery of Past Arrears by TPNODL after deducling Incentives as specified In para 43
of this Order

c) Annual Depreciation on assets as on 31.03.2021 (existing assets recognized in Tariff
Order) allowed in Aggregate Revenue Requirement.

In accordance with the provisions of the Vesting Order, amount recovered from Current
Assals or surplus cash available, if any, was supposed to be utilized to settle additional
serviceable liabilities and make payments. Further, Cash and Bank balance appearing as
a part of ASL computation was either specific to Govt Grant for which capital work was to
be executed or against liability such as Deposit work/ Consumer Security Deposit. Thera-
fore, full cash was not available to discharge such pre-take over liabilities. Hence these
liabilities were funded partly through Internal accruals/ Loans. Such loan along with its car-
rying cost, in accordance with Clause 52 (&) of the Vesting Order, needs to be allowed to
be recovered through ARR in the year in which the same is paid by the Discoms.

It is to submit that, to suslain the continuity of the normal business operation and to avoid
discontentment amongst the consumers, employees as well as suppliers, TPNODL had to

make payments against the bills for the services or supplies received by the utility on or
before 31.03.2021. In the FY 2023-24 net payment amounting to Rs. 276.51 Cr have been
made including carrying cost on such payment amounting to Rs. 11.27 crore.

A Current Liabilities settled under ASL

1 Short Term Loan 276.76
2 Sundry Creditors/Trade Payables-Goods and Services 13.65
3 Advance Payment /Deposits from Consumers

;.-"" _.__.-' _uﬂ':/
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4 Creditors on capital accounts - . 1600 |
-5 Amount payable to other licensee-WESCO 0.24
6 Eleclricity Duty Payable 15.87
T Other Liabilities (salary for March-2021) 17.14
| Sub-total - A - 430.86
' B Current Assets realised under ASL
1 Capital Work in Progress 23.95
2 Inveniories 11.77
3 Cash on Hand 14.68
B ‘Balance with Scheduled Bank-Fixed Deposit 110.00
5 Loans and Advances o Employees 1.90
G Receivable from other licensee-SOUTHCO 16.59
7 Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be 6.02
received :
g Other Depnsits {Cunmdemﬁ good) 0.44
Sub-total -B 185.35
_C=AB | Net Payments against ASL - C 245.51
D Paid bills which were not transferred in opening ASL
1 BSP paymenl (March-2021) 168.15
2 . Collections (March-2021) (136.59) |
3 Vendor bills 9.52
4 Advance from consumer adjusted against energy charges __18.59
5 Recovery thrmigh Past Arrears as per v&stlng order (39.94)
Sub-total - 19.73
E = C+D | Net Payments against ASL + out of ASL 265.24
F Average net payments (E+2) 132.62
G Interest rate (SBI 1 Year MCLR effective 1* April 2023) 8.50%
H Carrying cost on ASL funding [FxG] 11.27
I=E+H | Total Net payments (including carrying cost) 276.51

Hon'ble Commission is most humbly requested to consider the above payment of
Rs. 276.51 crore (Rs. 265.24 crore along with carrying cost of Rs.11.27 crore) under
ASL in the financial year FY 2023-24,
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13. ISSUES PERTAINING TO PAST ORDERS
13.1 Issues Pertaining to Truing up FY 2021-22
The Hon'ble Commission in the Tariff Order dated 13th February 2024 has approved the

Truing up for FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22 and has stipulated following with regards to
True up of FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22.

201. The Comrmission now finalizes the truing up for FY 2020-21 and 2021-22 in this
ARR for FY 2024-25 considering all the factors and submissions, The commission hereby
directs that no further submission regarding truing up for FY 2020-21 and 2021-22 will be
enlertained in future.

205. The Commission hereby concludes the fruing up of expenses of the DISCOMs
(TPCODL, TPSODL, and TPWODL & TPNODL) for the FY 2020-21 and FY 2021-22.

Though Hon'ble Commission has finalized the truing up of FY 2021-22, the Non-Tariff Income
of TPNODL presented by us in our submission was proposed Rs, 140.49 Crs. The issue in this
re-submission of ours relates to the Non-Tariff Income wherein an additional income of Rs
8.62 Crores in the True-up for FY 2021-22 has been considered due to the consideration of
Meter Rent and Delayed Payment Charges.

The Hon'ble Commission at para 203 of the Tariff Order FY 2024-25 while setting the principle
for True up has stipulated that Meter Rent to be excluded from Non-Tariff Income l.e. the
Discoms are allowed to relain the meter rent while claiming Non-Tariff Income. The relevant
extract from the Tariff Order is as provided below.

203. The truing up exercise has been carried based on following principle along with principle
of OERC's Wheeling & RST Regulation, 2022.

g) Non-Tariff Income (NTI) has been allowed excluding meter rent, incentive and arrear

collection and amortisation of consumer contribution and grant. (Emphasis T 4 .
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Further, the Tariff Regulations, 2022 stipulates the Delayed Payment Surcharge (DPS) as part
of Non-Tariff Income.

While the Hon'ble Commission has approved the Mon-Tariff Income of Rs.140.43 Cr as
proposed by TPNODL for FY 2021-22, it is requested that the above stipulations may kindly
be taken into consideration while approving the Non-Tariff Income. Accordingly, the licensee
has offered meter rent for meters installed under various government schemes only amounting
to Rs.14.32 Crs and also entire DPS of Rs.5.67Crs. Hon'ble Commission is requested to
approve the Non-Tariff Income of Rs.133.91 Cr for FY 2021-22, detailed computation of which
is provided in table below.

Table-37: Non -Tariff Income for FY 2021-22 (In Rs. Crs.)

Amartisation of consumer
1 | contribution 65.52 - -
2 Amortisation of Govt. Grants in 0.20 ) i
capital nature ;
3 Amporiisation of Gowt. Grants in 12.71 = -
Revenue naiure *
4 | Recovery of Meter Rent 25,35 24.68 14.32
5 | Overdrawal penalty recovered 6.52 6.52 6.52
6 | Incentives on arrear Collection 16.15 - 140.43 -
Open Access Cross Subsidy
7 \ibome 57.98 57.98 57.98
8 | Supervision Charges B.72 572 | 572
8 | Miscellaneous operating income 3.77 377 3.77
10 | Interast income 34,46 34.46 34,46
11 | Delayed payment surcharge 5.67 1.89 5.67
12 | Other Income 5.47 5.47 5.47

In light of the above, it is humbly prayed that the Hon'ble Commission may kindly approve the
Non-Tariff Income of Rs. 133.91 Cr that has been compuled as per the Provision of the Tariff
Regulations, 2022 in place of Rs. 140.43 Cr which was approved In Tariff Order dated 13" Feb

2024. ~
P L
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Table- 38: NTI FY 2021-22 Approved vis-a-vis- Now Proposed (in Rs. Crs)

13.2 Issues Pertaining to Truing up FY 2022-23

A. Employee Expenditure:

Hon'ble Commission vide Tariff Order has approved the Employee Expenses of Rs.
417.80 Crores for FY 2022-23, against TPNODL's claim of Rs. 440.32Crores.

It is humbly submitted that the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission (Terms &
Conditions for Determination of Wheeling Tariff and Retail Supply Tarifl) Regulations,
2022 ("Tariff Regulations, 2022") specifically provides for the provision of Employee
Cost. That in past, Hon'ble Commission has allowed the "Outsourced Manpower Cost”
under the head "Employee Cost" in Tariff Orders of the DISCOMs. The same was also
allowed vide Tariff Order dated 26.03.2021 for FY 2021-22 passed by this Hon'ble
Commission. Accordingly, TPNODL, in line with such prior practices has claimed the
"Outsourced Manpower Cost” under the head of “Other Expenses” as per the Annual
Accounts of TPNODL.

It is submitted that the Employee Expenditure as per the Annual Accounts includes the
cost with Actuarial Valuation of retirement benefits for erstwhile employees. Therefore,
after deducting such non-cash expenditure of Rs.19.69 Crores, the Actual Employee Cost
incurred by TPNODL is Rs.420.52 Crares.

The details are furnished in the following table.

Table- 39: Employee Cost FY 2022-23 {In Rs. Crs)
Employee cost as per audited P&L Account 390.45 |
Less: Provision for terminal benefits (43.60) '
| Add: Actual cash oulgo of terminal benefits 23.81 s ¢
Add: Qutsource manpowear cost s




Therefore, TPNODL humbly requests Hon'ble Commission to re-consider the Employee
Expenditure as allowed vide Tariff Order and trulng up order and consider allowing the
amount of Rs. 420.52 Crores instead of the present allowance of Rs. 417.80 Crores.

Table- 40: Employee Cost_FY 23_Approved vis-a-vis- Actual (Rs. Crs)

|-r T

i = : ¥ z
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Employee Cost on

440.32 417.80 420.52 (2.72)
actual Cash outgo basis

B. Repalr and Maintenance:

Hon'ble Commission vide the Tariff Order FY 22-23 has allowed the Repair and
Maintenance (“R&M") Expenditure of Rs. 186.43 Crores for FY 2022-23, against
TPNODL's claim of Rs. 237.53 Crores. However, Hon'ble Commission did not provide any
reasoning while disallowing the said amount of Rs. 51.1 Crores towards R&M
Expenditure. It is submilted that the Actual R&M Expenditure for FY 2022-23 amounts to
Rs. 237.53 Crores. It is submitted that the appropriate R&M of system network is the key
to supply reliable and quality power to the consumers.

It is submitted that, during the performance review for the FY 2022-23 by Hon'ble
Commission and during the 34™ SAC Meeting dated 24.07.2023, all the DISCOMs were
advised to ensure the manning of all the Rural Sections in two-shifl operation, and for
Urban Sectlions In three-shifts operation. To ensure the same, TPNODL has been duly
ensuring the manning of rural Fuse Call Centres (FCCs) for no current complaints,
deploying maintenance gang for preventive maintenance of DT and 11KV network,
breakdown for attending 11KV and LT breakdown in two shifts in rural areas since the
commencement of its role as a utility. i is submitted that the expenditure incurred by
TPNODL to maintain the 2™ shift operation in Rural Area amounts to Rs, 43.46 Crores,
which accounts for a large part of the disallowance of Rs.51.1 Crores in FY 2022-23.

L




It is submitted that vide Order dated 24.03.2022 for FY 2022-23, this Hon'ble Commission
allowed the R&M Expenditure of only Rs. 32 Crores on an ad-hoc basis towards the
government funded assets, It is pertinent that based on a detailed zero-based budgeting
exercise, an expenditure of Rs. 240.01 Crores was estimated towards R&M Expenditure.
Further, the network area of such assets is spread upto 27,857 Sq. Kms, covering a large
geographical licenced area of TPNODL and therefore TPNODL submits before Hon'ble
Commission to may allow the R&M Expenditure of Rs. 237.53 Crores which is towards
the genuine maintenance and operation of electrical equipment in that area.

The steps undertaken to improve the reliability of power supply and the achievements so
far have been detailed in the previous sections under R&M costs.

Therefore, TPNODL most humbly requests before Hon'ble Commission to re-consider the
R&M Expenditure as allowed vide Tariff Order and consider allowing the amount of Rs.
237.53 Crores instead of the present allowance of Rs. 186.43 Crores .

Table- 41 :R&M Expenses FY 23- Approved vis-a-vis- Actual
(Rs. Crs)

| Normative entittement (based |
| on actual audited GFA)

240.01 186.43 | 237.53 (51.10)

Administrative and General Expenditure:

Hon'ble Commission vide the Tariff Order has allowed the Administrative and General
(“A&G") Expenditure of Rs. 84.23 Crores for FY 2022-23, against TPNODL's claim of Rs.
112.55 Crores. This approved A&G expenses.

Hon'ble Commission has allowed Rs.49.20Crores for the FY 21-22 while approving the
Tariff order basing the application filed by NESCO Utility. After taking over, TPNODL filed
the Annual Business Plan for FY 21-22 before Hon'ble Commission proposing A&G
expenditure of Rs.139.83Crores. Considering the submission made by the licensee in the
ABP application for FY 21-22, Hon'ble Commission had anq_wﬁ'ﬂdﬁq%al 80% of the
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previous approval of Rs.49.20 Crores, making the total approval under A&G expenses for
the FY 21-22 Rs.78.72 Crares.

This approved A&G expenses for FY 22-23 is based on the base A&G approval of
Rs.78.72Crs for FY 21-22 with 7% escalation as per Tariff Regulations.

However, Hon'ble Commission has been kind enough to consider the request of the
licensee and approved A&G expenditure of Rs.105.24Crs.

It is submitted certain Normal A&G Expenses may need to be controlled and therefore are
controllable expenses. However, il is pertinent thal the Statutory A&G Expenses are
compulsory In nature and are govemed by various statutes and thus aré not controllable
per se. Further, the MBC Expenses are dependent on the consumer base and are non-
controllable without compromising on the consumer satisfaction as well as the AT&C
Losses. It will not be out of place that TPNODL has achieved AT&C loss level of 14.19%-
that is achieved a reduction in AT&C of 15% in three years of operation. Therefore,
TPNODL humbly submits that since the commencement of TPNODL's role as a DISCOM,
TPNODL has undertaken several measures in the area of billing and collection 1o improve
the services to the consumers, and to reduce the AT&C Loss.

Therefore, TPNODL humbly requests this Hon'ble Commission to re-consider the
A&G Expenditure as allowed vide Tariff Order and consider allowing the amount of
Rs. 112.55 Crores considering Rs.105.24Crs as the base with the applicable
escalation as per Tariff Regulation and approve the actual ARG expenses of
Rs.112.55Crs incurred for FY 2022-23.

Table- 42: A&G Cost FY 23 Approved vis-a-vis- Actual (In Rs. Crs)

Sought 7% escalation over
155.18 84.23 112.55 (28.32) the previous year approved
ALEG expenses
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D. Interest on Security Deposit:

Hen'ble Commission vide the Tariff Order has allowed the Interest on Security Deposit of
Rs. 25.83 Crores for FY 2022-23, against TPNODL's claim of Rs. 41.96 Crores.It is
humbly submitted that Hon'ble Commission vide Tariff Order dated 23.03.2023 had
approved a rate of 6.75% p.a. on payment to be made towards Interest on Security
Deposit in the year May 2023 to the consumers. Accordingly, the Interest on Security
Deposit amounting to Rs. 41.96 Crores was booked in the Accounts for FY 2022-23. The
aforementioned approach Is consistent with the approach adopted in earlier years where
the Interest on Security Deposits were booked in accounts in terms of the extant approved
rate, That the Accounts are presented on the basis of Accrual principle as per the amount
booked ensuring consistency with the Accounting Standards.

It is humbly submitted that TPNODL has been calculating its Interest on Accrual Basis in
line with regulatory framework and past practice. Accordingly, the Interest on Security
Deposit calculated by TPNODL for FY 2022-23 is based on the interest rate of 6.75% p.a.
after considering the Opening Balance of Security Deposit and Addilion/ Deletion of

consumers,
Therefore, TPNODL humbly requests this Hon'ble Commission to re-consider the Interest
on Security Deposit as allowed vide Tarifl Order and consider allowing the amount of Re.
41.96 Crores instead of the present allowance of Rs. 25.83 Crores.

Table- 43: Interest on SD_FY 23- Approved vis-a-vis- Actual (In Rs. Crs)

Actual interest cost on SD

(16.13) increased over proposed due to
increase in rate of interest

The total disallowances of Rs. 104.79 Crs is hereby placed before Hon'ble Commission for
kind consideration and approval as detailed in the following table. - -%’!;}_ s N




Table-44: Consolidation of previous FYs cost non considered by Hon'ble Commission
{(in Rs. Crs)

| NTI (Offered Offered Meter Rent on
FY 21-22 | MR on Govt 140.49 14043 | 133.91 (6.52) Govt. funded Meter &
meters) total DPS
Employee - - : Employee Cost on ac-
GGt 440.32 417.8 | 420.52 {2.72) wal Cash outgo basis
R&M Ex- Normative entitiement
a08 240.01 186.43 | 237.53 (51.1) (based on actual au-
pe dited GFA)
Sought 7% escalation
FY 22-23 -
' ASG Ex- over the previous year
AErEOE 155.18 84.23 |112.55 (28.32) approved A8G ex-
pensas
Actual interest cost on
5D increased over
lntarsagt on 26,22 25.83 | 41.96 (16.13) proposed due to in-

crease in rata of inter-

ast

14. TRUING UP FOR THE FY 2023-24

The approvals by Hon'ble Commission for FY 23-24 vis-a-vis actual expenses incurred and
the submissions by the licensee for truing —up in line with the provisions of Tariff Regulations,
2022 and the principles set by Hon'ble Commission for truing —up, are furnished in the
following table:
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Table- 45: Truing up for FY 2023-24

{In Rs. Crs)

=

El

N

INPUT(MU) 7508.00 7047.13 7185.21
Cost of power purchase 2515.18 2360.75 2407.01
 Transmission Cost 180.18 168.76 168.76
SLDC Cost 1.186 1.16 1.18
Less : Rebate - (26.90) (26.90)
Net Input -Inter-DISCOM exchange
from TPCODL(MU) 2.89 289 |
Cost of power Net input - Inter-DIS-
COM exchange from TPCODL 0.95 085
Total Power purchase Cost(A) 2,696.53 2,504.72 Note-28 2,550.97
Employee Cost 512.79 526.56 Note-29 479.40
Repair &Maintenance Cost (Net off
Administrative & General Expenses 120.13 143.96 Note-21 143.96
Provision for bad & doubtful debts 35.59 60.78 Nate-21 36.76
Depreciation{ Net off Govt. Grant -
Cons. Contbn Amortisation) 49,83 78.44 Note-4&6 62.06
Interest an security deposits 51.83 50.46 Note-30 50.46
Interest on working capital 27.02 18.79 Mote-30 22.72
Interest on Term Loan (normative) 21.81 29.81 Note-30 40.81
Total Operation 8Maintenance and | 443314 | 1,150.93 1,077.31
Return on equity 4718 - 80.34
_ Income Tax 47.50 Note-32 27.02
Total Distribution Cost 1,080.33 1,198.43 1,184.67
; | Note-26.4.2 _
Less Miscellaneous Receipls 154.99 | 220.44 327 112.49
Net Distribution Cost(B) 825.34 | 977.99 1,072.19
True up of |
Surplus/(Losses) for FY (65.59) | - - .
2022-23 |
Carrying cost on of ASL - - - 11.27
Total Revenue Requirament 355628 | 3,482.71 3,634.43
Actual Revenue 3,660.02 | 3,572.59 Note-26.4.1 3.622.82
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FY 21-22

NTI Excluding Meter Rent (6.52)
FY 22.23
Employee Cost (2.72)
R&M (51.10)
A&G (28.32)
Interest on SD (16.13)

The licensee most humbly prays before Hon'ble Commission to kindly consider the
submissions made by the licensee and allow the additional actual expenses incurred.

15. FORMATS

The following Formats are submitted attached herewith for kind consideration of Hon'ble
Commission along with the Audited Annual Financial statement for the FY 23-24.
Table- 46: Table of Formats

TU-1 Trulng up for FY 2023-24
TU-2 Power Purchase Cost & Transmission Cost
TU-3 Employee Cost

TU-4 Repair &Maintenance Expenses
TU-5

TU-6

TU-7

A&G Expenses

Retum on Equity
Miscellaneous Receipt

Tu-8 Normative Term Loan Interest
TU-9 Interest on Working Capital




Table- 47: Table of Annexuras

| AT&C Loss Certificate for FY 2023-24

Audited Financial Statement for FY 2023-24

Consolidation of Assets created Gol/GoO funded schemes_1.4.2023
Agsets created Gol/GoO funded schemes -GRIDCO

Statements of Assets created -OPTCL

Copy of Statutory Auditor Certificate for Gross Fixed Asset (GFA)

17. PRAYER

The licensee most respectiully prays before the Hon'ble Commission

o | Bl W M| =s] =

To take the truing up application on record

To kindly, approve the truing up application of the licensee for the FY 2023-24.

To kindly consider previous years short allowances suitably

Grant any other rellef as deem fit & proper in the facts and circumstances of the matter.

Do B

The licensee craves leave of Hon'ble Commission for making additional submission in this
regard.

Date: 29.11.2024

65




Truing -Up for the FY 2023-24 (In Rs. Crs)

Format-TU-1

Actual Hma

3.572.50

o o True up
= Appronal BY | coviall (Auditad | SOfeTenCETOm | ot
S pna nmc“ f“'“ FY1 Accounts) | AuditedAnnual | o o stive TAD
loss 18.25%
INPUT(MU} 7508.00 7047.13 7185.21
Cost of power purchase 2515.18 2360.75 2407.01
Transmission Cosl 180,18 168.76 168.76
ELDC Cosl 1.18 1.46G 1.16
Less : Rebate (26.90) (26.80)
Met Input -Infer-DISCOM exchange from
TPCODL{MU) 2480 25
Cost of power Net input - Inter-DISCOM 0.65 085
|exchange from TPCODL : -
Total Power purchase Cost{A) 2,696.53 2,504.72 | Note-28 2,550.97
Employee Cost 512.74 526.56 | Note-28 473,40
::::'ﬂ";“'"i “’“I HT‘"’ Cost{ Nat off Gout, 214.34 241.13 | Note-31 241.13
Adminisirative & General Expenses 120.13 143.96 | Note-31 1432.96
Provision for bad & doubtiul debts 35.50 60.78 | Note-31 36.78
Dapreciation{ Net off Govt. Grant - Cons.
Contbn Amortisation) 49.83 78.44 | Note-4&8 62.06
Interest on security deposits 51.83 5048 | Nota-30 50.46
Interest on working capital 27.02 19.79 | Note-30 22.72
Interest on Term Loan (normative) 21.61 29.81 | Note-30 40.81
i EMaintenanca
[ maration and Other | 4 bas.14 1,150,983 1,077.31
Retum on equity 47.189 - 80.34
inmm-n_qu 47.50 | Note-32 27.02
Total Distribution Cost 1,080.33 1,988.43 | . _ 1,184.67
Less Miscellaneous Receipts 154,99 22044 | Nola-26.4.2 B27 112409
Net Distribution Cost(B) 825.34 977.99 1,072.18
True up of
Surplus/{Losses) for FY (65.59) . =
| 2022-23
|Carrying cost on_of ASL - = - 11.27
Total Revanua Requirement 3,558.28 348271 3,634.43
MNote-26.4.1 3.622.82

FyY 21-22
NTI Excluding Meter Rent (6.52)

FY 22.23
Employee Coslt (2.72)
R&M (51.10)
ALG (28.32)
Interest on SD (16.13)
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Format -TU-4
Repair & Maintenance Expenses

| SINo. u " oy '|
[ e ln g, . 5w _u =
1 AMC - Primary Substations & Feeders
2 Material required for Maintenance of 33 KV Metwork 4.04
3 STS Testing/Overhauling/Reconditioning of Transformers 4.77
Materials for Repairing/Service of Circuity
4 Bracakers/CTA&PT 0.29
5 Distribution AMC Caniract 121.51
] Distribution Materials (O/H) 2.99
7 Distribution | Distribution Materials (U/G) 3.97
Material & Services for Distribution Transformer
8 Repairing 9.48
g Admin. AMC 7.82
10 Omess. o 1.33
Tatal -A 241.13
GOVT.FUND RE&M-P&M-Amphan 0.03
11 GOVT.FUND R&M-P&M-Fani 0.03
12 GOVT.FUND REM-PEM-YAAS 017
13 GOVT.FUND REM-P&M-Others 0.00
Total - B 0.23
GRAND Total (A+B) 241.36
Less amortisation of Govi Granl shown in Misc Income
14 in audited Accounts, 0.23




Format-TU-5

ABG Expenses

) . ABG for Truing Up FY

Sl No Description 2023-24
1 Rent, Rates & Taxes 248
2 Communication 219
3 Legal, Consullancy & Professional Charges 8.64
B Conveyance & Travelling 16.25
] Licence & Related Expenses 2.58
¥ Adverisemant Expanses ( Fublic Relation) 274
;4 Matering,billing and collection expenses 82.71
8 Printing & Stationary 1.44
9 Enfarcament Activities 0.65
10 Safety & Ethics 0.07
11 Insurance 3.85
12 House Keeping 0.32
13 Employee Welfare Expensas 3.08
14 Cutsource manpowear cost 59.34
15 Other Expenses! Customer Care Call Center 16.98
16 Administrative & General Expenses as per Audited Accounts 203.30
17 Less:-Outsourced manpower cost considered under 59.34

Employee cost ;

18 Administrative & General Expenses for truing up 143.96




Format -TU-6

Return on Equity (ROE) (Rs. In Crs)
Sl No [Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24

1 |Opening Equity 204 94 417.49

2 Addition during the FY 122.55 169.28

3 |Closing Equity 417.49 BBE.TE

4  |Average Equity 35622 502.14

5 |Return on equity % 16% 16%

& |Return on equity (ROE) 56.99 80.34

7 Tax on ROE 1917 27.02

_ - Detaiis of Grﬁs F_'n_md Assets -

Sl. No. |Par ; | FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24

1 GFA as per Statutory Auditor Certificale| 23020.53 4067.11
- Tangible assets 2972.83 3968.21
- In-tangible assels 56,90 98.90
1&:;5: : Assets taken over as on effective 547 11 543.03
Less-Asset under consumer

2 sentitbation 1677.37 1958.37

3 Less:-Asset under government grant 266.44 302,68

4 Less:-Meter capex 43.69 133.84
GFA as per OERC capex (own)

<] Fnilate 474 92 1030.18

8 |GFA as per OERC capex {own} annual 408.51 564.28
Equity @ 30% of asset addition during

! the vear (S| No 6x30%) 1225 109.28
Debl @ 70% of asset addition during

8 the year (S| No 6x70%) 28596 04 94




Amortisation of consumer contribution

Format-TU-T
Non-Tariff Income as per Audited Accounts

1 T6.54
Amartisation of Govt Grants in capital nature 1498
Amaorisation of Govt Grants in Revenue nalure 0.23
4  |Recovery of Meter Rent 44.61 11.749
5  |Overdrawal penalty recovered 8.42 B.42
& |Incentives on arrear Colleation 15.60
7 |Open Access Cross Subsidy Income 22.55 22.55
8  Supervision Charges 16.18 16.16
9 |Miscallaneous operating Income 1,33 1.33
10 |Interest Income 64.51 74.23
11 |Delayed payament surcharge 13,15 13.15
12 [Cther Income 14.11 14.11
13 Sharing of gain on saving of interast on working capital 0.98
{loan (1/3rd)
15 |Less |Rebate offered to consumers -50.23
16 Total 312.19 112.49
Less
17 |Amartisation of consumer contribution 76.54
18  [Amoriisalion of Govt Grants in capital nature 14.98
19 |Amortisation of Govi Granis in Revenue nalure 023
20 Total Amortisation 91.75




Format-TU-8

Normative Interest on Term Loan (In Rs. Cr.)

Sl No. |Par . FY 2022-23 | FY 2023-24
1 |Opening Balance 43.64 313.30
2 |Loan Taken during the year 285.96 384.99
3 |Repayments during the Year(Equal to Depreciation) 16.30 51.87
4 |Closing Balance 313.30 656.43
§ |Average Balance 178.47 484.86
6 |Rate of Interest 0.07 0.08
7  |Normative Interest 12.58 40.81
8 |Capitalisation 408.51 564.28
9 |[Funded by :

10 [Debt (70%) 285.96 394.99
11 |Equity (30%) 12255 169.28




Format- TU-9

Calculation of Interest on working Capital and Security Deposits (Normative) FY 2023-24  (Rs. In Crs)

- |
Particulars
Operation & malntenance expenses
Employes cost :
R& M Expenses 241.13 214.34 241.13
ARG Expensas 143.96 12013 143.96
Total O&M 864.50 847.26 911.85
Operatlon & maintenance expenses Per annum BE4.50 911.65
2  |Operation & maintenance expenses Par month 72.04 75.87
3 Power purchase cost for one manth 214 B2 214,82
4 IMaintenance of spare@20% of R&M Expensas foron{  4.02 4.02
6 |Depraciation on Legacy assel -10.18 -10.18
TOTAL 280.69 284.62
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Certificate on the purchase & sale of energy in units and value with AT&C Loss for the Financial
year 2023-24 of ‘TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited, Januganj, Remuna Golei, Balasore-
756019, Odisha'.

1. This Certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter daled 06" May
2024

2, The accompanying certificate of purchase & sale of energy in units and value with AT&C Loss for
the financial year conlains the details as required pursuant to compliance with the terms and
conditions contained in engagemen! letier.

Management’s Responsibility for the Certificate

3. The accuracy of data and information for preparation of the Certificale is the responsibility of
the Management of TP Northem Odisha Distribution Limited, Januganj, Remuna Golei, Balasore-
756019, Odisha (hereinafter the *Company’jincluding the preparation and maintenance of
all accounting and other relevant supporting records and documents. This responsibility includes
the design, presentation of the cerlificate and applying an appropriale basis of preparation; and
making estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

4. The Managemen! is also responsible for ensuring that the Company complies with the
requirements of the ceriification and provides all relevant information to independent practilioner.

§. Pursuant fo the requirements of the Cerfification, it is our responsibility fo verfy and provide a
reasonable assurance and accordingly conducted the verification of:

i) the purchase of energy (in MUs) for the year FY 2023-24 from the bills of purchases made
from GRIDCO, Odisha;

il) the sale of energy in MUs from the Billing & Collection software data provided fo us for the
year ended 31= March'2024.

i)  the sale of energy in Value from the Billing & Collection software data provided lo us and duly
reconciled with the Audited Financial statement as al 313t March 2024..

i)  the amount of collection against sale of energy in value from the Billing & Collection software
data provided fo us for the year ended 31% March'2024.

6. The amount of sale of energy has been derived after considering Rabate to consumers, Recavery
of Meter rent and over drawl payment recovered.

7. We conducted our examination of the Certificate in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports
or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Pagelof2

(¥ Scanned with OKEN Scanner



8 This AT C loss calculation is compuled as per the proviso 3 14 2 of Ihe regulation of * Odisha
Elecincity Regulatory Commission ( Terms and Candilions for Determinaton of Wheeling Tanff and
Retail Supply Taniff) Regulations, 2022°

9. Based on our examination, as above, we certily the following stalements are true and correcl

for the FY 2023-24
i

[Particulars = UaM | FY 2023-24
NPt anargy e _MUs 7,047
Billed ana = [ 8,017
Sals of sneigy ¥ Crore 3,828 |
Cotiection amoun ¥ Cromm | 3,749
Collection amount (sxclueding collsction from srrear|
outs on affective date) € e ;:‘_:
Billing efMciency % 85.39%
Collsction sfMchkency ko) 103.40%
Collsction eMclancy (exciuding collecton fram
ArTes; outstendlng on affechwe dets) - 1 T00AEYW
IA‘I‘&C‘. s 11.71%
ATAC (sxcluding collsction from arresr
|uut:t-r-ulgg on effective date) » e

i) and opine that the amounis in the Centificate in respect of purchase & sale of energy In
units and value with distibution and AT&C Loss have been accurately extracted from ihe
Purchase Bills of GRIDCO, Biling & Colleclion Database and audited financial
statements, for the years ended 31 March 2024.

9. Disclaimer

This report has been prepared for this specific requirement and should not be used for any other
purpose. This Reporl is provided solely for the Enterprise's use and for the specific purposes
indicated above. Except where we expressly agree in writing, it should not be disclosed or provided
to any third party, other than as provided below. In the absence of such consent and an express
assumption of responsibility, no responsibllity whatsoever Is accepted by me for any consequences
arising from any third party relying on this Reporl or any advice relating o ils contents. This
document is not writlen as a formal or legal document and shall not be subject to legal jurisdiction
in courts of law but it is only definte expression and record for the purpose and intention of
engagement letter than a legal obligation. Further, the analysis and conclusions are limited by the
reported assumptions and conditions,

rRIcPaC
Bhubaneswar Flrm R mi"m:?:!
Data-21% Day of May 2024
UDIN-24058870BKCXPU1577 -
Chifanjeebl Jena
Partnar
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INDEPENDENT ALUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of TP Nerthern Odisha Distribution Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financis] statements of TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
(“the Comnpany™}, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and o the best of pur information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
{"the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view m conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al March 31, 2024, is
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
om that date.

Basls for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics® 1ssued by the
[nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant w
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most sipnificance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, These maners were
addressed in the context of our avdit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinicn
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the marters deseribed below o be the key audil matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our repont, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, The results of audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying financial statements.
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Key audit matter

The Company has outstanding pross
trade recetvables of R 328.70 crove as at
March 31, 2024, including overdue / nged
receivables,

The Company supplies electricity  to
various types of customers including
individual customers with wide ranging
characleristics in the Northern Odisha.
There exists inherent exposure to credit
nsk for these customers. The Company
has sequired this business with effect
from Apnl 01, 2021 and limited past
experiences are available to estimate
credit loss allowance.

The Company lias recopnised Expecled
Credit Loss (ECL) allowance on trade
receivables using its best estimate
considering  vanious  factors such  as
segregation between  government  and
NON-goVermment  consumers,  security
deposit  available, outcome of the
Company’s effort to reach consumers,
their most recent payment behaviour as
well as the fact that electrivity is an
essential commodity and regulations
require consumers 10 clear old dues to get
continuous elecmeity etc,

Based on the above mechanism and using
its best estimate, the Compeny has
accounfed ECL provision of Rs 151,32
crore as on the balance sheet date,

The appropriatencss of the provision for
expecled credil loss is subjective due to
the high degree of judgment applied by
management. Due to the significance of
trade receivables and  the related
estimation uncertainty this is considered
ter be a key audit matter,

[ How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(1) Expected credit loss on trade receivables (as descri? u?

o fin Nt {2 to the

Our audit procedures included the following:

Ohtained an understanding of the Company's
process and tested internal controls associated with
the management’s assessment of determining ECL
allowance for trade receivables.

Obtained an understanding of the management plan
ond steps being taken to collest all receivables
including overdue / aged receivables.

Evaluated management’s assessment of
recoverability of the outstanding receivables
including  recoverability of overduse/ aped
receivables through inguiry with management, and
onalysis of recent collection trends in respect of
receivables particularly aged receivables,

Evaluated management’s assumption and judgement
relating  to  collechion considering  business
environment in which the Company operates and
rights available with the Company to recover amount
due from customers for estimating the amount of
ECL allowance.

Evalunted management’s continuous assessment of
the assumptions used in the credit loss provision
computation. These considerations include whether
there are regular receipts from the customers and the
Company’s past collection history.

Verified mathematical aceuracy of provision
computation based on credit loss estimation model
used and other factors considered by the
managemeant.

Assedzed the disclosures in the: financial statements,
Obtnined necessary management representation.
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Key audit matter

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

{b) Accrual of regulstory assetsTiabilities for items which are subject matter of true up in tariff

orders (o described o Note 23 1o the finaneial statements)

Being regulated distribution  business,
tarfT of the Company 1= determined by
thie regulator on cost pluz return on equity
basis wherein the cost is subject to
prudential norms. The Company invoices
s costomers on the basis of pre-
approved tarifl’ which 18 subject to true
up.

The Company recopnizes revenue al the
amount invoiced to customers based on
pre-approved  tanff  rates.  As  the
Company i entitled to o fixed return on
equity and applicable incentives, the
différence  between  the  revenue
recognised and entitlement as per the
regulation 15 recognised as regulatory
assets/habilities, The Company has
recognised repulatory assets of Bs 82,16
crore as at March 31, 2024,

Accruals are determined based on tanff
regulations and past tariff orders and are
subject 1o verification and approval by
the regulators. Further the costs incurred
are subject to prudential checks and
prescribed nornms,

Judgements are made in determining the
accruals including interpretation of tanft
regulations. Further, in the true-up order,
the regulator has observed that certain
expenses booked in the nudited accounts
are higher than the approved costs and
disallowed cerain  expenses. The
regulator has also stated thar currently
expenses have been allowed on the basis
of pragmatic approach, The Company is
taking steps considered appropriate by
the management to claim allowance for
disallowed expenses and has treated these
expenses as recoverdble’ pass-through to
the customer through subsequent
regulatory orders.

Our audit procedures included the fﬂl-luwing:

Obtained an  understanding of the Company’s
process and tested internal controls associated with
the estimation and recoverability of such regulatory
deferral balanees.

Read the tanff regulations and tarfff orders and
evaluated relevant  clauses o understand
management’s assessment on allowability of various
income and expenses and consequent recognition/
measurement  of regulatory  deferral  accoumt
balances.

Discussed with the management 1o understand their
assessment on each gqualitative and quantitative
factor and reviewed consistency of the
mansgement’s explanation with the underlving
documentation, rules, and regulations.

Assgssed management’s evaluation and true up
review petition and comespondences filed with
regulators for the likely outcome in respect of
marerial disallowances made by the regulators.

Assessed impact, if any, recognised by the Company
in respect of tariff orders received.

Re-caleulated  workings  obtained  from  the
management to check arithmetical accuracy of the
calculations.

Assessed disclosures made by the Company in
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 114
“Regulatory Deferrel Accounts.”

Obtained necessary management representation,
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Kev audit matter How our andil addressed the key audit malter
Considering  judgements  invelved in
estimating vanous elements of true up
order and resulting regulatory deferral
aceount balance, we have dietermmed this
to he'a key audit matier.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other mformation. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board Report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Owr opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our sudit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, m domng so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 1n the audit or otherwise appears to be materdally
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materia] misstatement
of this other information, we gre required to report that fact. We have nothing (o report in this regarnd.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Beard of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordunce with the sccounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indisn Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
inciudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevemting and detecting frauds and other
regularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
mternal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the {inancial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the linancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ahility
to conlinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gomg concern and using the:
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Thase Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Aundit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to ohtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repori that
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includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 14a high level of agsurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in seeordance with Az will always deiect & matérial misstatement when it exists,
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and #re considered material if, individually or in the
agpregate; they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professiomal judgment and mantain
professional skepticism throughout the sudit, We also:

*  ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 1o
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
‘a3 fraud may invalve collusion, forgery, mtentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstences. Under sectionm 143(3)(1) of the Act, we sre also
responsible for expressing our opimon on whether the Company has adequate internal finaneial
controls with referepce to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
conirols,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. [F we conclude that a material uncertminty exists, we are required 1o draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial stntements or, if such disclosures are
madequate, (o modify our opinion. Our conclugions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
thie date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 1o
cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the {inancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
itn a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2024 and are therefore the key audil matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would ressonably be expected 1o outweigh the public intercst benefits of such
communication,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I

[sak

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {(“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of Indin in tenms of sub-section (11) of section 1423 of the Act, we give In the
“Annexure | a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section [43(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

{(a) We have sought and obiained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
kmowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our sudit,

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i) vi below on reporting under Rule 11(g);

{c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agrecment with the books of account;

{(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial stutements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified undar Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2013, a5 amended;

{2) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors s on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Diréctors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(£} The modification relating 1o the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3){1) and paragraph (i)
vi below on reporting under Rule 11{g);

{g£) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

{h) Inour opinion, the managerial renmunerstion for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid
! provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act:

{i) With respect to the othér matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its {inancial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 35 to the fmancial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative centracts for
which there were any materal foresesable losses;
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iik.

iv.

There were no amounts which were required to be wansferred 1o the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

(&) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been ndvanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or m any other person or entity,
including foreign entivies (“Infermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, thal the Inlermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultmate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficianies;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities
(*Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
LItimate Beneficiaries: and

¢) Bused on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
uppropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Bazed on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
softwares for maintaining its books of aceount which has a feature of recording audit trail
{edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the softwares except thal, audit trail feature is not enabled for
direct changes to data when using certain access rights, as descobed in note 46 to the
financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any
mstance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting softwares.

ForSRBC & COLLP Fior SRB & Associaies
Chartered Accountants Chartered Aceountants
ICAI Firm Remstration Number: 32498 2EE300003 ICAI Firm registration number: 310009E

per Shivam Chowdhary

Partner

Membership Number; 067077
UDIN: 24067077BKFSEX4440
Place of Signature; Bhubaneswar

Per R 8 Sahoo
Partner
Membership Number: 053960
UDIN: 24053060BKGFQERSSY
Place of Signature: Bhubaneswar

Date: April 19, 2024 Date: April 19, 2024
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Annexure | referred to in paragraph | under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements™ of our report of even date

Re: TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited {“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and givep by the Company and the hooks of
aceount and records examined by us in the nomal course of pudit and to the best of our knowledge and
heliaf, we statz thae:

{

(i}

i1 {A) The Company has maintined proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

{B) The Company las maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b} All Property, Plant and Equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year but there is & regular progromme of verification of all the Property, Plant and
Equipment over a period of three years which, in our opinian, is reasonable having regard (o the
slze of the Company and the nature of its assets. In accordance with the planned programme, a
portion of the Property, Plant and Eguipment was verificd during the year. No material
diserepanties were noticed on such verification.

(e} The Company does not hold any land in its name. As regard the buildings, thercon, the
Company retains operational rghis over the buildings used for the purpose of carrying ot
distribution business under a license granted by the Odisha Electricity Regulatory Commission,
Thus, verification af title deeds s not applicable for such buildings.

{d} The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during
the year ended March 31, 2024,

ie] There are no proceedings initiated or are pending agamst the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Tronsactions Act, 1988 ond rules made
thereunder.

{4} The management has conducted physical verification of inventory during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable and the coverage and the procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for
each chass of imventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

(b} As disclosed innote 21 (o the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in ageregate from banks during the yvear on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal
course of audit of the financial statements, the quarterly retums/statements fled by the Company
with such banks are in agregment with the onaudited books of accounts of the Company. The
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tit)

(v}

Company does not have sanctioned working capital limits 1n excess of B4, five crores in apgregate
from fnancial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the
Conpay.

{ay During the yvear, the Company has provided unsecured boans to its employees ns follows:

[ Amount i Bs Crones)
Particufars Logns

Aggrepate amount provided during the vear

-  Employees 638
Balancing outstanding 25 at balance sheet date

in respect above cases (post-acquisition of
business)
Employvess 2.55

Diiring the year, the Company has oot provided loans, advances in the nature of leans, stood
pusrsntee and provided security to companies, frms, Limited Liability Partnerships or paty other
than as mentioned above,

i b) During the year, the terms end conditions of the grant of 8l foans and advances in the nuture of
loins are not prejudicinl to the Company's intérest. Further, during the year, the Company has rol
made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and granted loans and advances in the
mature ol loan to fems, Limited Liability Parmerships or any other party.

{c) The Company has granted loans during the year to employees where the schedule of repayment
of principsl ks been stipulsted and the repayment of recetpts are regular,

{d} There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

{e} There were no loans or advance in the nature of [nan granted to companies, firma, fimited
liability partnerships or any other partics which was fallen due during the year, that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to setle the overdoes of existing |oans given o the
same partics.

i) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the namre of loans; either repayable on
demand or without specifying any lerms or period of repayment o companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any ather parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3N
af the Order is not applicable to the Company.

I'here are no loans, investments, guaraniees, and security given by the Company post-acquisition
of business In respect of which provisions of sections 183 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
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applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on elaose 3(iv) of the Order 15 not applicable
0 the Company

v The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections: 73 1o 76 of the Compames Act and the
rules made thereunder. to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
vl of the Order 15 not apphicable 1o the Company.

i) We have broodly reviewed the books of sccount maintmined by the Company pursuant to the rules
muade by the Centrnl Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 145 1] of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the service of distribution of electricity, and are of'the opinion that
prima Tacie, the specificd accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a demiled examinntion of the same.

(vilp () The Company is generally rezular in deposstting with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues incloding zoods and services tax, provident fund, employess’ state insurance, income-1ax, cess
and other statutory dues applicable to it though there has heen a slight delay in a few cases. According
to the information and explanations given m ws and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts pavable in respect of these statutory dues were owtstanding, a1 the vear end, for
m period of more thon six months from the date they became payable. During the year, the Company
did nol have any undisputed duss towards sales-tax, service tax, duty of exclse, duty of customs and
virlue added tax

(b) The dues of provident fund and services tax have not been deposited on account of ary dispute,

mre-as follows;

A i | Period hich
Name of the et ST 0 Whe Forum where
Tt Mature of does {Hs In | the amonnt refares dispute is pendin

{

CrorTes) (Financinl Year) P pe &
The Finance Act, | Service tax 2534 | FY 2014-15 o FY | CESTA'T, Kolkota
1444 HT-18
Income Tax Act, | Tncome Tax 44.73 | FY 2016-17 and FY | Commissioner
196 2017-18 {Appeals) — [ncome

Tax

There are no dues of goods and services tax, employees’ state insurance, sales-tax, costoms duty,
excise duty, value added @mx, cess and other statotory dues which have not been deposited on
sccount of any dispute.

(it} The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaclion, previously unrecorded in the hooks
of agoouni, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act 1961 ns income during the yvear.
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(%)

(%

(xi)

%)

Accordingly, the requirement to reporl on clause 3(viil) of the Order {5 not applicable (o the
Company,

{a) The Company has not defaulied in repayment of loans or other borrowings o in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender

[b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
gavernment o any government aulhority,

i) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,

{d} O an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on shirt-
term basis hove been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

fe] The Company doge not have any subsidizry, associate, or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix){e) of the Order is not applicable o the Company

if) The Company does not have amy subsidiary, asscciate. or joint venture. Accordingly, the
recpuirement (o report on clase 3% of the Order s not applicable to the Company.

ia) The Company has not mised any money during the year by way of initlal public offer / further
public offer (including debt insruments) hence, the requirement (o report on clause 3(x)ia) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or privete placement of shares fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under andit and hence, the requirement
o report o cladase 30x00) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

{a) No {raud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reporied
during the year,

{ b} During the vear. no report under sub-section { 12) of section 142 of the Companies Act. 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor’ seoretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 s preseribed under Rule [3
of Companies | Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

{¢) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the natura, timing and extent of audit procedures.
ta) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Therelare, the requirement to report on clause 3{xiiia) of'the Order is notapplicable to the Company,

ib) The Company is not a Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
Therefore. the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)h) of the Order is mot applicable 1o the Company.

() The Company v not n Nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
requirement o r2port on clatse 3ixii)e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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[xinlh

ixiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

[xvii)

[xwiit)

Ixix)

Transactivns with the related parties are in compliance with secion 177 and |88 of the Companies
Apt, 20013 (as amended) where applicable ad the details have been diselosed (v the notes o the
financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{a} Tha Comparty has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(B The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, Tor the period
ander audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into sy non-cash rransactions with its directors or persons connected
with (15 directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable o
the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable 1o the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clanse (xvijla) of the Order
is nedt applicable w the Company.

(b} The Company is not engaged in any Mon-Banking Financial ar Housing Finance activities,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi){(b) of the Order it nol applicable (o the
Company.

ic} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regolations made by
Reserve Bank of Indin. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3ixvikc) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company,

1d) According to the information and explanation given 1o us by the management, the Group has
five CICs which are registered with the Reserve Bank of India and two CICs which are not reguired
to be registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the currenl year a8 well as in the immediaely
preceding financial vear respectively.

There has been np resignation of the statutory auditors during the vear and accordingly requirement
to reporl on Clause 3 xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

O the basis of the Tinancial ratios disclosed i pole 32 (o the inancial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilitics, other
information accompanying the financial statements, pur knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans snd based on our examination of the evidence supporting the sssumplions,
nothing has come 1o our attention, which causes us 1o believe that any material uncertainty exists
a5 on the dute of the sudit réport thal Company is not capable of meeting it liabilities existing at
the date of balance shegt as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as (o the future viability of the Company.
We further <tate that our reporting is based on the facts up 1o the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantes nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of ane
year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as ey fall due.

AT X :

¥

i g“
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(%%) {a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts thet are regquired w be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule V1T of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second provise to sub section § of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
31.2 to the financial statements.

ib) There are no unspent anounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
1o a special account in compliance of provision of sub section i 6) of section 133 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in nole 31,2 to the financial statements.

{xxi) The Compeny does net have any subsidiary, sssociate or joini venture, Accordingly, the
requirement eo report on claase 30xxi} of the Order is not applicable to the Company .

ForSRB C & CO LLP For SREB & Associntes
Chartered Accownants Chartered Accountants
ICA! Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ICAl Firm Registration Number: 3 [10009E
i

ra { j‘-f-'-‘*'i'{l'.{q : '}./"/
Shover © - N S

) ’ o
per Shivam Chowdhary ' per R 5 Sahoo
Partner Poartner
Membership Number: (67077 Membership Mumber; 053960
LRI 2406707 TBK FSEXA440 UDMN; 24053960BKGFQEBS39
Bhubaneswar Bhubaneswar

April 19, 2024 April 19, 2024



SRBC&COLLP 5SRB & Associates

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

22, Camac 5treet, 3" Floor 5% Fioor, IDCO Tower, lanpath
Block '8, Kolkata - 700 016 Bhubaneswar—751 022

India

Tel - <91 33 5134 4000

Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of TP
Northern Odisha Distribution Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clavse (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 20013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of TP Nerthern
Odisha Distribution Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICA1™),
These responsibilitiss include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its
business, including adherence to the Company s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frands and errors, the acouracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Aunditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
CGuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, 1o the extent applicable to
an audit of internal Anancial controls, both issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethica! requirements and plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial stalements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial contrels with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
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of intemal control bassd on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstaterment of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or emor,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements,
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Finuncial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is & process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference 1o financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 10 permit preparation of financial saatements in
accordance with generally accepied accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
Company; and (3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assefs that could have a matenial effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial smtements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections “of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 1o future periods are subject to
the risk that the intemnal financial control with reference 1o financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate,
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal conirol over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of iniernal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For SRBC & COLLP For SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003 ICAI Firm Registration Number: 310009E
] 0 Zdh Fe
A .
Lo Loy~ _ (fEs—
.5 CH
per Shivam Chowdhary i) - per RS Sahoo
Partner ﬁ Kolkata | Partner
Membership Number: 067077 / Membership Number: 053960
UDIN: 24067077BKFSEX 4440 * LIDIN: 24053960BKGFOERSS9

Bhubaneswar Bhubaneswar
April 19, 2024 April 19, 2024
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BALANCE SHEET A5 AT MARGCH 31, W24

fincores
fa at Bu at
TR VOSSR et 31, 2024 Mareh 37, 2023
el fhrdted)
(1] Non-camant ansoin
{a) Propesty, sl anel agulpment 4 250784 2053.65
i} Capstal work-in-propress 4 5377 410,86
1} intunglbile asxsets il T2ET Bl B0
{0} Feenchal asseln T am 1y JELAE
i} Man-cumert tax assets [neti ] T 821
i Oiker non-mmr assrs 12 1841 4042
Tota| non-cursnt assets (1] 3,002.60 L.983.70
21 Current assots:
() Inveniaries 11 57,04 sar
i} Financial asspts
M Trade receivables 1z 17138 250,88
1] Uinkilied reverns 208 20 28572
N} Cash and cazh squlvalenis LE] a7n.gd 248 32
\i) Hark balences wibar than (@) abavs 13  Walil=ledid 853493
¥] Dhor financal assets 14 4597 £6.08
{1 Dibwer curmend wssets 15 312 é%fg__
Total surrant shsets (1) 107487 i
[ Total asssts belfore ruguintary deformal accaunt (1+3) BG87 47 A4,047.04
4] FRegulstory deferrl account - Assel -1 BLAR -
18] Toda| assots (3+4) 8,039 58 A 84T B4
(T Equity .
{a}] Eoulty share capzal 18 56405 388 .15
{1 Ciheir ity 17 32 B 186.59
Tatad eguity {1) 858 60 BAT.T4
Lianbilities
{2} Mon-current [abilites
{a] Finanuois Labiiilie
Bomrewings 2 507 60 22609
fti) Prauigions ) 1% 25001 15814
ey Capital grant and consumer canfribution lovards capital axgets 1% 1ATEAT 1,078
14 Do 15 Hdbuliles () ] 10 54 2028
te} Qiher ran-curmant labiities 20 7o 13
Tatad non-current liabilies (2] #883.35 2.0 26
{3 Cunent iabilites
[} Firancial kabiklies
fi) Borrgwmngs 4 132.48 I
{11} Trade peyables
Taobal cutstandog duss of micro Bnd-Baall Enlerprises it BS03 15,14
Total autetanding duis of crédilors ukherihan mico Gm ume arispesey 22 53581 5T B4
fll Oilbver Enancial lisbillies FE LATHEE 1,237 5
[t} Presilsicns 18 1690 16,80
[ch Ofer current fabdmiss 24 L 121,39
(dj Ciament o Mabllilies (ne1) 4 1325 #.80
Total currmnt [iabiities (1) 2.250.63 L7448
(4} Total Rebilliifes {2+3) B.1582.98 4. 254,74
i5] Regulalory deforral account. fiahilisy 6 . 836
(6] Total equity and Nabilities (1+4+4) 6,019,580 4,547,564
The accampanying noies form # iregml pact of ihe financal sialements.
Al pir aur feparl of esen daie afteched
FerSREBCACOLLP Frv SRB & Associntes
Chariered Accountanis Charierad Accouniants
IL‘-N FRN; mﬂﬂTBJUﬂIF?T. IGAI FRM: 311C003E
& v ¢ E ""L'rf‘
par Shivam Chowedhary M S Zahas
Partner Farirar
Membarsreg Numbar, DETOTT Membemhip Numbar 053550
Place: BRubaneawar Place: Bhobaneswar
Datw: April 15, 2024 Darte; Agril 18, 2024

Farand on kehall of the Board of TP Norhwmm Odishs Distdbuthon Limited

e T S
Praveir Sinla
Teréctar
Dk 01735164 D OF TSl
Bhuh-n:-ﬁ’ Place: Bhubansaw
' ’
ke, b Deyepdy
L] 5 S pLga mad
i Crlfieer [CEO} Chif Finapcal Officer (GF Q) Coframny Sncrtary
: Bhubareswar Plece: Bhubansawnr Mimberahiy Mumber: A2STA8

Place Bhubanesivar
Date: April 19, 2024
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOS5 FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Tin crores.
. Year Ended Year Ended
Pamiculars ° March 31, 2024 Marsh 31, 2023
I Revanue from operatons i) 3,757 41 3,340,718
I, Giner incame i 12737 11247
fiL Total incorme () 3 B8ATR 146265
V. Expansea
Cost of power purchased and transmission charges A 2504 T2 2,240.22
Employes banafits exapenso {ned) 28 447 22 395.82
Financs costs M 10263 BB.25
Degraaiabon and amorisation sxpenss LEE 189.66 106:09
Orther sxpanses n E05.45 47027
Total expeanses (V) 174888 317876
V. Profit belore movement In regulatory deferral balance and tax {11V} 134.00 1reen
AddiLesa) Met movement in reguisiory deferml balances 5 48.32 {1.81)
Add: Deferned tay Recoversble]Payabis) (D78} 937
Vi. Profit befors tax 1046 150.65
Vi Tex expenses
(1) Currsntisx 32 40,31 2903
{2} Adjustment of tax relsong io eatier penod 33 T a4 13.41)
{1} Dafarred lax chargs 32 648 937
{4} Deferrad tax in respect of eariar year k1 [T.23) -
47,50 3498
VIl Profit for the yaar (VI-VH) 1313868 115 &7
K. ©ther Comprehenaive Income
ttenmis: that will mot be recladsified o profit or loss (net) - ¥
L Total Comprehensive Income fior the yoar (VIlT+X) 13398 11567
Xl, Eammgs Per Equity Share [Excluding Regulatory income|sxpenss) |met)]
Basle and Diluted {In 73 38 4,18 448
Eammgs Far Equity Share [inouding Regulatory income | expanse) (nen]
Basle snd Dilutsd {in #) 36 am N
The accompanying notss form an atsgral pardt of the fnancal statements
As per our report of even date atached
ForSRBCACOLLP For 5RE & Associatss
Charered Accouniarnbs e Charered Accouiilan ks
ICA FRN; 324382E" EM0003 j | i ICAl FRN: 3100088
f.. . i, f Ilf c{-.;t' ~ RN RAEST .._II'.'l_ i g.}-"’"!—‘
. -\llii““" l[ll;,ﬂL\ Jnflfl
pot Shivam Chawdhary N 4 per R 5 Sahoo
Partner -:,_x__‘_*__;_’,..-'f' PR
Membership Mumber: 0EFO7TT Memberahlp Mumisr 053340
Place: Bhubanaswar Place: Bhubaneswar
Dato: April 19, 2024 Dats: April 18, 2024

For mnd on behalf of the Board of TP Morthem Odlsha Distribution Limited

I

i —————
Pravoer Sinha
Direcior 1
DIN DITES164
ce: Bhubansgwar Place: Bhubaneswar
' e Deyeniig Wagf
» # L :
(b, L SRVeig PO
Chisf Financial Sficar (CFO) Company Secremry Ty
Place:Bhubaneswar Mambetshin Number: AXGTEY

Place:Bhubaneswar

Date: Aprll 19, 2024
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Accounting Pollcy

Cash Nows fram operating activites e repored wsing the indinecl method, whareby profit for Ihe year |5 adjusted for the effecte of
traraactions of hon-cash felutg @nd 2m al income of expenses Bssocizted wiln investing or finaneing cash flows. The cash flows from
oparafing, inveslng and financing actvides.of the Company ate segreqiled and presented separatoly. The Comeany considars 3l highty
lquid investmants that are rosdlly comvedibiE (o inown emounts of cash and are subject 1o an mnsignifcant nsk of changes n yalus io be

=ash equivalaris

¥|n crores
Wear ended
Particufars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
A. GCash liow from Oparating Activities =
Prafil betore tax 180.44 150,66
Adjusimants to reconclle profit and Ioss before tax to net cash fows:
Iragrast income Trom bank copesils (B4.51) (40 48]
At lisation of consumesr condribetion and grants (91.75) (85,25}
Irzome from delayed payment charge (13.1%) {1721}
Az for doubtul debis Ho T 6498
Loes on ratirament of proparty, plant mh equipmant .70 0.1z
Frovisions Tor ciaima snd compansation 1.0 .58
Dapraciation and amorisalion sxpenas e 105.09
Finance tostt (net of caziaSsation) 10253 6825
Translor o tarf balanting regere 328 -
Opesating peofit bafora working capital changes 329.34 238.74
Ad|ustmeams for | Incresse idecrease In aperating assels:
Invaniories [3.0m [38.83)
Trade recaivables 21rm (50.72)
Unbifad rayenue (a7 (68,18
Ottt linancial Asset - current {1655} (12.48)
Oithar finamclal assets - non curren {044 007
Dther current asneds 0,04 {3.72)
Cither non-curent sssets 10.08) =
Movement in operating assels [EE T (174.87)
Mdjustments for increasel|decressa) in operating labiites:
Trede payzhles {11.14) .08
Other financiai fabiites - current [63.24) 2498
Othier currnn Tstilites {047 1565
Mhar non-gurrent lisbilfies {5.08] 23.80
Provigions - Sustent 006 {0.38)
Provigions - nion curnant ar.rr 24 82
Regulztory deferral account (940,53} 3084
Maovement in operating fiability {63.13) 185.37
Cesh generaled in operabions 258.25 25024
Tawes paid {not of refund) ek B {1937
Net Cash fiows ganorated from Dperating Activities*® {AY 225.03 230.87
B Iimvesii
Capilad expendiure on progety, plar and egupmant | including capital work in
progress and capital advances nel off capital creditoms] (iR 55) (80,74
Capital expendihes on ntangible asesl (42 04} (3T a8}
Dislzyad paymeant charge moeived 13.15 1.4
Interast recsived Ba.a7 46.70
Deposits made with banks not considersd as cash and cash equivalenta {1,450.47} {1.230.00)
Daposits matured with barks mol considered 85 cashand cash equivalants 129554 1,0368.51
hei Cash flows used in Investing Activitias {8} (678.4011 {765.80)




TP NORTHERN ODIEHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2034

¥in crores
Year ended
Partdculars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audiied) [ Auscitwd)
C. Cash flow from Finanding Activitios
Procesads from issue of eguity shares B4.581 52.63
Inferest pad on sscunly deposit (o B2y (2413}
Irlerest paid on bank wen & other bormowing ookt 151.495) 26,20)
Procaads from consumer securily depasits (et 87.65 188,21
Procesets from coninbution for capltal warks (net) G2 54,16
Procegds from subsidies towards cost of capital asests (net) 20a.82 188.21
Procesds from long-lemm bamowings 32068 23747
Repayment of long-ferm bomowings {11.38) -

Proceads!/{Rapayment] from shart tarm bomowings (nat) (100.64) {39.02)
Net cash flows generated from Financing Activities icy 581.48 629,04

0. Net incroase in cash and cash equivalents [A+B+C) 12B.12 94,11
E Cesh and cash eguivalents al the beginning of the year 24882 1541
F. Cash and cash equivaients at year end (Refer Note 13} i76.94 248.82

G. Non-cash financing and investing activities:

issuance of equity shases for Consideratiorss other than Cash [Refer Mote 184 8120 5057

et cash Aow usad in operating schivities includes an amount of $ 3,87 crores (March 31, 2023 ¥ 1.89 crom) towards comonste

sl reapanisibility
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

A Equilty Share Caplial

Particulars Mo of Shares Amicdmt
[ in erores)
Balance as &l April 7, 2033 3581 48,300 AT
(s during tha year 18,550,600, 000 186,80
Balance as at Warch 31, 2024 BiE,40,08,000 554,05
;ltr_l.im Mo of Shares Armigamt
o ® in croms)
Balance as al April 1, 2022 28 48 A3, 00 254 .50
|| gue=d during the year 10,3204 700 10320
{Balance &5 s March 31, 3028 58,01 48,300 | 392.15
B, Other Equity
— Rotwned Eamings | Total
Prarticuwl
2 1t in erores) {¥ by crores)
|Batance as a1 April 1, 1023 1889 15055
Profil har e peor 13208 157 96
G Comprehensive incams for Me yasr .
Tolal comprehens v incoma 13156 1396
Balanme a4 al March 31, 2024 JZL5S 1i2 56
Farliculars Aotained Eamings Tuoital
¥ in crorea) (¥ i croms)
Balance as Al Aprit 1, 2022 T3 7192
Profil far the year 11567 ME8T
Cihar Compralisnswe Incame for e yaor - N
Total comprahens/ve income 11587 116,67
Bakamco 88 il Manch 31, 2033 1E8.50 198,55

The sccamparmgng notes fomm an negral pad of the Taans sl slabaments

Az por o report al even dels attached

FarBRECACOLLP
Charsred Asceuntants

IE:AI' FHN: Ja0EIES Engm "_

_5.,-’1'«

pat Bhivam Chowdhary
Partnir

Membership Mumbier UEHITT
Plate: Bhubareswar

Drata: Al 19, 2024

'L'k,' \'\-._-f/ A

,u

" Walkata | ||

\\a_..-r‘/”/

For and un behall of the Goard of TP Sorthem Odisha Distribstion Limimoed

S

e
Pravegr Sinha
Direchar

M TES 164

Executive Oficer (CED)
P gz o Bhuhannsw of

Drate: Apal 98, 2004

For GRE & Agsoc|ptes
Chrerssred Accouniants
AN FRM: 310008 E

LA

Dints; le"ﬂ 18, 2ad

. Sm:-r ol
Decior

M umaq-tﬁ
Filace: Bhvbaneswar

sliedidle.

Chied Financial Cficar
Placo-Biubamnswar

Dayenbiq thq

Comoory Seselary
Iembarship Number, AZET35
Place: Bhu banawwar




TP MORTHEAM DOMEHA OISTHIEUTION LIMITED
CongiLlded | (FEOR 202V PLCADSRSY
Jamugan|, Dalesare, Cdinkha, ngia, T5E019
Wnbislla: waw, nnadicam

NOTES FORMING SART OF THE FINAMDIAL STATEMERTS 4% AT AND FOR THE YEAR FNDED MARDH 34, 2134
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE4

Property, plant and equipment :

4.01 Accounting Policy =

Pripnrty, plant sed aniipment [PPE) s stated &t co6t iess accumulated deomsiabion and sctumulsied impaiment losses, (Fany. Coat inzluties purchies prize (nal
of ade discount and robates) and any direcily altributable coer of bringing the asset o ts working condiion far fie etended wse snd for quatiiing sesefs,
bormwisg cosls capitalised (N scomdancs wih e nd AS 23 Capllal work in progrese issiated &1 cost, net of acoumulated impakmoan toss, f any. Whan
significan pans of pant and squipment ars required fo ba repisced At intervaly, fhe Company deprecistae them saparataly based on thelr speaific uselul lves
Likowiss, whon @ magr inspection ia performed, its cost ie recogrissd m the camying amaount of the piant end agquipmant 33 5 replacwmant i the recognibon oriteria
are satisfiod. Al oihor msal ond mplnisnonoe costs s recognisad in the statamant of poflt and kes 3 incurred.

Dopracidtion on regilated assets

Dinpreciation commances whon an asset 5 mady foris intsnded uea.

Deprecinlon on propsty, plsm end ecepmant in resped of alachicily business of e Company coversd undar Part B of Scheduls || of Ihe Companies Act, 2013,
Ts b providad on (he-steaight line meshod at the retes specified In vesting erdor aad tarit! regulation noified by reguistory commission. in tanf regulation, 2022
nolified in Decambar, 2022 which shall mmain in force for conrel pedod FY 2023-24 |0 FY 2007-28, 1 requialery commiseinn hae changed veaful Ue of Garlain
wsseta and has provided that depreciaton shall e proviced ag pet rases oilfied in these regulations for first 13 years and remaning deprecisbl walue afer @
parisd of 18 years stall be spread ower ihe balance usstul ife of the ngséb.

Rsie of decreciaton of the propedy, plant and egquipmaont an @6 Tollows:

Rite (Assets Rate [Mow assats
transfarrod on acqulred post
Typeitasel aceubsiticn) acquisitian)
Bulidings 1.80% d3d%%
Plant and eguiprart inchiding ransiiEson lines & cabis rehvork 3.80% 4.57%
Ernunl (17 Erpuigran 0,00, 15%
Eurmilire and fidures 4, 55 6.33%
ifice squepment Fay 6,238,
Wehiclas 1285% o.50%

The estimiated uselul s, residusl vakies and deprecistion method ars reviewes al th end of each reporting perod, with the effsct of any changss in estimats
accounied for on a prospective besis Based on the Vesling Oroen' tanff regulations, the residual value of the ass2ls pequired poak-acquisition s considered at
10% of the Original Cost and 5% of the Dogired Coat on assels trpnsfamed on soguisition,

Depraciation on meters
Dapeeciaton an singls Fsse smant melers.and olher matars has bean provided in e siraight ine mathod at an wesful life of 3 years and 5 years respeciively

Derecognition

Ar fiam of property, plant and aquipmend |s derecognized upen depomil or when no lulire soanomic benelis e axpected {o arsa from the confinued use of the
assHl, Any gam of lees arsaing on the disposal or retirement of an dem of proporty, plienl Bnd egiepments is determined 85 the difiersnca Detwsean the sales
proceeds ang |he catrying amown of ihe ssset o |s rmeognized in ihe staismant of profit and foss.

Impairmant of property, plant and equipment snd ntangibie assets

The Compeny assesses; 3t sech raporing dabe, whether ther is un mdicalien that an asset may be impaired. i any ndication axlsts, of whim annial impalman
\esting for an massl s mdend, e Compamy estimates the asset's recoverabio arnounl An 2sssty fecoverebls amount & e higher of an assafs or cas-
genereting unit's (DGLY fair valut loss costs of duposs| and e vale (0 oea Recowensbie amount Is determinead for an individuasl asset, uness. he asset does not
ganerate cash inflows thal are lergely ndopendent of hase lom olher a8sels of group o7 GsEels.

W (e carying amtunt of @ assetor 05U excesds is recoveracie smount, the asset is considered impaired and |s written down 1o ils recovarable amount.

In assensing valise in wse, the estimated flure post tax cuut llows re diacouned 1o their prasent value Using @ apropdale dscoum e that reflects cwmsn
okt geeassments of e tima valus of money and the risks spacific o s agser, In delemining fae value jess costs of dispoaal, moenl makel tansactions arg
{akimen imb actouni. ! no such trensaclians cah be dentilied, an sppmpaata valuabon modet ia Usmd

The Company bases its impaimenl. oalculation on detillad budgets snd forscast csloulations, which are prepared separately for tach of e Company's CGUs o
which the Individusl essets sre ellocated.

| rsses of property, plnt ana equipmant and Intangible assets &re recognizad in the satement of pralll and oss.
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TE NORTHEAN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN:U401020R 2021PLCO35957
Janugan|, Balasore, Odisha, India, 56018
Website: www tpnod] com

NOTE 8

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Intangible assals
Imangile assats with firite useful llves inal are acquirad separately am caried at cosl less Rccwmidsted amonisation and acsumulated impairment

josses. Amarisation s racognisad an & stralght-ling basis avar theit estimalad uasful iives. The eslimated useiui [¥e and amortisation method ars
raviewed 8l Ihe end of sach reporling cariod, wilh the effect of eny changes in estimate being accountad for an 2 prospeciive basis

Rals
New asgals
of assal {
Typo of asso iy fpalon
atoulsifien) |
Sottwan 30%

Derecognition

An ltem of intaralble 2ssst |s derecogalzed upon dispozal or when no future econamic banefits are expecled 1o arise from the confinued use of the
gsasl. Any cain or InEs adising on the disposal or ratirement of an jlzm of intanglble 3ssat is determined as ihs diffsrence pelwesn the sal=s
proceeds and the carrying amoust of the asset and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Impairment of idanglble assets {refar nols 4.01)

+ in crores

Description Computer software Total

Gross Block
|Balance as at April 01, 2022 18.42 a2
Additions 37.48 37 48
Delations. - -
Balanca as at Aprll 01, 2023 [A) 55.090 56,90
Additions 42 18 4218
Delalions (0481 [0.18)
Balance as al March 31, 2024 (B) 88,50 88.90
Accumulated amortisation and impalment

Balance as 8t April 01, 2022 118 1,16
Amortization esxpenza B4 §.14
Eliminatian on dispasal = -
Balance a3 at April 01, 2023 {C} 8.30 6.30
Amartigalion gxpensa 16 %6 18.56
Eltmiration an dispess] [2.03) {0.03)
|Balance as ot March 31, 2024 (O] 26.33 26.23
Met carrying amaunt

As at March 31, 2024 (B-D) T2ET T2.87
As 3t March 31, 2023 [A-C) 50.60 50.60
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TP HORTHERN 00ISHA DISTREBUTION LIMITED
G L0 1O R0R bR TPLCOR55S1
daiugan|, Balasom, Odisha, india, 78618
Websitel wiww innodl com

MOTES FOMMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AKD FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 14, 2034

As Bz at
Mares 31, M2 Marchn 51, 2021
Mo in Erares Met, ¥ by Eretes
NOTE i Bhary capila!
Autborisad $hans Caprts
Exquily sharmn of # 1 wach ol GO UCL 1,000,080 1,010, 00, 0,000 #0000 10
1501660, 0. B0 1.500.00 1.00.00.50.000 [N
Iznoad, sullscribed capieal:
FEqully sheres of ® 1001- mnch {fully podop) 5,40, 98 300 26805 34.01,45,300 IR
Tatal isssed, subscribod sod paid-up shars caglial S 40,48.300 E4.08 330148000 323,15
n  Recoocilialion of shares cutstanding as at the beginning and atihe snd of the reporing yosr
s B at
Mireh 31, 2024 Blarch 3, 3123
Ko P in cromes Mo ¥ in crores
Equity sharss
At fm bagiwirg of the yesr 205,44, 300 o RE ] A3 a0 5454
lenized dunng Tha yea N6 00, 000 160 8 19,3204, 730 104.30
Duststanding st tha end of the ypoar [N 5865 B T 308 1K

b, Fighs, prefarence and resirlesions attached to shares inchuding madrictiors on the distibiton of Wyidands aod the repaymaont of capial:

Equnty Shires

The Compsny fes oy one chiss ol soufy sheres Hindi @ par ik of # 10 per st Each holder of pouby shaves |s ardded io one vots par phars he'd. Tha akam Rakiprs sm erelien
10 dadand declargd an propenicrate base. On igwdaton of the Campony, the equity sharehcidern ans efigble o woaye emenng 2=l of I Comgany afte dibioution al 3

prelEns sl gmaunin i prepodion 1o e sharohakog

. Deetoils ol afyarn holdens olding man thar 6% shares in the Company

Equify shares of s, 10 &nch Pully paid As al As gt
March 11, 24 March 31, D023 _
Hawma of ihe Shoreholder  ehange in
Me of Shares. % af Halding Ka of Shares % of Halding  olding during
- Byt

&, Tha Tata Power Company Lad (Hoiding compony) 7E 70,55 B33 51.00% .M, 55,653 51.00% ot

B GREDCO Led (Cempany hading signifes mfumncai ST.HLE9.8ET EO0 wﬂlﬁ? S5 00RG o
ol P 7. % N ¥ T T

d. Aggregate mumbse and class of shares allottod @ folly pald o perssant to canbract wiBoul gegimient being recibved in casn.
The Bompany has nloiled aguily shares s hiby pad bar saneiderelions mcsved i form of deidion seEoe. pursunt o shareholde’s agrasmenl-and 1o Gouveremen| of Csha

nezficatinns. The velue of dishituton srets have baar detmirsd by an incapenoant vaius:

Farlimilns March 31, 2024 | March 35, 233
o, of Shores |
12080057 7,289 65T
W Sharchalding of fFromotos
Discionurs of sharaholding of promotors 2 at March 39, 2024 is &g Hsews:
to, of Shives ax ab Ehmge during the Mo of Shares 4 il ol Yeghange
o " Margh M, 2024 year MWarch 31, 2023 Talal Shares
A, The Tiits Power Sompsy Lio 20,70, B G FL56,00, 100 #0.30,55,653 5% [
0. GROCO LM P e LT 5-1!%;“ 19,5092 88T A% i
Tora BRI emmo  Sindnwe i i
Dischosure of shmehale |y of pr = as al March 39, B2 bs o faliows!
BramoiS Wi, of Shares as af  Change during the Mo of Shares s at W of "hchunge
March 31, 2023 yuar March 3, 2022 Todad Shanas
A The Tata Fuser Congsny Lid 20,30 55633 5.00,34 387 15041 I.‘?““."'I'.'n a1% 0%
8. GRG0 U BB AT 505, 70309 T 4532 364 i A%
Tutal 1 100% i
Asat As Ll
NOFTE 77 Oithsor ouuily Maroh %, 2024 Barch 31, 2027
¥ in crones # in crores
Rotainod carmings
Balgrcn ot henirning af yom b TARD
A Pra'd fer the yaar 1208 NEET
Chher Compemhengre meome T (e yeas (faod) L 5
EBalanoe o al ihw-end o e jear 123 55 155

Hatunn and purpose.of resorees;
Rutained sarpmgs
Rediired samings ame thae profils/ficas) thal e Company has,

h'np'r;qq 18 sdaile, becgs any it o pansra reseree, dividend o diter disinboatons e 19 Eh‘l’lﬂﬂdﬂﬁ_l. -
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TP HORTHEHRHN ODIBHA DIFTRIBUTION LIMITED
CiNAa0ei0Rm NP LER S0
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Wensitm: www. lpnodlcam

NOTES FORMING PART-OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENWTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARTH 11, 024

hAs at AR al
Fin crores ¥in crorns
HOTE 12 Capital gram mad consumer confribution towards Copdn! Assei
Mon Gurrand (At et 1ess smarisation)
Comsumer Corinbution iewsrds cost of capital usszts 108887 1.063.51
Defarmed Govemmenl Grorls lowards cong of apeal aessls 107 5l 1525
Total Coplial Grant and Corsumer Contribution Wowards Capltal Assabs 137417 1£H.T$
et Movement in aormumes candnbulion lowands coe! of cagdal assols
Chpmming tealancs 1,0 A fad agy
dd; Acditions dunng thir pear aTe 0 153,00
Lt Flsbaansd by 2 slsamest of profit ard loes [Refee nobe 28] 17654} B 85]
Closing Balmnos 320667 1,063 51
Nate: Consumer cormdbulien iowards caphial cas) ia amonized 1o 1he Stalemend of Profit ang Lnss t match s papemiasion charged on 885:48 coeadet oput of
FUEh cofiing#on
1miy  Movemant in Deferred Govarnmant Grants iowarde coat of capiial exaets
Opoming bakanim 1855 256G
Add Adsitions duing [he year e B ] 7N
[ 255 Ro'maned 10 P stalenedtt of profin e loss {Refer ndig 25 {11 B8: (1053
Chosing Batance WT% 16.25
Cavernmant qranls fnoun teen ecsived loe he perchese sf camain llems of Propedy, Pant & Equipment. These are nd uluifiied condiions o conlingenses
aftrchat 1 those grants
As at As it
HWOTE 21 Bither non currend Gabilities (Al snorised cosi] March 31, 2024 Marcih 1%, 2033
¥iin crores Tin cromn
Sovornmen pubaid s owands cos of capetal eses) S88 81 ]
Ezmgumeary’ dopasis for widks unoier pogresi T3 T613
[aapesit from aupplersivendsr 2 1223
I3, 1R
NOTE 27 Fimancial Lishifilies
A Mon Correni Financeal Liebeliliss As ot LR
Long Term Boasrowings March 11, 228 March 31, 202l
¥ im oroves Fin croves
Sacured - af amorbised cost
Tarm Loar fram benes
{1 Lien; Bank ol bndia (UAT) [LTRF =M
{ii} Incian Bark T156 =
Total Long Term Bamrowings ST 60 Pl

Thi Company s not delauias an any lagna oeyabie, The Compary fas wilised ine loan far e SascSoned

Inelsiments for e mrm ioan from LR s paynbie o quararty hasis and repsyment has slarted from duy 2023
Instaments Tor i tarm (aan-2 frgm LUBE s payates on toariely bess ang @paynent will siaet fmom June 2004

raks ety for g T Saan from Rdian Bark am payabls on muaredy basls and repeyrent will st o Devombar 2004

Thie rate of tiksrost bor e basn rem BRI iz 8l 6 metilis MELF plus spresd of 0% per anmum with sl ress) L pessenily ol 8 35% {Marcn 51, 2029 7054,

Thia rate of irkanest for torm ian-2 fram LD 's 810 months MELR gie armam = 03 with b arevsl resal, e presensy al 8804 (Match 31, 2025 BA5%).

T rate of [nt=resd for e nan from bedien Bani is b 3 maniks MOLR per annor = 0% with guarkly el ie pravacdy o 8 45% (Mach 19, 20970 0A]

Term Loans fom Unier Besicof indin o repeietie ovr 58 eci@l glsialy instalmenes.

T Loans from fndian Bark is repayslie pver 02 egusl quarsdy irmesimants

Tear 2ang e LA ond indie Bank g sevuned 3gains st par pesee charga on 8l the-ettine movedle and mmmatile PPE of e Gompeny, both peesant and
Hiluin; rikchiding paast (raribarmed b the Company rom MESTO a8’ pariarms of ihe wesiing orded 2ne poe passy chage oo arlie cavenl sssels, bath poesant
and Riture exciuding resifcied sssels & pe wealing dnder

Tha Comasy has satinfied sl 1he dodl coverants prescibad n he leTs of tank leans.




TP HORTHERN COIGHA [MSTREALITION LIMITED
LB DR 02 1 PLCDISRS
darugai, Balasore, Odisha, India, TEE0S
Weballe: www fpnodicom

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE FTEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 3024
B, Gurront financ izl RabiFies

(AL amamzsd cost) As at B at
ta) Bhis LT harrowings March 31, Z074 _ _March 31, 203
¥ it erorss Fin cropes

Secured crodil lecEitlens fram banks
Clwemri®
(¥ Szate Berw of India 481 1884
(il Feceral Bank of g TaE Tane
] Adis Bank # LI ]
(] Linige Bank oF Iredla = \RTE
Curnnt masriien o kng @ a0 0,17 1138
Trtal shart $erm borowings 132,40 20831

& [0 peprezsrm ameun bedaw (ha spcnding oif nomn adapted oy ihe Gompany

(b} Securad tredit laciliies

The Compssty him availed desgied orodil ndliies of ® 500 crrms (March 31, 2020 ¥ 500 erorss] frevn-Shate Bark of Irdia-winich includen fund based limif of © 250 cores
(Mharcr) 31, 2029: ¥ 250 erorwa) Al ar Lyareat rata for sopiicioin @ Rooih MCLR plus 25 bpe resel st ball ywarty inbareals (March 31, 20235 ssplizebi 8 haonih MCLR pluz
2% ps rmaet gt hatt yearly inferveE] And o hesed imil of # F50 crores {Merch 31, 2023 £ I50 cromes| At @ commission of 35% per aniuen | MeTh 1, 2023 8t
coommismon af 0.35% pe- annam),

The Compeny hes svaise securd creil faciiities of ® 390 cromes. (Meech 51, 2008 0 300 amres} rom Asds: Bk which (Freludes fond basod limis.of 180 croms: (Merth
31, 2023: 2 150 eroves) 810 Inioras rmka for applicable 1 Marth MCLR resss 4 marimihy inbene (Wandh 31, 2023 a1 4n roenest s for soolicatia | Momn MULR et a
oty irdarvar) ang hignfnd saged liel of ¥ 160 crares (March 31, 2073; ¥ 150 croms) at o at 2 som-niseicn of §.35% per amum (March 31, 2023 at g cammisaion of
X85 Bor B}

Thesa tacibias sre-seoure aganal firs) gan pased chargs on all (N cume SEREt (her Man eesincld g per waslicg onder, meliring corsuma© secunfy deporitn ard
GoveToment depasii receneed i 1ha farm of grans subsidy, relief lud sic) bolh presend and fullse with ofer fenders of (e Dorpany unde Mulipie Batkag Arreng=men
[ Cipdlsteral sse iy Sacied pan pasos chacge on grime ikl PPE of e Camgary.. axchuding sssets mensfaired o S Company' Mom NEBCO @3 par mims al
fhes yeslng cothet, vilh oifter i@ndens of the Sompamy undar Mallipl s Baing Arengeties [MEA]

The Company Fas svalled sacmd avnrra® (ime of § 5329 crores | T 74,78 croren lrom Fedomil bank, ¥ 18 81 crores o Stale etk al wdia and # Nil from Urnian Bank
o Pl {lanch 31, 202 7 18793 cranss [ 7457 cranss boam Fecuial Bara ¢ 14 62 crores from Site berk of indie and ® 100 57 omran frew Urion Bark of indialy at an
Jbrant raln of B20 % pa, 790 % pa and 8.24 % 2.2 respecovaly (March 31, 2023 o an inleres) foli of 706% pa, 617 o4 ang §.24% aa re=pacvely]) | Thess
faciboes am necured soninet fcsd depoaila of § 27985 corss (Mach 30, 2T00.¥ 362 88 oone)

(5] Gurrent borrowings secud against current assels

The. quatsily 12ILMS O Siiam-anis of curment senats fiod by the Compary ¥ DS &80 agreament with fhe: books of socount. Tha Dompanry as na) usss-ary of fn
borrowngy brom Darks apart for o porpose for which 1L e 2een

NOTE 22 Trade payables B oot s 3t
Margh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fin arotes ¥ fn crores:
Tmal mulstanding guws of micro anierpises and small sniaiprisas (Fafar Mole 222 lor debs of 5500 hLRT
duas i3 ming and small criterprisex)
Todal oalsianding dues of sreminn albar then mios artemniees and small aslepise S8 587 6
Tutnl iracs payables 531.64 GOz TH

721 Trode Payahles incudes § 382 71 croves nulshan oy duss of relaled panios as of March 3, 20624, (March 31, 2023 # 358 54 oromes | (refer note 3

722 Pl scoullion, (e Comaany han inlised the prosesy sl iderilying the mecre e Bmall srprices: dor ard small ectemngas undar the Miord, Sma: enc
Msdium Enlerprines Davmopmant Act S038 [MEMED) have besn Gélermensa Eased on e irfarmation svailable wilh he Compary ond e regudrd dischsoms

TR GIVED DElw
A5 at Az
Particiiliy _March 31, 203
¥ i ¢ rorrs Fin croees

(8] Principal smounk due b micm and sl etomreen 503 151
b}  Fmorestdus on oboue I i
e The ameenl of Alrest pied by ne buye in ferms of sectian 16 of ke Moo, o

Emal and Medium Entemitess Deysopment A, 2006 (27 of #K4bL song wih

e arouris o I payicen made 1o ke supplar beyona fhn sppored tay

during mech accounling e
fdh  Tha amoonl al mesmEl e and payable for the pero of calay in maing

paymen [which has baan paid Bul beyard o mopdinted ey durng the year)

bl withoul @gdeyy me irferest specied undar ihs Micro, Smal ind Madum

Emsarpricas Dewelapment Ack 2000
(%) Theamcourd of inkeresd poresd aad femsining onpshd = -
i Theamouet of eiber irsras) oug and payablo ovan in the succeeding yeem. K £

ursl such date whian ha (Rkerest tues o pbave are acheslly sd o Ihe smat

it wisis

SERT N
i ﬁlﬁiu,: g K
) .!5",- &
[+ W b. -
Y Mw A f
Y ‘i".' | . o gt |




TP NORTHERN OIESMA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED

CIN L FORE1 1P LECDIEESY

Jdanugan, Balasore, Gdisha, india, TEG0H

Wobnite; wenwtprodioam

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

253 Trade Poynbles Againg schedulé

:ﬂ:l

)

A5t March 31, 2034

| Crubstamiing for follewing perinds from due date of
payend § L
Particulars !T::a
Mere than 2
Lows thun 1 year® 12 Yaar yehis
[ay Tetal dulsisnding duis o micr emameas wod small 5308 08
foitiey o e
[10) Tt ewittancingg ddumes of srwditors ofer ihan mic 150 3
AlarpriEas a0 s Al antemr v B | 1,38 1308 a1
(1 Dizputed dues
(3] Talg! cutsiarding cuss of me errlaigrsas and sirl a1 one ant
anlgrponEn
(s} Toral aulstardmg duss of drodiler Gther IhER Micm P
anisrpriges and smarl erferprizes
Takal 5T165 531 1400 FrIEL]
A% al March 31, 2023
Curstanding bor followirg pedady froom dus dais o
Panticulars paymaat § !Tnl.ll
T——— crore
Lass than 1 Year* 1-2 Yaar
ymars
i Lndigpeing dyos
(] Todal sutstareling duss of micro:erianpmsan and small TRL = £ Tdin
e pringg I
(ix] Tedsi oitsiancog dues aof dwdiors ofer ke mion
anterprises and smal spteqjirss g Ll LT
i} st duts
et Talek ouislanding e of ricm animrprises aed 2ied R a5 B 0o
L S
B} Tolsl tulsiarding tues of zramitors oiher thon. mic| B
sen pnil small anteprices:
%I“ E8H.T0 TLI [
# Whare chus date of payment |8 nol gvalistke tati of Famsacion bas been onalde’sd
= inedidps amaung nnd due e et Moens 31, 2004 @nd Meeh 37, 2023
WOTE 23 Oiher financial Rakiliias - cumrent As at s ot
(At prmoctised cost) March A1, 2024 fdarch 39, 2023
T im crores Fin croms
Pagabia to amployaes 437 A5
Becurihy depom rom Gorsumacs BE3AT THSE2
Camils erediiom 2E1ED 1115
Irdmresst accrued Bul.nal dus amsacurily deousits fram slecirzily consuman 4438 4154
Fayahle to residuary company 1BAd rar
Inirereest pesrymd bul ol dus e bommwengs 311 &
e posTiaod On government gean lunds 1090 e af
Tarll balarcing résete B} -
Corsunor conrounan far work undar progress 19572 68,72
ippasd from supplissfencos &an 440
'Ié?l.ﬁ 1 ﬂ?.&]
Male: The seauiity ceposns from eleciriclly consumers cary Imersst M B TR pa (Mamch 2% P BTS% pa) ard s aduistRe agairs) prvenr B of he respeciive
cusipemens 38 per tandf regulations. The ol is refundanls on samenoer of sbeoiraty carmncticn by (he oordumsn
MOTE 24 Other awment lisldiithes As ar s at
Morch 31, 3024 Mavch 31, 2023
¥in crares Tl exntan
Stmtulory labifies mar TTEs
Avanc from oorgumens AR TS A% 50
120043 124,38
———--3




TP NORTHERN QDISHA DIETRIBUTION LIMITED
CAN: U4 1 DROR MG PLEQIGE51
Janugen|, Batagore, Odizha, (ndis, TSE0MD
Wabsile: vy iginodl com

NOTES FORMIMG PART OF THE FINMANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2024

NOTE 25 Raggulatory Dolarrsd Account

Accoumting Policy

1

[

i

Thin Cirmseasy delarmnes rmerma gapn || o sunglefshar(al i sciul miemn o misemn amitied) m espect of il reguliled oparagons |n acconcmnss Wil ke promsions of
jrad A5 114 - Rasquimenry Defwrsl Sossurds’ raad wil the Gudanse Mote on Raie Requisisd Acihvlies 2sued by The sliute of Chactered Ascourdise. ol Indie [ICAT) el
baserd A they prrvcpies. lakd diow undir 1he reisvamt Tatil SogelitonsTond Ceters oliffud by e Blsetinty Ragulatorand e aciua ot epacied scioos of he reguisier
Lot e mapfestie nquinioy Tainevorh Aopropriale adjustrans i respecl of sich reyenue gaps s suda in e reguliloy dalersl 3t ol the reopeclve yoar o Bai
fencas which 2re raasonably daterinapla aed Ao significant unsrtsiny Rl i sich dolmrminalinn

Thess adfumimentaecerusls mpreponting myonee gaps s camed forward ds Regulatery deferal acooes datliicredll helsrces Requlatoey AssainRoguatory Ll
o2 |bn cesm migy be i |he Enancia satamens. which would te reccverpdimlunmed treough fuhey bifing bomad an Tluese [T delanninatian by o regiEst in accotance
Wi Ihn efeciricfy recrslionn

The Company resadia separals ing oo i1 aolence gheel i
J. v totdsd ol 1 ragidniory tetaral sacaunl dehil batasces B reatod pefurd fa balances; and
i th totet of ol reguisliry disamdl aceouni cradil helances and maind dafrfed Lis balsndes.

A saparate ire dem s presanted in e Satemant of Pofit end Loss for the mal mosnnaes in eegulaiony 0efams aqoounl,
Rt Regudaced Aciivilios

A par T [l A8-114 Heguisiory Daferral Accaunts’, e buslness of sserizty distibubion i o Fate Regulnmd aclivity whenir OERC. Ihe regulate delermires: Tarf (3 be
snarged from comsumes based an preverivg (sgulilinm in pece

P Odisha Ewsiicly Rogaisory Commizsion {Terme and Condlivin f Deirminaion of Whealng Tarf and Hotall Supply Tad) Reguiato 214, m nppicaple. Thesa
pagdalions, wgather will fhe vesting oree. requine OERS to delarming tacf i @ manner wharmn e Sornafy con icover (8 lesd and varabls cosks relucing s rats
of et o appeowed equbty base. (v e censumers. The Campany dwhmrmines ina Revesue Regululoy Asyets and Liabiities as pe- ihe terms sl comdllend. apricSes] in
Ihema Faguiations-ard Vieskrg Drds

A por (g vestng order, the ATES sy Erepckicy which cil bi passad o 50 custormens I fivee fof ihe frsl tan yeam. Ay gaky loos izmg e o fowal! lighat ATED iaeeps
wigea-wip fiom] tragectary beianga-io e Company anc @ ot pised on o the cusiomes. The Company delermras (he amoont of such gan' iots Baged o 3858 pirase
purekass coaf pily S feam ol ofher ooanges inciuding cpEraEon. Brd MANETINGE ANPANSGY, OTIpIooe cond, Frenoe cool @ (9 SANENE B8 IR INrougn G0 the

T 2 par provaiing nogulsiiern aad Leilf dden whils detemening Faqulatony Defomal Accou Balires

i I of the Applizdble fegulslicea e Camdnny submils s Arru) Revonos Reguremmis [(ARF) badere tegirring of S ymar for appeaval of the OERC. Aftar clnse of
fraritsel slspinasis e 8 ynar, 19VAGIE| Acome and expenss (nqutred by the Company ans rmvinaod anc aporoved by he DERD ii 19 form of Trie-un Oroer

As ol A al
March 31, 7024 March 31, 20231
¥ im orores ¥ in croren
Reoguiamory Deferral Acoount - Anseisi] LiahiHies)
Faguinicry Aassis RLIE : L35
Feguiatary Assetsinbilities) X3 [EL]
Movamen| of Feguisiory Asssts/Lisbd ifies of datriurion bupran aa por Sobs Reguloied Aclivies @ s folloes
Particiudars
Muven 31, 22 _March 31, 2033
F i orores. Fin erores
Hegulmary Inpame Eaperness; cring s yhar .
{il Power Furcnass Goat (Mormaliv) nel-off rebate ZE3tAE 2aem
{ii} - Oty exrienses g per fs leems of Tadl Raguabions noluding Roeumn on Cgulty 1.37. 104157
(K] Awsiante reverun nef of casf discacnt ingiuding ron tEf incoma em " (3,797 57} (A3
Mot movamont in regulataey daferal balences {HHEE) (&) 5 86 [rrirl]]
Figjidsinry [menonnss Vincoma mcegneed 0 OE1HB) £ 5 [8.70)
[ipering reguiaiony asssts () {38} 2.5
Cloming regul@tony (llanifies)zssotm (A=) [FEL] B

Haead o |ha i uo ordar upls Maesh 31, 2023 Mondar® ncarm has been oiowed scliding et /e ACooeingiy, ha Company has fatbined mistar rery [ret ol
depracistion, fance soul and e ivstekion cosi) axdladng [he meters retated uider vaIDLE Sovarmmen| achems apeh an IPOS ebe. fistaad ol Man- 1T imoome:

Thee aygregate of such misar mol (nel of deprecimion, finance oont s olhes insalalen conti) reoogrmes dorng the yaar i 830406 croves-(including ® 1747 croma
petaiving 1 sarisr yaam)




TP NORTHERM ODSHA DHETREBUTION LIMITED
CIMar030R201PLEU2SE]
Janugani, Balanare, uesha, eckie, TREHD
Wignaite: weasw tpnodiccom

NITES FORMING PART OF THE FINANG AL BTATEMENTE .l.tj.!.ﬁmm pE\'EAREidED MARGH 3, 2024

Trim-ap oeder

TH‘!_E'-LIWBT!IF dmarmings mregme gaps (e supiesd shorfal in actual reluine o m.nr'lrlldl i respect of s reguinied apersioig n ﬂ“ﬂ:ldﬂ"m wilh Iha Drowisiors: af
il 5 194 = ‘Rmguinipry Cefgrral Accounts” rasd wih the Clafancs Holy on Rale Hagilahed Aciviies e by (he Ietiule of Chanered Accocsans of ndia [ICAL) and
tassd oA (he princiges: o dosn undes e releseet Tant FequiaicrnTar' Orders rosified ty 1bs DERC and the wctisal ar gxpeciod actiors af e egulator der tha
apmicable reguatany frarm et

The CALHE [Tarms: and Condlidns e Delernaian of Whesing Tailt @nd Ralsil Sipply Tanf} Reguisdces 3023, ieguistond feques:ing SERT 1o delerninm 1 i 3
Fiannes al e Company, sunpsct o cetahn soecilic qmns a1 iossan alowad fo be retarad ueder the Vestig Order, can recguns i Teed arad vaiabihe Gosm scliging
A ke of MR ar AERTVES agquely base. from i cargmers: The Cempary detsimbtivs B Raweme Ragulatony Assets and Lisilms as pes e lmE 800 condiions
snesified In (hese Regaiators: i Wimp ol Hha roglinorm, (o Gompaey sl il Anngs Revanue Roguiramanls (ARRY bafone begiwing of (he year for approal ol fhe
(IESC. M clopa ol ‘nence stalemanss os & yem, ihe aciusl ssame Bd expemss incymad by the Company ses nndsemd gad sppnoesd By the BERT in tha fom of Trua-
wum Circar

[Jarang thea curmar ,-q:-.mnt:&nparymrrhdn-uu.mmnhn Lor EY 2072-55 alone with ARFL pesiiee Sor FY 2625 i noi (M raguiatias. Al going soogl dun promask of
farf finalisation, the DERD has [soued bus g o up o FY 22228 and ARR o FY 2024229 I thir rue up arder. (e DERGC has func fhae the loomsss houg icured
et ExpimEsE i virEoe e apRreed amanmt by e CERG pertaning FY 2010-22 ana FY X223

Th CEHE kas frued up riverus gag [ uighs ipes Marn 31, 2023, feaulling n 2 e rwamie eitamanl of 2146 82 crotes vie--vis e et aTived 81 uBng s
expanees e by B Cumpary. The Mansgemanl has sabindlad 5 patten wis GERC for review of fe sbowe lower sevanue aeitiemant and alsa seshing b cmifcafon
fram the Thal e v of FY 2022-25 cannesd oof |8 nnty prowinlonal and has nol been friskied | The maragemant Cellives 1hat tha Company wil ba sle 1o usldy adslinns
- piepEren 10 (e DERS and claim in tha noat SRR fings ' )

Aiza, durmg the cumeil ey, the Campany hes incomil addionl spensas undar e [olvdig heads &3 Epmbeesd b amnee spmowe by thn DERC for ®a fimancal v
Fleri el
Dparatnn wrd Momenana sipenses - § 2500 Sores

This Soripmvy comtiness bo el above a0E0CTa exparciies ga pars thisugh B e SoBumal, This marasemed telavm ol sere wil nol 5o afy adveres nssiel
jiFe iBlinmm




TP HORTHERS DDRIEHA DI TRINLITIDN LIMITED
TINAIE DROH E TPLCE SR
Sanusan, Bxmsans, Giahe, iwda, TE0TE
Fhmisite; werw Jatirck s

MOTES FONEMING #AAT OF THE FIMANGCIAL RTATEMENTE A3 AT AND 10N THE YEAR ENIED MARSH M. e

WIS 2 Rreesis cognitien
AqgussBng poksy

Foter Wom covmomrd p wiilf i mune b g el wan cooml i hie geees w A Iat U rassl R B thal e o e Tl
o riieh th Coommapamsy spm el e b kbt v b g o e fgeeets e AEites

FERA Y

ol e ligaiiary ate i fedomes

Bale of Paser « Dintributon .

Fireirias b (e supjs = poest o faesiniied s o ane DR reteins nenr ine far weh Gl ol o ey ey S L re=ds srmoamed nan . a et
ez i g

B liom dsiwer sy oy axceuchod fir 6l B 18 &7 BlSsge . oot $40 e pdll seysium oo e iy @ el of e et
v

Flarssitiat Niant peossps 2igegly 5 pecmeysbpe ] F s mpgheasis 104 400 GG UMGI0E Wi T Gompany vl frum B et on B of e
i e B Etiag

The Gnting, ks 3al e 2 Reglians e o Terd G 7 fin sl & gl |5 e Bl e
Al R sy A exwisiae oy s o eI ST wen s it s Fiwinar mTe ma tmadion
par -t sl Tl Maestei and S dbufied WL we FEely AE pr iha iy Tard Tlapintbiite. e Sampeng Al s AET gl oy
TR W ecnswn of AN dunpey 15 g = memries ot i T aga dieny Difterrad Aooount Satsnce

ﬁm.-ugr:muln-:_mu Far UsIN0i N | ALSimatian 51 praer & ] Wi | iy o b ool & peotple | m gere ey s el
i oo

Csmmhutinn fsr eapis @nris

Cheti AT BTy hemren proily, il aiel erpigit el WIS ST 8 ol T orovie o iy o Line Sy (- it an
enips ol fmoripl et Groniined iy oled bthiies WA DR U -l mm‘udlpl-l.l'lfmi'-ﬂll i LT LT T xj el Hai

s A ani sk i e derweera chiangm dol e i, e M dsEaly =mrﬂhﬂhmﬂﬂmnham'%
el L

Wisar Bt Ve Enveipd
Mareh 1. B53 Mwrch I, #i33
i apmres Fin cmns
Has s vom sismmesns
e sy A By parian® LEmn aFm T
Lo Cargli el Sl b L]
¥ oo enmiisist wfth Sxikdis 15TE AATWAT
Cithor i im s
Amzriialiciy i Eorkai - weRringisn 1] EX5E
Amariiubgn o grammm el g g e 1L 10 (L
Ammiisation & GrEmTIMECL JEG ) N ST e o [0 ]
Ry ol maler rend : el e
Dot chegmud! =aryrrue, o ] naz B
Ehirer sy o melili by WL [e8 ) ot
S i waz
A e s e i Lo i 13 RE
Todal rrihar opsring s LT 8T
M it S . N i 1~ I—

Diwwgrragbien il iuvanis
Ths Gl v el 0 @ ieglo lpo o prshl | = mm_mdﬂm.mmmmlun-mdfﬂnm ) gy el
Thias Futier diszioniim e eyl of 5] ragevd nn of vl @ pel raguinad

E-n-h:il*_ . .
T ketrwimy mli Serrrualian &bl B Ve AeS, orirae ey e enbimedd krhilies Vs ST Wit CLGATSST

M 34, gna

Flan coisis

Cnntract Satilities
Agaanse fnan sl © LTS
Tkl suniraci Belilics [T
Maznranaks
s (el aro s 4a
Unhder e dareslig nely nn nevasgn of s 05 20
Leen  Adrarmrms b dousis deits HESE [gd]
Slwd e jvmbibas Ard sV

ket i 0000 R o Sriag Uris yee frove oy g e et 6 1000 chab dnki] BdvATYS ST dsfiry T yumr i rastgrined i of 1
531 o

Crirecs namsts

Pl #260t b I pge) t conikdecation i aschangs foe goods o wervissy (Eslmn] s e otemer, Cothect sty st sl oot
b U riphis buascese s s rad dional.

Gontrmc Linhiditias

& gorrad LOiky [ De chigalon D e gone f weiem 0 § OSSR i w ik the Campany bes din fe - an vy ol
crnFEEkay i San) e fo-aoiem, 0 o sl e puye oSt bl - Congany wansiey l:wdl-i-‘-l—hﬁ-mm A qaninsr|
linlébly, L FEOMTEI] Wi T aapiiE=l & mids o e paynant w fm (whcdtevsr 6 oSecier; Commd landfes am mcogeined o e whee e
Cutvagtany gl it (e e B iRcLa L arsonon el Sm ctnma e ity skt Ddsden movite e e paroag dein

Urgitzart changes wi A epvanl sxaels Sl S AR b dss Sren oo ooy ®i e 6 e AR




WCITER FOBNE #ANT 0F THE PRANGIAL BTATEMSWTE AS AT AHD 1O THE YEAR CROED BARCH T1 7078

TP NGATHERN QOIERA DRETHIRUTICH LIWITID

GIfk:UHD0a0RaT PLC RS ST

Zamupan, Dabamis, Cndinha, india. TR0

WWabinda: wew riodLaum

= Eaiiliior 438Es
At hs at  Ram
Warch T4, 2034 Maroe 31, J03
el rnewnus Fin o Fin pmes
Crymrerey b vzn s m | Al 2o a2 s
Auke R o e Ded S g e yar L L s
Lo Timealinr o aobrar! ceals b mpwsublmias oinens L2 E] 1347 AR}
Cmaimy Bulanca ELCE N P12 )
23T Prite g Marts =
Tha e e g s e deien pesthe e aggreneim oo w1 oo e 1 b e a. il Vmdnd - (1 g
SR dral @ AN WD b whi e Ly ORI K OCogem e armnals b et Aapbaieg 716 oo e de g Il AF.
P4, B Campayg e ol i = o et Len a2 0w D el relmisd i Fror N (R R TG e s s st iy
i o+l e 0 U CURAHNEE O L i piiesisd 1 [lR03.
WOTEDY  Dhwr i
Angeanimy Poiisy
e v T 8 (WD O (= FcTi wivsd W e e tdrnin wil 1khit i Mhe-Compadgy Bes 1 et of e cen
ten minaniid iabp (el e s acrel oo bme e by v e mn oDy ookl sl sl the difdckes irioees e bnshin
sehizh i i o Hin] ey Bz 0 et i apl st gl B s ool (e lmeeria) semsd b hal Sl 1SS0 TN 0D
Al eyl
i Agyvenl Erarges [MES)
OrE ;hﬂ'unuuuu ] Uy (an Ty Fessiimes o (e ST S oo Soverum o) e ol DRt Rt o0 TPG |sdabio i
e e fanll agalitess i i1 R ex sl lsimi GH 0 EesESEn s of et of fookeyitny Reppeiod Ty oan
ar i drom
dmcentnm nn ot A Gollsella
Ay pmf e of DEAD yaesfiog st $is-Camypery o i b b | sz e il vt kg (o i oed g i o blch S0,
F0H - =i b e o] i I rasngrieed pd p gl ol il rastie at paki ainsaon
Dty - Wmwr Ernclwall ‘Wamr Ended
Mimr 74, dnge et 1]
lstrpal imsome an ¥ omimy ¥io erarms
Eaiib Duppinds il %Y AR dn
bt ran - opmiEling neome )
Dledzrpe papmnet yamtags LER ] (LF]
Dty gimrs” AES L asy
(it o e o chish (£ L LF] ]
10r37 IEIT
* phvedcal o= mvmp naln. L0 chargos wist
FETE ¥ Cost of posar | mnd taabare ghapm
e Endud Yo B
el 34, i Wirsh 3 1
Fm ootz Fin crames
Prowsr e Fo&t T zam
Toyemies o rharge AT e
S champes + 18 H
Eroas poskar ' wnil L] Eahtan MY
Leaca (il peverst pualuiuese) vl i {BER04 AR L
Fie peorery parzhms Al HENATI S0 crATge EIGATE iran
MOTE B Employss leeafis ssamss (sl uan Endad Tani Endesd
_W;!ﬂ!’ ¥ aora
Edlanim, mupmm s oy IR aa
Dol sl b provibe! ot wther ks (b fedi #3.5) gL nae
Bl pellaie ssperingy LLY {EET]
Termmai taresl supees 2 [ERE L] Lh 8
oty iy cpiin s gl iy pare |t noke bl e nele S8 :
o ampdeyss nansff arhe fas AR RE R
Lz rpryrpia codl tesimEaron [V T8 Py
Wt ampayos fmnedt oesenes (TR




TP MORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LINMITED

CIM: LA FB0R2021 PLETISST
Jdpnugan|, Balasare, Difmha, India, TS6HY
‘Winbite! ww'w.tpnodL com

NOTES FORMING PAST DF THE FINANDIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE"F'HRE MARCH 31, 2004
Fhare Based Paymanin

Acoounting palicy

Thiz Taka Pover Gompany Limited { Hoding Company®} fus grarted smpiogse shoch opicns bo the sligble smologaes of the Compary.
A% por the acheme on [uling of 1hn yesting cordibon he Hakding Coempany wil 50 48 aquity ahares i the eligiin ampipyaes of 1hi
Campariy.

Ther cosd 3f sguily-gedied ransactona @ detsrmined by 1ha fair Vil of hotling compary's shese 8 e date whan the gramd |8 iAo
iming an porepeials yeuston modal That mat in recogisad over (ha parnd m which the perforrmance andior sendan condiions are
fued In emplayes beriefits sspense. The cumlative axpards rcognissd for squity-seiling tmnactana of msch epoing dass umiil the
yoaling ot wilocks jhe exient b which the vesing pored fias expli=d and i compankes best estimate of the number of equity
rlrments thal wil viimatoh vt The sxoese o credil in b siojemeant of profil and ioss for 8 pedod represants the imgvement in
tumulative aipense recognised an al the beginning ams and of (hat period and is recogrissd in emaloyes Tenallls cxpmise

Zervics and not-markil perdarmancs sorediions are nol {sken inbe accourd whon delermirng the graisl daba lar vilua of awards, bt
tha likelincod of ihe condlions being Met B sesessad as part al the compansas bast estimatis of e nurner of equily instruments this
will sty vesl Nonevesiing congdiders are reflocizd 1 ibn fair vales of an award and lsad toan Immadiate Eganming of an awmnd
uross s e Bso sorvice midlor pediemstics condilons

P mpenae i recogrisad for owards that do nol wWisnatey vest Deafusn nonsTarkel performance andion ssnice sonditons haue fol
biwn tresl Whars avsrda:include 5 morket of pan-vesting candifion, (ha ransactens mne rested A visted imeapocive of whather he
ekt oF roh-wesling conddon iE satefied, provided that al alver pefsrmance andlior sorice condilions are sudialisd

VWnEn Ee b oF an eguily-aeties avard G mecifod, (i mnmum espande recognieed (6 the grant date falr value of the unimeibeg
wamid, prowadi] thi abginal vesting ferns of (he awerd 3. met An pdditonal ecerse. mEsIwed 45 at (he dade of modification, i
reasghlasd Tor any modfcation: shal increesas the total folr valvy of the ihre-oesed gayment Irsdaclioh, of s aMenwise Banadficial io
the simileyes, Whars an award 5 cenceled by the ey or by the coursarrary, any emaining element of the g voliss of the award =
axpenssd mradabaly hiough polit o oss

Equity-astiled share option plan
The Tata Power Compay Limitl — Employes Stock Optlon Plan 2022

Dwring the year, e sharsholdan of ihe Folding Company approved The Tae Powed Company Limilesl — Employie Slok Optism Pan
2025 (S0P 202/ Plar’). During Mis year, the Holding Cosmaany has grantad ampliyes sioch apien o the aligible erployess of he
Holing snd I scnsidinres, including armioyees af the Company o an exerdise price of R 248 B0 (Rupess Twn Hundred Fary Mo
g0 Eighty Padeo) pur aolion exsabls irls squlvalart squmy shames af ) each subged 1o fulflimant of vesting condifions:

The expenas recognised ar gmployen services recotvid during tha year is shown in the following talio;

Waar Ended Year Ended
March 31, 3004 March 31, 223
Fin crores i efures
Expenss urising fam souiy-selled sns-esed paymeml s Ui,g -
Total cxpensa arising from ahare-basad paymant kransastions § =
Movemants during e year
Oitic 2kencisatis = M bogidring of the year . .
Grantod duning hs year 204,658 -
Fodailo’Exprag durag e year "
Exercizad during e yesr " -
Expired during the yea L t
Oipian meercisable al the and of (ke yaar 204,800
Share price fnr gptions axsnssed during the year Hal apghicable
Stamuirsig coniractual lile 248 Yene

The holing company has wstimated fair vake of opons baing Bk Scholss macel The falawlin ‘sssumplions ware: used. for
calotion of fair vahie of options gronied

Year Ended Yuir Endod
Assumplion festar Ml peresh 34, 2024 March 31, 2023
Diivigand Vald (") 0.70%
sk frue inberes rade { %) T23% L
Eapetied e of share oplion {anrs} 3-5Ynars -
Expacted wolemly (%) FHw -
Wisighlad Avaiage Share price 25660 T
Waighiad Avarage Falr Vaium at the massuremenl dales L ¥

The gepeckid udllilly reliecin the assUmpiion Mal ihe historsal yolalifty over & pedod smilar 6 the o of the options o indicalive of
i lrandy, whoh may nol necassady be iha actusl ouicoma




TP NORTHERN ODESHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
GIN:U401 bBOR202 T PLED SRS
Januganj, Balagors, Odisha, India, 756018
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WOTES FORMING FART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

MOTE 30 Finance cosls ¥rar Endad Year Endar
Margh 31, 2024 March 11, 2093
Fincroms ¥in croms

Irerest g0 corsumer smcurty deapoills &t amotsed cost 5046 41 56
|riarast on cash credit sarred o amortised dost - banks 1553 14 452
[rterast on iang term boriing & amortised cost - benks 3208 T 40
Oither bammwing rosl (ammiimant eharpes, processing kes el 436 ast
102.53 [TED)

Bomowing costs dirscly abnutate o the seqesiion, sorstuctian or productian of qualfying dssels that neressarly ke 2 substanlis perad
of e 10 gek ready for s inended w50 or sl are capislized 8s partof the cosl of the quisfying asaat Al other borrowing coals are xpenasd
it e paniad Inwhich they oeour Bomowing eeals eonstst of inlermst and olher costs thal 30 aabty Inoure in cunnsclion with the harrowing ef
funis, Borowing cost also Mckudes sschenge dfforencas to the sdend oot as &n edjustmant o e banwing costs.

MOTE 31 Olhar sxpenses. Your Ended Yaar Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

T ia prores Fincrores
Fepalrs uad malnangren:
{1} Busiding 132 213
In) Planl anid sguijpsment 23881 ZaB AT
(i} Vahikles and Offion anuipte 056 047
()} Furmilorme amdd Fistures o&Es o7
Rart 245 16T
Consullarey (2es (rafar note 21 1) 155 BES
Lagal charges 347 348
Advorisament and marketing exponsss 78 188
Tarif baldnzing wsarmve 38 -
Elptritity oo samplinn Sapaness £.00 i
Telaphona expensas 212 152
Irsurance premium .80 2.88
Tripveiiirg and convaymnoo 2 66 414
Office axpensas 520 a8
Mgwance lor doobiful daits 50.78 6453
Chutsounsed &Ry Srpanses 19.43 1352
Waleh and ward pxpensas 210 627
Bifirg and collsction axpensag 13623 B3.56
Prowisions for clalms snd compensaton 1.04 168
Dirmchons s#ling faas £.435 .45
Z5R enpemdtung {rofer nols: 371.2) 187 1,88
Whsnnllannous aipensas 1.3 1.98
Loes on reliremert of progerty, plamt snd cquipmen 0.7 o2
Total athar sxponses 50545 avoay

31 Paymants Wb audilars

Coraulsrey fees ncluds audiors rermunerstion a3 follcws: Yaar Enocd ear Endad
Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, M033%

¥ in crowes Fin crores
A& auditors
Audif fes {Including Goods and Sarvices Tax) .51 0Aag
Tax audit Tee 0.0% 00z
Lirited Rovizs (L2 023
10 ofiveet capuily,
Diher servicas (onnification frosh a0a2 naz
Reiinbursament of expanses e Eird oog

)] o#a




TP NORTHERN DDESHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIN: 4D CB0RA0TPLSL 5351
Jenuganj, Balasare, Odizha, India, 7560715
Wabssite: www tpnodl com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

.2 Dalsils of CER axpenditure

Year Ended Yoar Ended
Partieulars 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Fin trares ¥ in crores
(&) Grosa amaunt regquined 1o be spant oy ihe Company during the year 320 240
111 Amauml gpproved By [he Bowd o be epent duting the year aze 2,40
g1 [ Amoiinls the year snded o March 3 : InC | ¥eltobepaidincash |  Total |
i Co Londpraul S of amy e = = -
i an othir | il BEnvE: d.ha a33 A 87
itng the a 1 : in Cash | Yot to be paid ln cash | Total
| Canalnizteniacguistion of any aset - = | -
il 2n oirer than (i) sbava 157 027 | [T
(o) Dotails related to spentionspant obligations:
‘faar Endod Year Enced
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
# In croms T o crovres
. Employabily and Employment (Skilling for Beelhaods) .54 0.73
b, Educatan (nciwding Franclal and Dighal Lierscy) Lk 0.4z
£ Essmniuil Sarvices (rieain and Envirgnmaont] 1t 068
i Enlraprommeshin 483 nis
el mmound in ralaton o
- Qn=gaing prgact - 0 51
Total ElLT8 =

MNOTE 12 Tax swpensos

ni

Actounting polkcy
T3k Exponses Homimeas ourmant 5 exgonnse and delered ta

Curredt e

Cumant incoma fax sssess and liabillizs gre measwred 8t the armourd sepestisd to be racovemd from o paid 16 the Estion sutorilies The e
rates and G lws uasd 1o comaute the amount are those bial sie enacied & tho: reporing date in e courtry whang the Campany opeates
and gererales tsbEa noama

Curmem income kax reibting ko ilems recognised Sutside profit or I6ss ia-recopgmsed Digsde profil or kms. {eithar |n gther comprehensve income
or In wuRy] Corenl b bems sm recogrised in conelslion 1o the underlying mrsietion eiber in OC| or finectly n equity. Mansgement
peridically evalusies positions kan in the tax returns with respect o sfustions in which appicabie tax segulations a:e subject 1o interpretata
ang considors whilher (| is probalds 1het a tscation aulhoriy will secent 80 uncarain Ex matment, The Compeny-ahad milect the effe of
unzertainty For mach uncetain s trpatment by using eliher most ksly method of cxpected valus metmad, Sepsnding an which melfiol pradics
bitber pesolution of the trastmant

Dofarred Tax

Deferrat tax s rcogrized o lemporery diffisrences bebwoon the camying amoants of assats and [iptifes in ihe lnsfcists Aataments and he
compsponding tax Base ussd |n the computation of fsable poft. Oefered tax abiifios ae penarally moagnisad for &l lixmble wmporany
diffaroncss Datesssd tax 2sasts e genomly reocanisd for & deductile temporany difesnces fo the extont that il & prooatie INAr tastls
pradits will bis availabls agamst which ihose didudible Ismporsny diforeacts o 3e atisad. Such dafemed tox asuels and labiities are not
recognized ¥ the bemporary difftence arises from the inlkial moognifion of asaets and [isbilitas m a transacion thel sHects naithar th e e
prafit noe the accounting praft

Tha eamying amount of delered | 3ssats = reviewsd © soch eporting date nd edused o the edtant hal © s no lengar probublo et
suffizient msable prafit wil be avaiabie o aliow sl or padt of the cefomed tax assot o be dilized. Usrecognisad defomad e assely we e
gssesser ol eaoh mponing dats and sm recognised in the exdent hat i es boooms probeitis that Ut tEabin profits wil afiew e defemed
tand BEsed bo be enverad,

Dofrrred an liabilfies and sssets mme muasured o the tas rates that ars eepected bo agply In tha perid m which the (il i setlled or the
jmdil reafisnd. hased on b reies fand L I} 1het hayve noan andacted of substsntively enacted by tho end ol the rpaning penod,

Cmfarred inx relsiing fo llems moognised outslde prall of oes & eoognizen citside predlt or ks (elhar 0 olhes coMAarEhensiVe INGORTR-Or 1
iy)

Diafarred tax awseds Bre recognised for unused tox lossas 1o 1he sdent that it 15 probabie thal tersbée pafit wil be svalabio against which the
|oEsas can be filsed, Sanificant managomen jutgemnt -5 requined to detarine (he mmount of daferred |32 asseis hat can be recagniasd,
Franad upnn e Bealy tming and the level of hiurs tueathe grofte tgethar with future fax pianning strategies-
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HOTES EORMING PART OF THE FIRAHCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

321

s

325

NOTE 13

Tan sdpanss Year Ended Yeaf Endod
March 31, 2024 March 31. 2023
F|n crores ?incrores
Cunpni incgine lax shargs #021 2503
Adjuniment of ax reiating to sarie: year fod (=R 1]
DeFerread laxn
Radiang to originatien and reversal of Emporary difarances for comanl yiaes B 8 .37
Rilating in nrigingtion a7d movessel of cempormry difanances in respect of @ariss yaare [ am -
Total income tas axpense reparted in the Statement of Profll and Loss 4750 34 99

Reconcilistion of tax sxpense and the accsunting prafit multipled by Indins domestic tax rate for March 51, 2024 and March 31, 2023

Yaar Ended ‘fear Ended
Partinam Miarch 14, 9024 March 31, 2021
Fin eroms P incrores
Erafit fram eonlinuing operations before intome tax axpenss 180,46 150,66
Ta &t tive India's statulary 1ax rote of Z5.1T% dg.a2 37.82
Computed sxpeciad tax axpanses
-C5H expenses o1 tar
Others 0,43
incame {2x gRperse -llil'ﬂl 3840
Tax mapensas In respect of sarfier yasr g {3.43)
Tutal icome 100 SNpENEE 47 .50 34.85

The Comgamy has made provislan b incame tixat the st of 25 174% { Tex rate 220 Plis Surcharge 105 Flae cass 4% oo tai & aurcharge |
irgocordance whh narmal provisicnssof g Inaamo Tax Ast, 1269 for the year ended Biinoh 3%, 2024 2nd Marsh 37, 2023,

Daferrod tax Aability As at Az at
Defarred tax Hablity on accaunt of - March 3, 2024 March 31, 2023
¥ in croras ? In crores
Accolerabed teprecalion 1o 13s purposes (7157} (43,08}
Browigion for doubtful debls 36.09 2279
Post emplayment smployes benafis 10.64 -
Total [18.54) 22,
Crther comprehensive incomel|xpenses) Year Ended Year Endad
_ March®, 2024 March 31, 3003
¥ in crores F Ly crores
A (ot will (8 e TaciasE TR0 o profil or es
Remessurament-gains|iossas | on defined bensht plans [a4.98) 570
el Movaman in mgulstory dafersl balznces 4408 (BT
Total olher comprafencive income - =

Post-monulsiton of husinese. the Company has decided to et ponwun ond getuly benedis payabls (o erwhile WNESCD omployees as defines
persdit plan undor ind A5 19 "Empiayee Banafs”. Sorseguenlly, (ne sost and liability of providing such benefits & determinod uking ihe projcted
unfl eredit methad (FUGHM), Ameng othar matiers, the application of PUCK wsulls in recogaifon of emaasuroment gali losa, cemprising Hems
such s anlusnal gains and losses snd affect of the asset cailing, in the Qthor Comgrehersbe income (OCH) The smalnt of remeasuransnt gaind

v Aucluates perod on porod based an chang2s in aowadal azsumplionn including discount mie and martality e,

T ensura offseting Enpuct i [he 00 and the Balsnee Sheat, ihe Company mecognises eguviden! amount 85 Regulatory Deferral Acuolid
—nzome’ expanse in he 021 The amount of Ragulitory Defers! Azctunt - Incoeme! expenis recognissd in the OCHin this mannes luctuaies o ine
withy and in cantrany 1o the Rameasuremant gun! loas. Based on the Yaestng Crder, the Company will o allmwyed to incllde and raeaver this amaunt

it ravenus frem customars only whan e amount 5 pakd 1o tha st for onward payment to employees.
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TR NORTHERM DDESHA CISTRIBLTION LIMITED
i L0 s DR 2 PLOD 1854
Janugon|, Balasor, Odisha, e, TEE018
Wensife: waw, fpnodl_com; Emadl: contectusipoad, com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FIMANDWAL STATEMENTS A5 AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARGH 31, 2024
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TR NORTHERM DNSHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
TN S0 18 0RITIIPLEOI6SS T
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Related party tranasctions and balances
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TF NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTEON LIMITED
CI-LHo T e0Rp 1 PLE 505
darugan, Ralasoo, Odisha, india, 166018
Wabigita; www tpnodt com; Emull; contactusditpnonlcom

MOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINAMCLIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FUR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 11, 2022
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS A5 AT AND POR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2034

TP MORTHERN CHO1SHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CiN-UAN D90R 202 1 PLC 035051
danugan|, Balzsoms, Ddisha, india, 785080
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TPE-NORTHERN OOISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CiN:U4010ROR2021PLED3I53S1
Janugarij, Batasore, Odisho, India, 756418
Website: www. tpnodl.com

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 202¢
Hote &0 Disclosure ragarding details of assets croaled with Governmant Fund and used by NEBCOITPNDDL
As pef lasl detaile peovinsd oy the Odishs Power Transmigsion Company Limied (OFTCL) vide email dated Apdl 18, 2023, certaln sssats were created for NESCO
Irrwugh different schamee fomed by the govestimant and executed by GPTCL Based on defalls shared by OFTCL. Il carmying amount of such 35sels a= of Marh
91, 2024 = T 1473 54 proves (Manch 31, 2023 ¥ 1854 83 cromes) for completed sseets and & 23293 croves (Marsh 37, 202k T 23293 aroreg) Tor work in progress
(WIF), Thess are auhjast io detaiied verifeation and fecanclliatdon by various suthorties

Az par the Vesiling Order. the awnarship of these sssats has nol Besn Fansferad to the Company’ nawaver, It ean eomiines 1B sse hase pigels far supply of power lo
tha consumer. Since (e Company & not 8bie fo charge any depraciation for thasa assebs in th ARR. the fair valus of these aesels fof the Company st the veeling
dale ks Wil Delsiis are given balow

As at March 31, 2024 T in crores
Wome of Schems = Completad Wir Toial
Biju Grama Jyeti YejanalBGJY OPTOL OFR) .83 : KER:
Deen Daval Upathyaya Gram Jyohl Yojans (DOWGY) 448 45 - 446.49
integrated Power Deverncment Scheme (IPDS) 28385 . 20366
Int=greted Foweor Develcpmant Schems (IPOS-T Fnasa i) 84,20 * 5420
Odisha Distrbution Sysiem Strengthaning Praject (OGSER) Gt 42 132.80 638,22
Odisha Distribution Sysfem Strengthenieg Projest (OOS5P) (Phasae-iv) - 38,20 50,00
Odisha Dadicated Agricultural Fshary Feader Prolect ODAFFP) 1310 4087 53,47
Soubbagya 2627 . 124,27
Gendhl Gramean Vidyulikaran Yolana 357 ¥ L&)
Total 147354 21203 1, 70647

*Excluding 7 81,29 Srone and # 8067 crore as s 3 part of equity conlrbution by GRIDCO durng the year onded Warch 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023

As st March 31,2023 [ % in crores
Hame of Scheme — Coamplittied WIP Total

Blju Grama Jyoll Yojarsl BoJT OPTGL DTR) Faa i ET )
Dsen Dayal Upadhysya Gram Jyati Yajans (DOUGIY) 44649 . A48 49
Intagratad Power Davelopmant Scheme (IPDS) 23456 E 295,56
Integrated Povear Devalapmenl Schieme {(IPDS-IT Phaze i) 54.20 - 54,20
Odisha Desinbulion System Strengihening Project (DDSSPY Sed T 13280 FIr.51
Odishe Dedicaled Agriedinirs! Fishary Faodar - L el 4028
Pradhan Manin Sahaj Bj§ Har Ghar Yojane — Saubhagya 1310 ALBT 53187
Sauthagya 124.27 : 12437
Rajiv Gandnl Gmmeen Vdyulliansn Yojane 351 - a1
[Total 1.554.83 23283 1,787.76

*Esxcluding ® 60,57 crone and £ 22 02 crome S5t isa part of equily contibubon by SRIDCO guring th year andsd March 317, 2023 and March 31, 2022




TP NORTHERN ODISHA DISTRIBUTION LIMITED
CIM:L4G1090R2021PLC03585
Janugan|, Balasore, Odisha, India, 756018
Webaite: www tpnodl.com

HOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024
Mote 41 Business Combinations

The Camparny Has baen Incorporated en Mareh 20, 2021 under the Companies ASl, 2073 (3 amended) Puisuan! b0 vesting order i9sued Dy the DERC dated Mamth 35,
202 (Westing Crder’), ihe Company scguired the business of distribuling power i Nerdherm Orissa (Business') rom the NESCO with sHecl fram Aprl| 7, 2021 {Vesting
Diate'), Accordingly, the Company |= -2 licensme 1o cairy oul e funcion of disrizaton and rtail supply of sleciicity covening the distribuban circles Salasaic. Bhadrak,
Baripada, Jajpur and Kaonjhat in the skate of Odishe for 8 period of 25 years effectve from Agl 7, 2021

The OERC fas iesusd the Carve Oul ardér dated Movembar 28, 2021 to specdly piieds and Rabilies wansfomed o the Company. The Cave Out order 5o issued by the
CFRT ackrowadges Ial underying detalls are not svaliable for cartan assets snd Ezbilltas. In accordance with the Carve Out Ousar, these amounis have been
fransierred {6 e Corpany and wil conBrue to ba it |paties. and they 2aanot be paid without vorficaton. These fabllitiss nesd o ba varifind through &n extecnal agancy,
Cinee verdiad, the Company |s-obliged to Slsshangs the Same wpon the OERT approval Thiess (lak llies cannot be witen off without the Beard and the TERC approval.
Panding begal relrass, 1he Cempany confinues to recogrics thasa Rsbililes abine-skaled amount rellecting acquistion dase far values. In accordanca with the vesting ordar,
any shange in the yvalus of essets and lishilfies rensierred on account of fhe reconcifiation ! resalullion of the abave matters and ! or any othes ritler ideridied in fubure wil
b aliwed 1o be recoversd by the Company in the manrer apeciied Im the vesting order, viz., by way of future taif sdfustment or adjustment 10 the grani Eailty, Herce,
the Commany belleves thal 52 recanciiation / resolution of the above matters will it have any imssct on the firancisl poslen and francisl performance of the Campany
as mileciad in e fimancisl sstements.

&) Carmying amount of securily deposits (classdiad under noiz 23.in the Balznce Sheel) a8 cer the general ledgar is higher by ¥ 27,89 orofed as compared 10 baksnce a4
per customnr ledaer

i) Vendorcusiomer felsis not avallable for the ffiowing items:
(1} Cxhes fecelvable: ¥ 257 crores {Tlassiicd under Nole 7 In the Balance Sheesf)
(i} CHhar maceivable: ¥ 081 crores [Classited under Note 14 inthe Balanco Sheaf)
{ify Oifer reculvable, # 12 88 crores (Classified under Mate 10 in the Balance Sheef)
(iv)Grants receivable: ® 1,02 crorea {Classifisd under Note 10 in the Balance Sheet}
v} Advaneein Ofhers: ¥ 1689 crores (Classifiad yndar Note 15 In the Balanoe Sheal)
[vi)Paysble 1o Empleyses. 887 crorea (Classified under Mole 23 in the Balanca Shest)
(wilPayable to Vandors: ¥ 3860 crores (Classifiod under Note 22 inthe Balance Sheat)
fliiiRetenion money, Eamast money and Securly deposlt fom others: ¥ 4,40 crores (Classified under Note 23 i the Balance Sheat)
(%) Consumars: Contribution foe worc § 106,72 crores (Classified undar Notn 25 In the Balance Sheat)

) MESCO did not have any process for enifiaation of vendors s micro, smal| and mediuim enterprese |MSME) under thae MSMED Act Past-acqulsilan. the company
ks |nisiated the process and rolies cul MSME confirmation 1o 8l itz vendors. Basad on iha responses recelved, the Company has idantifed MSWME vendors and in the
process of ensuring necessary compliance with the MEMED Act

The Campany, with tha NESCO managemen! and ihe help of the GERC, i m the process of reconcilaboniresolving the above maliers and adjustmants, ff any, wil be
rocognised post reconciliation and resolulion of the mattsts, As stated above, the vesting ordsr provides that any changs in the valua of assets and kbililes franslemid on
geeounl of rezoncilislioniresoltion of the above maltars andiar @ny other matter identified in future will be aliowed to be 1scoversd by the Company in the manner specied
i {he vesling order Hence the Company baliaves that ihe recanclliation/resolution of the above matters will nel have any impac: on the financial position and financial
performance af tha Company 23 reflected inthe financial statemienis
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Biju Grama Jyoti Yojana(BGI v OPTCL

m.zaam_._.__. of Assets Created under Government (Fund/Grant) as on 31

.03.2023

SBehame was closad prior
takeover, but confirmation

(In Rs

ANNEXURE-3
Crs)

BGIYOPTCLOTR o

oPTCL : 348 A ) A
i DTR) e 2 g racaived fiam OFTCL an 7th R a5
- June'24
) ) ) ) fesat Created by
O TCL _"um_w___mmﬁ_uﬁﬂﬁﬁi Gram yoti Yojana | aem g 0 938 OPTCL_DDUGSY of
Annexire 4
Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyoti Yojana . s ety o emted by
PECIL L hnuGyy 11th &12th Plan ) PGOIL 2068 127055 PG IL of Annexured
. Deen Dayal Upadhyaya Gram Jyot “¥ojana ! ! #gaat Creatad by N TRPC
NTPE L B0 UG 11th & 12th Plany NTPG B2 ARER of Annexured
; Integrated P ower Development Scheme i ; Feaat Created by
opTeL S 280,71 0 =071 OPTCL. of Anncurs 4
Scheme was closed prior
Imtagrated Power Developmant Schema: takeover, but confirmation IPOS T PH:Il of
ORTEL Y iPDBIT Phese Il) B42 g 42 recatved fram OPTEL on 7th Annexure 5
Juna'24 )
. . . Name of the desei
OPTCL mﬂﬂh u%mmwﬁ_“_u: System Strengthening | 000 | gyms | 7es 00 7259 Craated Agency-OPTEL
(HE5E of Anndure.<
] ) Seheme was closed prior
Odiha Dedicated Agricultural Fishary ' : ) takeovar, but confirmafion .
OPTCL Fosder Projeck ODAFFP) ! 131 A0.87 53e7 tecaived fram OFTGL on 7th OOAFFP of Annexura-S
June'24
) ) Scheme was closed prior
NTRerpegiy, R SEndhi Gramesn Vidyuthaan Yolana| g, o 351 falepover, but confitnelon | pagy of Annesue:5

(RGEGEW

rocaieed fram OP TGL on 7th
June'24




ANN EXURE-4-

MINUTES OF MEETING OF 18T MEETING OF COMMITTEE FOR
DEVELOPMENT OF PROTOCOL FOR ASSET MANAGEMENT OF GOI/GOO
FUNDED SCHEMES HELD ON 12.10.2023 AT 4PM.

The hist of parucipants is placed at Annexure-1.

Welcoming the members, Director (F&CA), GRIDCO briefed about the decision
taken during the meeting held on 27 Sept2023 under the chairmanship of
ACS, Energy Department and Chairman, GRIDCO on proper management of
Gol/GoO funded Electrical Distribution Assets and necessity for development a

protocol for management of Gol/GoO funded Electrical Distribution Assets.

A briel presentation was given on the status of assets created by OPTCL, NTPC,
PGCIL and by DISCOMs till 31.03.2023.

The details of deliberation and decision taken in the meeting as follows:

1. Fixed Asset Register (FAR) of Gol/GoO funded schemes implemented
through OPTCL and Central Agencies.

a. OPTCL clarified that they have provided the Fixed Assets Register for

SCRIPS, DDUGJY, IPDS, ODSSP, Nabakalebar Schemes to GRIDCO as well
as to respective DISCOMs after obtaining certification from external Audit
Firm valuing total to the tune of Rs.6542.55 crore as on 31.03.2023 which
includes Rs5199.75 Crore capitalised and Rs1342.80 crore CWIP. A detail
statement in this regard is enclosed at Annexure-2.
However, CFOs of respective DISCOMs stated that they have not received
the copy of the FAR so forwarded by OPTCL. CFO, OPTCL agreed to resend
the Asset Register to all CFOs of Discoms both the hard copy hy post and
soft copy through e-mail.

b. CGM(F), DMU clarified that, the implementing Agencies such as NTPC &
PGCIL have submitted the FAR copy to Respective Discoms as well as
GRIDCO to the tune ol Rs.6629.06 crore for DDUGJY 10th Plan, DDUGJY
11th Plan, DDUGJY 12th plan elc. A detail statement in this regard is
enclosed at Annexure-3.

However, CFOs of respective DISCOMs stated that they have not received
the copy of the FAR so forwarded by either PGCIL or NTPC.



It was decided that, CGM(F), DMU to forward the copy of Assel Register s0
submitted by NTPC and PGCIL to all CFOs of Discoms both the hard copy
by post and soft copy through e-mail.

Fixed Asset Register (FAR) of Gol/GoO funded schemes implemented
by Discoms.

Discoms are the implementing Agency of various Government funded
Schemes such as Saubhagya, BGJY, CAPEX, R-APDRP, DES], Elephant
Corridor, shifting of lines & 5/8 from School Anganwadi etc. during Fre-
vesting period as well as post-vesting period. However, no FAR copy has yet

been received fromDiscoms.

Respective Discoms were agreed to share the copy of FAR created post
vesting period to GRIDCO as well as to Energy Department duly verified by
Third Party Auditors.

Further, it was advised to prepare the FAR for pre-vesting period by
collecting information from respective Divisionig within one month period
positively and forward the same to GRIDCO as well as to Energy
Department after obtaining certification from the Third-Party Auditors.
Development of a protocol for Assets Management of Gol / GoO
Funded Schemes.

Detailed discussions and deliberations were made regarding preparation of
draft protocol for Assets Management of Gol / GoQO Funded Schemes.

It was deliberated that the protocol should cover the details about the date
of Assets creation, value of assets, its location, O&M allowed by OERC and
spent in each year of operation, date of retirement of assets, major R&M

done including source of fund for special R&M etc.

As OPTCL is having the expertise of execuling/ implementing the Govt.
Funded schemes for DISCOMs, it was decided that; OPTCL to draft the
protocol for Asset Management up o Capitalisation of Assets and hand over
to CGM(F), DMU as well as to both the Auditors. CFO of TP Discoms are
requested to share their insights to CGM(F), DMU as well as the Auditors

for value addition.




CA, Dinkar Mohanty of M/s Tejraj Pal & Co and CFO, GRIDCO were
requested to draft the Protocol jointly with CA Dilip Jena of SRB taking
draft from CFO, OPTCL.

The drafl Protocol will be presented for deliberation in the nexl meoung.

The next meeting will be held after |5 days and shall be informed

accordingly well in advance.

The meeting ended with a vote of thanks to the Chair and the participants.

-




Members Present in the meeting regarding 1st Committee to develop a protocol of Asset
Management of GoliGoO funded scheme on 12.10.2023 at 04.00 PM in the Conf. hall of
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Annexure-1

Name of the Asset Created Agency-OPTCL AS ON 31.03.2023

Rs. In Crore
SI'NG Name of Name of Assets Value
Schame Biscoms Completed WIP Total
1 SCRIPS TPCODL 268.72 254.63 523.35
TPCODL 294.99 294.99
TPNGDL 368.36 368.36
2 DDUGTY TPSODL 273.21 273.21
TPWODL £293.3%9 293.39
Total 1229.95 0.00 1229.95
TPCODL 195.61 195.61
TENODL 2B0.71 280.71
3 1IPD5 TPSODL 211.86 211.86
TPWODL 22311 223.11
Total 911.29 0.00 911.29
TRCODL 507.97 543.43 1051.40
oDSSP TPNODL 463,36 291.65 755.01
5 TPSODL 760.18 68.62 828.80
TPWODL 899.45 184.47 1083.92
Total 2630.96 1088.17 3719.13
6 NABAKALEBAR [TPCODL 1531.33 158.83
TPCODL 1426.12 798.06 2224.18
TPNODL 1112.43 291.65 1404.08
TOTAL OF ALL PROIECT |TPSODL 1245.26 68.62 1313.88
TPWODL 1415.95 184.47 1600.42
Total 5199.75 1342.80 6542,55




Annexure-2

Assets Executed by Cenral Agencies

Name of the assets Created agency - PGCIL

Rs. In Crore

Scheme Sl
cheme Scheme Name DIscom Value as on Completad
Mo Value
TPCODL (18.01.2016 369.22
TPNODL [19.09.2015 650.50
1 DDUGIY 11th Plan TPSODL |21.03.2018 269.58
TPWODL |16.07.2015 192.80
Sub-Total 1482.10
TPCODL 10-03-2021 430,88
TPHODL 12-02-2021 620.05
2 DDUGHY 12th plan TPSODL 30-11-2020 582.70
TPWODL a0-11-2020 492.57
Sub-Total 2135.20
PGCIL Total 3617.30
Name of the assets Created agency -NTPC
TPCODL 154.32
1 DDUGIY 10th Plan
Sub- Total 194.32
TPCODL Not available 62.30
TENODL 123.39
2 DDUGIY 11th Plan TPSODL 113.98
TPWODL 418,91
Sub-Total 718.58
TPCODL 372.96
TPHODL o 326.83
L DDUGIY 12th Plan TPSODOL 31.03.2022 375.36
TPWODL 1023.72
Sub- Total 2098.86
NTPC Total 3011.76
Central Agency (PGCIL + NTPC) Grand Total 6629.06
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STATEMENT'_DF ASSETS CREATED UNDER GOVT. PROJECTS AS ON 31.03.2024 |
=1
IName of the Scheme ODSSP
[Rs in crore)
SINo  Name of the DISCOM wip Completed Total
I
‘TECODL 205.73 804.61 1,010.34
TPNODL 148.04 584.71 732.75
TPSODL 11485 698.87 B13.72
~ |tPwoDL 19238 886.18 1,078.56
TOTAL 661.00 2,974.37 3,635.37
Name of the Scheme ODSSP PH-IV as on 31.03.2024
' I — 5 (Rsin crore)
S| No Name of the DISCOM wip Completed Total
|
~ [TPCODL | -
TPNODL 182.49 182.49
TPSODL .
TPWODL | 216.92 216.92
‘TOTAL 399,41 - 399.41
B 'N_a_m_e :_:f the Scheme SCRIPS 31.03.2024
- | _____ Il ___L!R_S_i!:qrurﬂl
SINo | Name ofthe DISCOM | wip ~ Completed Total
_TeconL . 13635 62206 758.41
TPNODL i
~ (TPSODL - j :
TPWODL = -
~ TOTAL B - 136.35 622.06 ' 758.41
¢ 1
N_amenfthe Scheme SETU 31.03.2024
. | (Rs in crore)
SINoe | Name ofthe DISCOM wip Completed Total
TPSODL n | 14.2| 14.20
TOTAL ) 14.20 | 14.20




'Name of the Scheme DDUGJY 31.03.2024

(Rs in crore)
SINo  Name of the DISCOM wWip Completed Total
TPCODL 289,97 289.97
TPNODL | 44649 446.49
~ TPSODL 395.08 395.08
_ _F’FML _ B ) 373.42 373.42
‘TDTAL - 150496  1,504.96
Name of the Scheme IPDS 31.03.2024
| [Rs in crore)
5l No Name of the DISCOM Wip Completed Total
TPCODL | 217.73 217.73
~ TPNODL | 293.66 293.66
TPSODL 1 241.64 241,64
~ TPWODL L 244.65 244.65
TDTAL_ _ - 997.68 997.68
Name of the Scheme | SOUBHAGYA 31.03.2024
; [Rs in crore)
~ SINe | Name of the DISCOM o WIP Completed Total
TREON 168 99 1RR 99
__TPNODL 124.27 124.27
ITPSODL - - 1391.44 191.44
TPWODL [ 158.50 158.50
_,TOTAL - 643.20 643.20

| |
IName of the Scheme | NAB#«K_ALE BARA 31.03.2024

| {Rs in crare)

SINo | Name of the DISCOM WP Completed Total
— l S |
TPCODL | 15883 158.83
TPNODL ) | :
TPSODL ) ' | :
~ItewonL :

TOTAL - | 158.83 158.83




Mame of the Scheme

5| No Name of the DISCOM
TPCODL

TPNODL

TPSODL

TPWODL

TOTAL

Name of the Scheme

5l No Mame of the DISCOM
'TPCODL

TPNODL

TPSODL

TPWODL

{TOTAL -ODAFFP

Name of the Scheme

SINo | _Name of the DISCOM

| PCOLL
TPNODL
TPSODL
TPWODL

TOTAL

'Name of the Scheme

SINo  Name of the DISCOM

~ TPCODL
~|TPNODL
TPSODL

RGGVY 31.03.2024

wip Completed

38.93
| 3.51
11.59
26.94

80.97

~ ODAFFP 31.03.2024

WP Completed
7.21 59.24
40.87 13.10
6.62 -
54.70 72.34

{Rs In crore)
Total

38.93

3.51
11.59
26.94

80.97

(Rsin crore)
Total

66,45

53.57
6.62

127.04

|BGJY OPTCLDTR 31.03.2024

wWIP " Completed

|{Rs in crore}
' Total

153.33

34.89

4571
41.08

IPDS IT PH-1l 31.03.2024

wip

I

~ Completed

54,20

N 54.20
162.60

275.01

54.20

153.33
34.89
45.71
41.08

275.01

(Rs In crore)
Total

54.20
54.20
54.20

162.60
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SRB & Associates

INDIA CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CERTIFICATE

Herawith we certify that the Gross Fixed Assets (GFA) of TP Northern Odisha Distribution Limited
(TPNODL) as on March 31, 2024 Is ® 4067.11crores. This includes Gross Assets taken over by
TPNODL from Morthern Blectricity Supply Company (NESCOD) pursuant to vesting order issued by the
Odisha Electricty Regulatory Commission ('OERC") dated March 25, 2021, the Company acguired
the business of distributing power In Northern Odisha ('business”) fram NESCO with effect from April
1, 2021 (date of vesting order)

Year-wise breakup is as provided in below table.

Particulars

depreciated §0%
31-03-2023 |31-03-2024

(2) |Buidings -

PRt and equipment nciuding
{t) mnr:shn lines and cable 27143 274.63
(€] |Motor vehickes 0.36 0.36
(&) |Fumniture and Mxtures 1.48 188
(g) |Office equipmerts 4.59 4,80
Totul PPE 278.26 I81.47
Note:

(Figs in ¥ eroee)
Gross Flxed _ Gross Fixed
Asset ag on | Net Addtion |Not Addtion|Net Addtion| Asset as on
S0 Partinirs April 01, PY 21-22 | FY22-23 | FY 23-24 | March3l,
2021 2024
ia) i8] <) (o) {A+DB+C+D)
1 |TANGIELE
(8) |Busidings 5.59 4.02 50.44 67.31 13735
Pant and equipment Inclding
{t) [ranemission ines and catie 2,184.68 140.85 51234 901.80 3,739.66
natwork
{c] |Motor Veticles .55 032 1.18 0.72 2.76
{d) |Pumitore and fixtures 224 0.82 5.09 3.92 1209
(e) |office squipments 632 15.17 33.00 2183 76.33
Total PPE 2,199.41 16118 613,04 995,57 3.,968.20
2 |INTANGIBLE i 1942 37.48 42.01 98.91
Totnl Gross Fiked Assat 2,199.41 18060 649.52 | 1,037.58 4,067.11
{Figs in ® crore)
GFA (as an 01.04.2021 )

This certificate is issued for the purpose of submission to OERC only.

SRB & Associates
Chartered Accountants,
FRN:310009E

‘Apbh lewm~r Moern,

Aditya Kumar Mishra

Partner

M.No:55254
UDIN:24055254BKHMVR9494
Date:27.11.2024
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